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City of Cincinnati

Department of Finance ' Room 250, City Hall
801 Plum Street
Cincinnari, Ohio
45202

Timothy H. Riordan
Divector

June 9, 2000

The Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council,
and the Citizens of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio

We are pleased to submit the City of Cincinnati's Comprehensive Annua! Financial Report (CAFR) for the
year ended December 31, 1999, This report is prepared by the Department of Finance, which is responsible
for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of its presentation, including disclosures. We
believe that the information presented is accurate in all material respects and reported in a manner designed
to show the financial position and operating results of the City.

Cincinnati's 1999 CAFR is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The
Introductory section, which provides information on the general contents of the report, contains this letter of
transmittal, an organizational chart of City governmient, and a list of City officials. The Financial section is
comprised of the auditor's report, the general-purpose financial statements and the combining financial
statements. The Statistical section provides various financial, economic, and demographic data about the City,
generally on a multi-year basis.

The City is the only governmental unit in the reporting entity; it has no component units. In determining what
constitutes the City reporting entity, the criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
were used. We did not find the City to be financially accountable for any potential component units.
Hamilton County and the Cincinnati City School District are separate governmental jurisdictions that overlap
the City's boundaries. These entities are not included in the City's financial reports.

The City provides the full range of municipal services including police and fire protection, parks, recreation,

public services (highways, streets, and waste collection), health and social services, culture, public
improvement, planning and zoning, general administrative, water and sewer services.

Equal Opportunity Employer
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

According to the Greater Cincinnati Chamber of Commerce in its Economic Outlook 2000, “The Greater
Cincinnati economy continues to grow on a steady path.... Construction activity remains strong (especially
for highways and the riverfront areas), and businesses continue to grow and expand. The manufacturing sector
easily weathered the Asian crisis and looks to reach new levels of activity. Greater Cincinnati’s diversified
economy, competitive cost structure, international airport, and easy access to markets continues to provide the
right environment for attracting new businesses and a strong foundation for future growth.”

The City of Cincinnati ranks first in Ohio for creating the most Enterprise Zone Projects within a year. In
1999, the Department of Economic Development created and the City Council approved 26 project agreements

worth $106 million of new private investment that will create or retain 7,708 jobs within the City over the next
three years.

Employment in the 12-county Greater Cincinnati area grew 3% from December of 1998 through December
of 1999, following a 3.4% growth in 1998. The Chamber of Commerce projects local employment growth will
continue to slow as a result of the tight labor market. In a comparison with eleven other Metropolitan
Statistical Areas in Ohio, using information provided by the Ohio Bureau of Employment Services, Greater
Cincinnati's 1999 average unemployment rate of 3.5% was the third lowest in the state of Ohio. The state and
national rates in 1999 were 4.3% and 4.2%, respectively.

The Chamber concludes, “The prospects for the Greater Cincinnati economy hinge greatly on the success
expected of the national economy. Locally, growth in the economy closely tracks that of the nation....Over
the past five years, employment growth in the Greater Cincinnati economy has closely followed employment
growth for the U.S. economy.”

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City had many accomplishments in 1999. The City continued to lower crime rates; improve customer
service throughout the city government; and promote revitalization of neighborhoods, downtown and the
riverfront area. While it is not possible to describe all of the major initiatives and accomplishments that have
occurred during 1999, positive changes made in the following areas are of particular interest.

I. Downtown Vitality

With the completion of The Lofts of Shillito Place in October 1999, ninety-eight new residential units were
brought to the central business district. With City assistance, severa! additional residential projects are
underway. These complement the commercial and retail projects being developed along Race Street and the
150-room economy class hotel to be built at the corner of Fifth & Elm streets.

In May 1999, a development agreement was executed with the Contemporary Arts Center to provide a site for
a new 200,000 square foot, eight-story facility at Sixth & Walnut streets. Financial assistance was also
provided for the redevelopment of existing properties for a T.J. Maxx store, which opened in August 1999,
and the Sawyer Point Building, a 200,000 square foot Class A office facility, on Pete Rose Way.

vi
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The Central Riverfront Plan, begun in the fall of 1996, moved several steps closer to reality in 1999. This
project is the most significant and complex urban riverfront development undertaken anywhere in the country.
The City of Cincinnati and Hamilton County have been the leaders in the civic regional partnership that has
enabled the project to happen. Construction continued on Paul Brown Stadium and East Parking Garage.

Design work continued for the National Underground Railroad Freedom Center as part of the Central
Riverfront development process. - -
The Park Department along with the Department of Transportation and Engineering and the Recreation
Department completed a public process to develop a master plan for a new central riverfront park. The first
private donation was received by the Park Department for the Theodore M. Berry International Friendship
Park. The new park has already received $4 million in state funding and $4 million in City capital funds.

The Department of Transportation and Engineering is the lead agency for the coordination of Fort Washington
Way and related transportation projects on the Central Riverfront . The Fort Washington Way project, which
reworks the entire riverfront expressway network of 1-71, 1-75, and U.S. 50, is one of the largest and most
innovative urban expressway projects in the country.

The Riverfront Transit Center, which is to be underneath the new Second Street as part of Fort Washington
Way, began construction in 1999 and is on track to be structurally complete in August 2000 with the Transit
Center to open in mid 2001.

The new Riverfront Street Grid, made possible by the Fort Washington Way project, has progressed with the
construction of Mehring Way and Pete Rose Way around the new Paul Brown Stadium.

The Parking Division implemented its Parking Improvement Plan approved by the City Council on June 30,
1999. The plan imposed a series of rate adjustments to allow at least 150 more downtown visitors to park each
day at the Fountain Square Garage. Since its inception on August 1,1999, the plan has actually permitted 224
or more visitors to park each day.

The Tyler Davidson Fountain Restoration Project progressed on target. This project is critical to the City and
the Region as a historic and artistic treasure.

Various City programs were used to establish and retain 800 plus jobs in the downtown area during 1999,

II. Livable Neighborhoods/ Safe Communities

The vitality of our 51 neighborhoods is key to the success of our City. We partnered with our neighborhoods
to make them cleaner and safer in 1999. ‘ '

The violent crime rate in Cincinnati has decreased for the ninth straight year with the 2.1% drop in 1999.

Neighborhood surveillance cameras were installed in several communities and Crime Stoppers received more
than 1,148 tips through the Crime Stopper Hotline leading to more than 570 arrests.

vii
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The Police Division received national recognition for efforts in the “Weed and Seed Program” from the U.S.
Department of Justice and the “Innovation Award” from the National League of Cities for working with
community groups and institutions.

The Police Division’s Personal Crimes Unit continued with their Community Oriented Policing child education
project of “Good Touch, Bad Touch™. The Personal Crimes Unit, in cooperation with the Cincinnati Board
of Education, responded to specially targeted grade schools to teach about inappropriate touching and how a
child should report the touching to an adult.

The Safe Summer Nights Program targeted single family residences, the elderly, children, and the hearing-
impaired. The Fire Division visited over 4,000 homes. A total of 4,300 smoke detectors and 3,000 batteries
were distributed, many actually installed by the firefighters. Members of the Fire Division also initiated a
program to educate senior citizens on fire safety; coordinated the Children’s Safety Fair for over 4,000 school
children; and conducted numerous other education and prevention activities.

For the first time in the history of the Fire Division, two members of the Fire Investigations Unit have
completed training and been certified as peace officers.

The Public Service Department began replacing school-warning signs with new highly visible fluorescent
green school warning signs. The department also replaced old painted school crosswalks with a thermoplastic
material that provides for more visible and long-lasting pavement markings. Both programs are designed to
make school zones safer. In July 1999, the department also kicked off the Great Cincinnati Clean Up, an effort
to clean highly littered communities.

The Highway Maintenance Division continued its graffiti removal efforts throughout the City by eradicating
graffiti from over 4,000 locations.

The Department of Economic Development teamed with local neighborhoods and private individuals to create
and /or retain jobs, support a healthy local economy and improve neighborhoods through Enterprise Zone
Agreements, and numerous other loans and incentives. The Department of Transportation and Engineering
Joined them in several Streetscape projects and both departments worked with the City Planning Department
in the creation of urban plans and designs for several neighborhoods.

The City Planning Department also administered zoning and other land use processes that resulted in over 400
new housing units being constructed in the City.

In 1999, the Department of Neighborhood Services provided assistance to 2,318 housing units in 41 City

neighborhoods. The public investment in housing of $10.4 million leveraged an additional $38.4 million in
private funds,

The City’s Rental Rehabilitation Program contracted for 143 units of affordable rehabilitated housing. In
addition, 894 Rental Rehab units were completed and occupied. This included 651 units at Fay Apartments
and the remaining 146 units of the 1,169-unit Huntington Meadows project funded in the two previous years.

viii
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The Water Works Department continued targeting some of Cincinnati's oldest neighborhoods for fire hydrant
painting. During the summer of 1999, more than 2,256 Cincinnati fire hydrants were painted.

To support community activities, the Recreation Department carried out the renovation of twelve playgrounds,
a soccer field and basketball court; construction of teen lounges in four community centers; demolition and
site restoration at four swimming pools; and construction of the Corryville Recreation Center, the Lindner
Family Tennis Center, and the Marian Ahlering Land of Make Believe Complex & Nature Works. In addition
to these projects, Roselawn Park was transformed into one of the top amateur baseball complexes in the
Midwest and the Millvale Community Computing Center, Cincinnati’s first computer center dedicated to
providing general community access to computers and computer technologies, was opened.

With $50,000 seed money from the Recreation Department, the 1,000 Hands Project, the City’s largest
partnership, raised over $150,000 in cash and materials and involved over 2,000 Recreation Department
employees and private citizen volunteers to build the city’s largest playground, 14,600 square feet, in five days.

In 1999, the Parks Department maintained over 60 neighborhood parks, 30 preserves and nature areas,
landscapes at neighborhood gateways and along interstate highways within the City, parkways, street trees
along the 1,000 miles of City streets, and such facilities as Krohn Conservatory, picnic shelters, pavilions, and
lodges. The City’s first “dog park™ and a disk golf course were also completed during 1999.

Nature education programs reached 47,000 people. Over 5,000 inner city children attended the grant-funded
outreach naturg programs titled “Nature Next Door” and “Nature Connection”. Over 150,000 people attended
42 concerts and events such as the Butterfly Show at Krohn Conservatory, the Ault Park Flower show and the
Juneteenth Celebration.

The Department of Transportation and Engineering conducted “Street Calming” projects in various
neighborhoods throughout the City. These projects improve livability by reducing or eliminating the negative
effects of speeding and cut through traffic.

In 1999, the Buildings & Inspections Department held 11 public hearings regarding public nuisance buildings.
Through the department’s Hazard Abatement Program, 54 buildings were razed while 98 buildings were
barricaded until they are used for future redevelopment. The department’s normal code enforcement program
responds to complaints regarding Housing, Building, and Zoning Code violations as well as the Municipal
Code (weeds, litter, and outdoor advertising).

The Environmental Health Program of the Health Department continued to provide weed control on privately
owned vacant lots in conjunction with the Department of Buildings and Inspections and the Division of
Employment and Training. The number of responses to such complaints more than doubled at 3,104 in 1999
compared to 1,528 in 1998.

In striving to enhance our air quality in Cincinnati, the Office of Environmental Management purchased
summa canisters for collection of ambient air samples in conjunction with odor complaint investigations.

Citizens residing in areas of the City where there has been a history of odor incidents have been provided
canisters and training on how to use them,

ix
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The 1999 CITIRAMA project, Spencer Hill Subdivision in Mt. Lookout, was completed for the October 30
- November 7 show. There were 10 homes in the show and 27 additional lots were sold to builders.

Fleet Services upgraded the City’s snow removal fleet to handle large level III snow storms through the
Slippery Streets Project. During the winter season, 131 units are available for snow removal on city streets.

Lunken Airport established a “fly neighborly” program to enhance safety and to reduce noise over the more
populated neighborhoods. )
The Water Works Department received an "outstanding” performance rating from the Ohio Environmental
Protection Agency on the Annual Sanitary Survey. The Water Works Department also expanded its water main
flushing program to include three additional Cincinnati neighborhoods after a pilot study showed a significant
improvement in water quality and an 80% reduction in the number of rusty water complaints in the pilot study
area. Continued expansion of the flushing program is planned for 2000.

HI. More Responsive Government

In the final analysis, our success is measured by the City’s responsiveness to its citizens. In 1999, significant
steps were taken to provide high quality, timely services in a more cost effective manner. The City has been
challenged to continue providing basic services while resources have shown modest growth.

The City’s Customer Service Center provides 24-hour-a-day access to services through the 591-6000 telephone
number.

The City opened the Development Help Center in December 1999. This center provides immediate hands-on
technical assistance from knowledgeable development officers who guide the public through the development
process. The center’s hotline number is (513) 352-FAST (3278).

The Law Department’s Relocation Services Office developed a brochure to assist individuals with relocation
and housing related issues. The brochure provides names and telephone numbers of local emergency housing
and emergency assistance agencies, housing referral agencies, and legal assistance and social service agencies.

During 1999, the Income Tax Division implemented a telefile/webfile system for filing withholding tax returns
and payments over the telephone or Internet. Over 450 local businesses are now participating in the program.

The Cincinnati Municipal Code was added to the City’s website in October 1999, and is now accessible to both
City staff and citizens.

Through the efforts of the Regional Computer Center’s Communication Technology Services section to reduce
unnecessary expenditures, the City was able to disconnect unnecessary phone lines, cancel maintenance
contracts, and order refurbished equipment yielding over $45,000 in savings per year.

Computer systems that support City operations rolled over into the New Ycar with no disruption of services
to our citizens.
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E-Com Ohio, a statewide leadership effort to measure Ohio’s readiness for global electronic commerce,
awarded Cincinnati the Best Practice designation. Cincinnati was identified as being the best of twenty-seven
government web sites in southwest Ohio. Numerous departments or divisions have received other awards for
their individual web sites including the 1999 Bronze Quill Award of Merit awarded by the International
Association of Business Communicators, the City-County Communications and Marketing Association
(3CMA) Savvy Award, the 3CMA Silver Circle Award, and an “Honorable Mention” award in the 1999
American Economic Development Council Promotional Materials Awards competition.

1999 marked the completion of the third year of the four-year plan to build a modern electronic network that
will connect all major City facilities. By the end of 1999, 59 of the 75 targeted facilities had been connected
and the plan is on schedule and within budget.

During 1999, Ohio’s Governor Taft recognized the CAGIS system, Cincinnati Area Geographic Information
System, for excellence in enterprise geographic information system development. The CAGIS system was also
the recipient of the Best Practices Award from the Ohio Graphically Referenced Information Program at the
Ohio GIS Conference in Columbus. The CAGIS system has dramatically reduced the time between customer
request and employee service response by supplying City employees the information required to make a
decision within seconds rather than within the days and sometimes weeks experienced in the manual mode.

The Purchasing Division of the Finance Departiment received the National Institute of Governmental
Purchasing Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Public Procurement at the Outstanding Agency
Accreditation Level, the seventh out of 60 organizations in the country that applied for this accreditation. A
third of the City’s buyers completed and passed the Certification as Professional Buyers. The City’s
purchasing marnuals are now available on the Internet.

In a survey conducted for the Park Department, 90% to 94% of residents found City parks “good” to
“excellent” for attractiveness, cleanliness, convenience, maintenance, and care.

In the Buildings & Inspections Department, 85% of the 12,000 average annual client contacts received service
within two minutes of arrival at the customer service desk. This is a dramatic improvement over 1994

performance levels when only 76% of all customers received help within the two-minute time frame considered
critical for prompt service.

The Water Works Department installed an optical disc recording system for its main contact telephone
numbers. The system provides for the recording of calls for quality assurance monitoring and training.

The Health Department’s Environmental Program staff continued to focus on proactive approaches to disease
prevention. Clean neighborhoods and healthful housing efforts resulted in 24,627 inspections to abate
unhealthfu! conditions reported on 10,588 citizen complaints. To ensure a safe food supply, staff conducted
9,333 inspections where foods were commercially prepared, processed, stored, served, or sold.

In October, the maintenance functions of the Sewer Department’s Wastewater Collection Division and

Stormwater Management Utility were merged. The merger facilitated coordination, communication, and
optimization of resources and staff, benefiting our respective ratepayers.
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In 1999, one of the City’s Contract Compliance Workforce goals was exceeded. The minority male goal was
11.8%, and 13.4% was achieved. The total goal for females was 6.9%; 2.1% was achieved for minority
females and 3.9% was achieved for non-minority females, a total of 6%.

In 1999, the City Council passed an ordinance which introduced the Small Business Enterprise Program
(SBE), a race and gender neutral program to replace the former Equal Business Opportunity Program. The
purpose of the Small Business Enterprise Program is to promote the economic welfare of the people of the City
of Cincinnati by assisting SBEs to participate actively in the Clty s procurement process. The SBE program
was implemented in January 2000, .

City employees participated in the second annual Seasongood Innovation Awards program sponsored by the
Murray and Agnes Seasongood Good Government Foundation. The purpose of the Seasongood Innovation
Awards is to identify and recognize examples of excellence and innovation in city government. Twenty
applications were received in 1999, and the top prize was awarded to employees in the Health Department for
improving immunization services in Cincinnati Public Schools.

In the Best Practices Benchmarking Project conducted by Arthur Andersen for the Institute of Internal
Auditors, the City’s Internal Audit Division ranked above its public and private sector peers in five out of six
broad categories.

During the summer of 1999, the Back on the Block (BOTB) Program conducted activities for 59,837 youth
in 17 neighborhoods targeted as having a large number of disadvantaged youth. The Employment & Training
Division served over 2,100 youth in workforce development programs.

The Smart Lab 2000+ Program provided youth and adults, who had no or limited exposure to computers, with
a computerized learning environment that promotes career exploration in high-tech occupations and linkages
to further educational opportunities.

The Recreation Department provided numerous programs for Cincinnati’s youth including Tickets for Kids,
a partnership with TicketMaster to provide tickets to sports and arts events as incentives for positive behavior;
Hooked on Fishing and Hooked on Golf, which provided basic equipment, training, and opportunities for
disadvantaged youth to enjoy these sports; Project Intercept Comic Book: Reaching Teens and Families,
designed in comic book style to appeal to inner-city youth, the publication listed services for youth including

drug abuse, pregnancy, gang issues, and GED education; opening new teen lounges and providing quarterly
teen socials.

During 1999, the Health Department provided services to 48,787 users at the six clinics, compared to 45,221
in 1998 (a 7.9% increase). There were 144,267 health center patient visits in 1999 compared with 136,388
in 1998 (5.8% increase), and 221,343 prescriptions were filled in 1999 which is 2 6.3% increase over 1998.

The Fire Division received 73,706 requests for service in 1999, Fire runs increased in 1999 to 2,799 from

2,674, 4.1%. Emergency medical runs of 47,483 represented an increase of 5.4%, from 1998. Response times
for medical requests decreased from 4.14 minutes in 1998 to 4.08 minutes in 1999, a decrease of 1.4%.

xii
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Internal Control

The Administration believes that the City's internal control structure provides reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded, transactions are recorded and reported appropriately, and policies are followed. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control procedure should not exceed the expected benefit.
An important element of the City's control structure is the ongoing program to promote control consciousness
throughout the organization. The Administration's commitment to this program is emphasized through written
policies and procedures, and a well-qualified financial staff. :

Budgetary Control

An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year for the General Fund and those Special Revenue Funds
identified as appropriated in the financial statements. Budgetary data for better management control does exist
for the Nonappropriated Special Revenue Funds. For each budgeted expenditure classification, the level of
appropriation control which may not be exceeded is: personal service, non-personal service, capitai outlay and
debt service. Any revisions that alter the appropriation control classification of any division within a City
department must be approved by City Council. Encumbrances do not lapse at year-end and are included as
expenditures in the current year budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis).

Virtually all of the generél services of the City have been financed with resources from the Geperal Fund,

General Fund revenues include property taxes, the City income tax, and other revenues provided by the citizens
of this community.

Actual General Fund expenditures/encumbrances in 1999 were $291.0 million; this is a $5.1 million savings

compared with a 1999 expenditure appropriation of $296.1 million. Actual revenue of $299.1 million
exceeded the original estimated 1999 revenue estimate of $289.8 million by $9.3 million..
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GENERAL FUND

1999 Revenues

(Amounts in Thousands)

Licenses and Permits

1.7% Real Property -
$22,390
Use of Money and Personal Property -

Property T 83,841

4.8%

Intergovernmental .
17.7% City Income - $180,741
Charges for CurrenNP

Services ..

4.4% Admissions - $2,634

Miscelianeous

0.6%
ALL REVENUES TAX REVENUE
Total Revenues - $296,081 Revenue - $209,606
1999 Expenditures
(Amounts in Thousands)
Employee Benefits
17%
Administration - $524
Public Health =

7%

Public Services &
Transportation
8%

Police - $75,968

Parks and Recreation

—Fire - $49,713
6.6%
General Government -
17%
ALL EXPENDITURES PUBLIC SAFETY
Total Expenditures - $287,278 Expenditures - $126,205
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General Government Functions

The revenues and expenditures for 1999 compared with 1998 were as follows (000's omitted):

Increase (Decrease)

1999 1998 Amount Percent
General Fund
Revenues (GAAP Basis) '
Real and Personal Property Taxes - §$ 26,231 $26,335. $ (104)  (0.4)%
Income Tax 180,741 - 165,750 14,991 9.0
Admissions and Other Taxes 2,634 2,617 17 i
Licenses and Permits 5,200 5,043 157 3.1
Use of Money and Property 14,134 14,717 (583) “.0)
Intergovernmental Revenue 52,355 49,581 2,774 5.6
Charges for Current Services 12,901 11,392 1,509 133
Miscellaneous , 1,885 - __2.870 , (985} 343
TOTAL $290.081 3278305 . 317,776 6.4%
Increase(Decrease)
1999 1998 o Amount Percent
Expenditures (GAAP Basis) - _ -
General Government $37,352 $ 33,758 $3,594 10.7%
Neighborhood Services 7,202 5,949 £,253 21.0
Parks and Recreation 19,146 17,338 1,808 10.4
Buildings and Inspections 5,694 5,142 552 10.7
Public Safety 126,205 118,730 7,475 63
Public Works * 20,525 {20,525)
Transportation & Engineering 1,236 * 1,236
Public Services 20,830 » 20,830
Public Health 20,831 18,682 2,149 11.5
Employee Benefits 48,782 _49.997 (1.215) (2.4)
TOTAL $287.278 8270021 000 817157 6.4%

*The Department of Public Works was divided into the Department of Transportation & Engineering
and the Department of Public Services in 1999,
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Revennes
Income Tax

The 2.1% locally levied income tax applies to gross salaries, wages and other personal service compensation
earned by City residents, and to the same income of nonresidents earned while working in the City. Credits
against the tax are granted for residents employed outside the City who must pay a local income tax where they
work. The tax also applies to the net income of business organizations derived from business activities
conducted in the City.

The 2.1% tax is subdivided into four components. The first component is the latest increase of 0.1% enacted
July 1, 1988 to be spent only for the maintenance of the City's infrastructure. The second component is the
0.3% which can be used only for public transit purposes. The third component is 0.15% which can be used
only for permanent improvement purposes. The remaining 1.55% is first used to meet annual deficiencies in
the General Fund revenues and then to provide funds for capital or operating needs. Receipts from this tax
are directly related to employment levels and general economic conditions in the Cincinnati area. Collections
and allocations for the past three years were as follows (000's omitted):

1999 1998 1997

Gross Revenue (Non-GAAP Basis) $255,048 $243,177 $226,692
Refunds 7526 6.981 1018

Net Revenue $247,522 $236,196 $219,674
Allocated to Genera! Fund 180,500 164,300 160,270
Allocated to Transit Fund 35,360 33,742 31,381
Allocated to Permanent Improvement Fund 19,875 26,907 17,562
Allocated to Infrastructure Fund 11,787 11,247 10,461

Use of Money and Property

The benchmark for the City's general investments is a twelve-month moving average return on a two-year U.S.
Treasury Note. The benchmark ranged from 4.73% to 5.08%. For each month in 1999, the City consistently
had good returns by exceeding the benchmark from 0.35 to 0.55 percentage points. The 1999 rate of return
on all investments was 5.6%, which was consistent with the rate of return for 1998,

The total return for our Retirement System investment portfolio was 11.89% in 1999, The portfolio averaged
an annualized rate of return of 15.17% for the three-year period beginning January 1, 1997 through December
31, 1999. The City Retirement System implemented the choice of retirement formulas (2.5% versus 2.22%)
for members effective October 1, 1999. The system also increased benefits (including enhanced death and
survivor benefits and a 3% compounded catch-up cola) for retirees effective January 1, 1999.

Intergovernmental Revenue
The Intergovernmental Revenue category includes three major revenues -- Estate Tax, Property Tax
Reimbursements and Local Government Fund. Estate tax collected in 1999 was $19,721,000, which was

$2,459,000 higher than the amount received in 1998. Property tax reimbursements were less than the 1998
collections by $24,000, and Local Government Fund revenue increased $324,000 over 1998's collections.
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Expenditures

Expenditures have shown a year-to-year increase, driven in part by regularly granted, across the board, wage
increases of 2.5% to 3%. General Fund expenditures for 1999 increased 5.2% over 1998. Budgeted General
Fund expenditures appropriated for 2000 are $309.1 million, which is an increase of 4.3% over the total 1999
budgeted expenditures and transfers of $296.2 million. The most significant factors for the budget increase
are a 3% or $5.2 million general wage increase and $4.4 million for additional debt service. The additional
amount from General Fund sources for debt service in 2000 and beyond (an average of $5 million per year
through the 2000-2004 forecast period) will be used to assist in the retirement of debt for major new City
capital projects. These include Riverfront Redevelopment, Convention Center Expansion, Fort Washington
Way Reconstruction, and an 800-Megahertz Police and Fire Communication System. In 2000, the City expects
to begin making a $5 million per year payment for 20 years to the Cincinnati Public Schools in exchange for
the School Board’s blanket approval of certain tax abatements to encourage economic development. These
funds will be used for school facility improvements.

Working Capital Reserve and General Fund Balance

City Council established standards for a minimum working capital reserve account in 1984 to assure a strong
financial position and to protect Cincinnati's general obligation bond rating during periods of fiscal stress. The
policy called for achievement of a minimum reserve level, for emergency needs of a catastrophic nature, of
no less than 5% or more than 8% of general operating revenues by December 31, 1986. The targeted year-end
reserve level was achieved in January of each year 1985 through 1999. For 2000, the target reserve of $17.3
million (5.7% of 2000 estimated revenues) has already been achieved.

Proprietary Operations

The foliowing events and trends had a significant effect on the financial results of operations of the proprietary
funds:

Enterprise Funds

The Department of Water Works has 2,700 miles of water main in its system to deliver a safe, abundant supply
of water to its customers. In order to assure a continuous, reliable supply of water, the department replaces
the infrastructure at a rate of 25 miles or approximately 1% each year. In 1999, 26.8 miles of water mains were
replaced ranging in size from 6 to 48 inches in diameter.

The Water Works Department and an engineering consulting firm conducted leak surveys that resulted in the
repair of 58 leaks, saving a total of 2,265,000 gallons of water per day. The Water Works Department entered
into a contract with the City of Florence (Kentucky) Water & Sewer Department to provide water quality
laboratory services. The City obtained certification from the Kentucky Department of Natural Resources to
perform these analyses.

Both of the Water Works Department’s treatment plants now have a state-of-the-art Supervisory Control and

Data Acquisition System. With this upgraded system, operators and water quality scientists can monitor water
treatment, storage, and distribution systems from computers at many locations.
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The Convention Center received a rating of 4.5 out of a possible 5.0 on the annual post event customer surveys
in 1999. The annual goal was a 4.2 rating. The Convention Center hosted over 225 events, producing an
economic impact to the local economy of approximately $160 million.

The Stormwater Management Utility, a division of the Sewer Department, did $900,000 worth of maintenance
in addition to inlet cleaning . As part of the Sewer Department’s on-going maintenance program, storm
drainage inlets are cleaned or inspected in each community once every three years. All intakes are cleaned or
inspected twice per year; any inlet or intake that becomes clogged during the interim is cleaned as needed.
The Stormwater Management Utility also completed three capital projects in 1999.

Lunken Airport operates on 2 totally self-sustaining basis. An economic impact study update recently
conducted shows the Airport is responsible for over $235 million annually to the City’s economy. In 1999,
more than 3,700 jobs were influenced by airport operations. More than 600 people were employed at Airport
facilities that contributed over $500,000 annually in City payroli taxes.

Pension Trust Fund Operations

The operations of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System remained relatively stable in 1999. Pension net
investment income decreased 4.71% from 1998. The decrease is a result of reduced returns in both the U.S.
equity and U.S. fixed income markets that were partially offset by increased returns in the international equity
market. The annual actuarial valuation also continues to reflect a positive trend in the City's and employees'
funding of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System.

Debt and Bonds Issued

The gross debt at December 31, 1999 was $311 million, consisting of $123 million general long-term debt and
$188 million in self-supporting bonds and notes, as compared to $291 million at December 31, 1998. The net
tax supported debt at the end of the year was $112 million, which is $2 million less than the amount
outstanding at the end of the previous year. During 1999, $59,725,000 of bonds and notes matured and were
paid.

On May 19, 1999 City Council authorized the City Manager to amend the repayment terms of an April 30,
1998 note agreement the City had made with the Ohio Department of Transportation, State Infrastructure
Bank. The loan to the City has an original principal amount not to exceed $20,020,000 and was issued for the
purpose of paying a portion of the Fort Washington Way Improvement project. The terms of the original note
agreement required that the loan be repaid 18 month from the date of the initial disbursement under the note.
The initial disbursement was made on May 29, 1998, so the first payment would be required on November 29,
1699. Under the terms of the new loan agreement, the City is obligated to pay accrued interest and a principal
payment of $5,000,000 on February 1, 2000, which was paid. On February 1, 2001, the City shall make a
principal payment of $5,000,000. Thereafter, the note is payable as to principal and interest (5%), in 30 equal
semi-annual installments,

Standard and Poor’s rate the City’s general obligation bonds “AA+”. The City's bond rating by Moody's is

“Aal", their second highest rating. The ratings reflect the City’s strong financial management and healthy local
€oonomy,
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In 1999, $59,600,000 of general obligation bonds were sold. Dated May 1, 1999, the six bond issues sold at
a coupon rate of 4.2%, but with a bid premium of $118,611 the effective interest rate is 4.17%. The bonds
include tax supported issues of $14,100,000 for Street Improvements, $6,700,000 for Public Building
Improvements, $1,200,000 for Urban Redevelopment Improvements, $6,000,000 for Urban Renewal
Improvements and self supported issues of $29,800,000 for Water Works Impr0vements and $1,800,000 for
Stormwater Improvements.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in Certificates of Deposit with maturities ranging from 35
to 1,827 days; in FHLB/FNMA Securities with maturities ranging from 1,095 to 1,825 days; and in U.S.
Treasury Notes ranging from 338 to 1113 days to maturity. The average yield on maturing investments during
the year was 5.6% compared with a 1998 average of 5.6%. In 1999, the interest income from investments of
temporarily idle money totaled $22.8 million compared with $21.7 million in 1998.

The City's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive vield on
its portfolio. Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. One
hundred percent of the investments held by the City at December 31, 1999, are classified in the category of
lowest credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This percentage did not
change at any time during the year.

Risk Management

The City maintains a comprehensive all-risk property insurance program through a commercial carrier,
covering approximately $750 million in property values. The program contains a $100,000 deductible,
provides 100% replacement cost of property and has a maximum limit of $100 million for earthquake damage
and $100 million for flood damage.

Due to prudent management oversight, self-insured employee medical premiums for 1999 are the lowest since
1989. Since the inception of the self-insurance program in 1981, the premium increases have been well below
industry averages.

In addition, the Finance Department’s Division of Risk Management has continued its aggressive management
of the workers” compensation program. The City of Cincinnati obtained an 18% credit rating for 1999, which
resulted in a saving of approximately $1.4 million from the base rate calculated by the state.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

The firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP was selected in October 1999 to perform the City's audit for the five years

1999 to 2003. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements.
Their report is included herein.
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A single audit is an organization-wide financial and compliance audit that is conducted in lieu of the traditional
grant-by-grant multiple audits performed in the past. Federal law requires us to have this single audit of all
City activities; we have remained in compliance with this requirement since its inception in 1985. Deloitte
& Touche LLP conducted the single audit for the 1999 fiscal year.

Certificate of Achievement and Budget Award

During 1999, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cincinnati for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is
valid for a one-year period.

This is the 19th consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In 1979, for our 1978
annual financial report, we were the first governmental unit in Ohio to receive the Certificate. As of December
31, 1999, 97 municipal reporting entities in Ohio and only [,511 units nationwide are holders of the
Certificate. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA for their review.

We are equally proud of the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation earned by the City for our
1999/2000 biennial budget. Only eight cities in Ohio received this award for fiscal years beginning 1998 and
only 524 cities received the award nationwide.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was accomplished by the efficient and
dedicated services provided by the entire staff of the Department of Finance. Each member of the Department
has our sincere appreciation for the contribution made in the preparation of this report. Appreciation is also
expressed to those in other City departments for their cooperation and assistance in matters pertaining to the
financial affairs of the City. We hereby acknowledge and thank all who contributed their time and effort.

Respectfully,

P -
yNA
Timothy H. Riordan
Director of Finance
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Cincinnati,
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systerns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Executive Director
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The Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Cincinnati, OChio for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998,

The Certificate of Achievement is a
prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of
state and local government financial
reports. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a
governmental unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently
organized Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR), whose
contents conform to program
standards. The CAFR must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid
for a period of one year only. The
City of Cincinnati has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the
last nineteen consecutive years (fiscal
years ended 1980 - 1998). We
believe our current report continues
to conform to the Certificate of
Achievement program requirements,

and we are submitting it to the
GFOA.
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STATE OF OHIO 35 North Fourth Street, 1% Floor )

Columbus, Ohio 43215
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR - umbus, LA
- Telephone 614-466-4514

Jind PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370
- - Pacsimile 614-728-7398

Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Cincinnati

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the City of Cincinnati, Hamilton County,
prepared by Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit period January 1, 1999 through December 31,
1999, Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by
Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected
by the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the

Auditor of State, regulations and grant requirements. The City of Cincinnati is responsible for
compliance with these laws and regulations. )

Nitor of State

July 13, 2000



Deloitte &
Touche

’\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (513) 784-7100
A 250 East Fifth Street
P.0. Box 5340

Cincinnati, Ohio 45201-5340

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Cincinnati, Ohio and
Jim Petro, Auditor of State

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Cincinnati,
Ohio as of December 31, 1999, and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of
the City of Cincinnati, Ohio. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such general purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the City of Cincinnati, Chio as of December 31, 1999, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents, are presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the
City of Cincinnati, Ohio. These financial statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the
management of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio. Such additional information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

DelpitteTouche
Tohmatsu



The statistical data on pages 131 through 141 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio.
Such additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the general purpose financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Detestie, £ Toocha LLE
June 9, 2000
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust
December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Asgets
Cash and Equivalents
Receivables:
Due from Qther Funds
Due from Other Governments
Accounts, Net
Accrued Interest and Dividends
Total Receivables

Investments, at fair vaiue:
U. S. Government Bonds
U. 8. Government Agencies

U. S. Government Mortgage Backed Securities

Corporate Bonds
Stocks
Asset Backed Securities
Venture Capital
Commercial Paper
Total Investments, at fair value

Loans Receivable

Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Liabilities;
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Payroll
Accrued Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences

Total Liabilities

Net assets: ) -
Held in Trust for Employees’ Pension Benefits
Held in Trust for Employees' Posternployment

Healthcare Benefits

Combined Net Assets

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

1999 1998
$ 86,466 $ 93,561
32 118

240 324

34,161 7,880
9,770 10,245
44,203 18,567
171,466 198,390
83,287 46,023
233,910 217,958
168,010 152,760
1,844,195 1,666,592
85,573 85,588
14,130 8,220
29,073 3,680
2,620,644 2,379,211
22,850 23,187

27 17

(14) (11)
2,783,176 2,514,532
149,231 97,086
1,404 1,248

34 20

5,980 5,287

61 276

73 89

156,783 104,006
1,862,509 1,703,677
763,884 706,849

$ 2,626,393 $ 2410,526




CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust

For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Pension Healthcare Total Total
1999 1999 1989 1998
Additions: ) - - : '
Confributions:
Member 5 9,873 $ 3,261 $ 13,164 % 12,882
Employer 8,576 3,192 - 12,768 24,815
Total Contributions 19,449 §,483 25,932 37,697
lnvestment Income
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 162,428 54,143 216,572 236,995
Interest and Dividends 52,636 17,645 ‘ - 70,581 . 63,622
215,365 71,788 287,153 300,517
Less investment expense 5,269 1,756 7,025 6,543
Net investment income 210,096 70,032 . 280,128 293,974
Total Additions 229,545 76,515 308,060 331,671
Deductions:
Benefits Payments:
Pension and Annuities 67,626 67,626 61,473
Hospital and Medical Care 16,826 16,826 16,585
Medicare 1,987 1,987 1,921
Death Benefits, Active and Retired 1,078 1,078 411
Loss Due to Death of Members with Loans 8 8 24
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems . 0 101
Total Benefits Payments 68,712 18,813 87,525 79,515
Refunds of Contributions 1,285 428 1,713 2,336
Administration Expenses:
Personal Services 292 g7 389 378
Contractual Services 382 127 509 277
Maierials and Supplies 14 5 - 19 48
Other 25 9 34 50
Depreciation 3 1 4 3
Total Administration Expenses 716 239 955 756
Total Deductions 70,713 19,480 80,193 82,607
Net Increase (Decrease) 158,832 - 57,035 215,867 248,064
Net Assets held in Trust for Benefits
Beginning of Year 1,703,677 708,848 - 2,410,526 2,161,462
End of Year $ 1,862,508 $ 763,884 7 $ 2,626,393 $ 2,410,526

The accompanying notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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City of Cincinnati, Ohio
External investment Pool
Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 1999
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets _ -

Equity in City Treasury Cash

Net Assets ,

Net assets consist of:

Participant deposits
City of Cincinnati, Ohio
External Investment Pool
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year Ended December 31, 1999

(Amountis in Thousands)

Revenues , o o

Interest income
Fair value increases and decreases
Total revenues

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations
Distributions to participants

Participant deposits
Total increase in net assets resulting from operations
Net increase in net assets

Net assets beginning of period

Net assets end of period

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

For the year ended December 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Cincinnati is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. It is governed with the powers of home
rule by a council of nine members who are elected at large for two year terms. Cincinnati adopted a city
manager-council form of local government in 1926.

A. Reporting Entity

The City as a reporting entity consists of only one governmental unit. Cincinnati has no component units -
defined as entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.

The following organizations are included in the combined financial statements of the City because, under Ohio
law, they have limited corporate powers and are therefore not legally separate organizations:

Cincinnati Park Board

Cincinnati Recreation Commission
City Planning Commission
Cincinnati Board of Health

Civil Service Commission

Cincinnati owns 2 railway line, the Cincinnati Southern Railway, that was completed in 1881 and extends from
Cincinnati, Ohic to Chattanooga, Tennessee, a distance of 335 miles. Improvements have been made at
various intervals; the most recent, a major line revision to eliminate tunnel clearance restrictions, grades, and
curves, was completed in 1964. Improvements other than buildings in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group includes $83,224,000 attributable to the City’s cost to construct and improve this railway system. The
railway is leased to the Cincinnati, New Orleans and Texas Pacific Railway Company until December 31,
2026, with an option to extend the ease for an additional 25 years. The lessee is part of the Norfolk Southern
Railway System and is its second largest operating unit. Total rental income from the railway lease was
$15,256,000 in 1999 and $15,217,000 in 1998. )
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B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the City of Cincinnati for 1999 are prepared in accordance with standards
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These standards include the
effective pronouncements of the National Council on Governmental Accounting and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants which are considered to be "generally accepted accounting principles” for state
and local entities, until they are altered, amended, supplemented, revoked or superseded by a subsequent
GASB pronouncement. For Proprietary Funds, the City has elected only to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncemenis.

Fund and Account Groups

The City records its transactions in numerous individual funds and account groups to comply with the
limitations and restrictions piaced on both the resources made available to the City and the services provided.
These financial statements present all of the fund types and account groups of the City. Individual funds and
account groups summarized in the accompanying financial statements are classified as follows:

1) Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds are segregations of financial resources where the measurement focus is upon
determination of financial position and changes in that financial position. The City operates within a
biennial budget which is authorized by City Council through annual appropriations. The City’s records
show that revenues, actual and accrued expenditures, and encumbrances comply with legal, accounting
and budgetary restrictions.

The governmental fund types include:

General Fund - This is the primary operating fund for the City and it is used to account for all revenues
and expenditures which are not accounted for in other funds or account groups.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
funds for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for principal and interest on general obligation bonds
paid principally from taxes levied by the City. It also accounts for the servicing of general obligation
self-supporting bonds and for capital lease payments of governmental funds.

Capital Project Funds - These funds are used primarily to account for resources designated to construct
or acquire general fixed assets. Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general
obligation debt, federal and state grants and City income tax (see Note 10). It is the City's policy to use
the proceeds derived from the sale of bonds only for the capital improvement purpose detailed in the bond
authorizing ordinance and in accordance with state statutes. Any premium and accrued interest received
from the sale of bonds is deposited into the Debt Service Fund.

2) Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - These funds account for operations of entities that provide services, on a user charge
or other basis, to the general public or private organizations.

Internal Service Funds - These funds were established to account for the purchase and sale of goods or
services between City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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3)

4)

The measurement focus is on income determination or cost of services. All assets and liabilities are
included on the balance sheet, and the reported fund equity is an mdlcatlon of the economic net worth
of the funds involved.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a fiduciary
capacity. These funds include expendable and nonexpendable trust funds, a pension trust fund, an
external investment pool and agency funds. Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, and depreciation is
determined using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives (5-40 years).

Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets - Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental services are
recorded as expenditures in the fund making the expenditure and capitalized in the general fixed assets
account group. These assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated values which approximate
historical cost. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the time of acquisition.
Construction in Progress includes uncompieted infrastructure improvements; however, the cost of
completed infrastructure improvements is not included in the general fixed assets account group.
Accumulated depreciation is not reported on general fixed assets.

Proprietary Fund Types - Fixed assets in the proprietary funds are stated at historical cost (estimated fair
market value at time of acquisition for assets contributed). Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following lives are used:

‘Water Mains 100 years
Buildings and Improvements  25-70 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-40 years
Automotive Equipment 3 years

All fixed assets under construction and intended for uitimate use by a proprietary fund are recorded at
historical cost in the applicable proprietary funds.

General Long-Term Obligations

All unmatured long-term indebtedness other than that directly related to and expected to be paid from
proprietary or fiduciary funds is reported in the general long-term obligations account group. The general
obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition to the unmatured general
long-term indebtedness, it is the City's policy to record long-term liabilities of the governmental funds for
certain compensated absences, non-current obligations under capital leases, estimated claims and
judgments, and unfunded pension costs representing the City's commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

The financial statements included herein show the amount available in the debt service fund for debt

payment and the amount that must be provided in future vears for debt redemption and other long-term
liabilities.
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Measurement Focus

The governmental fund types utilize the flow of financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual
basis of accounting, with recognition of revenues in the accounting period in which they become measurable
and available.

Income taxes and delinquent property taxes for the current and prior periods are determined to be susceptible
to accrual and are recognized as revenue in the current accounting period. All other major revenues of
governmental funds are determined not to meet the criteria of either being measurable or available. Available
means they are collectible within the current reporting period or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities. Expenditures are recognized when the fund liability is incurred except for (1) inventories of
materials and supplies that may be considered expenditures either when purchased or when used, and (2)
prepaid expense items that may be considered expenditures either when paid for or when consumed.
Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory} contracts for goods and services. All
encumbrances that are outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year
expenditures and are not considered either expenditures or liabilities in the current period.

The proprietary fund type statements are prepared utilizing the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting for revenues, which are recognized when they are eamed, and for expenses,
which are recognized when they are incurred. Unbilled service receivables are recognized by proprietary funds
when the services are provided. '

The fiduciary fund types recognize revenue and expenditures/expenses on a basis consistent with the fund's
accounting measurement objective. Nonexpendable trust funds, the pension trust fund and the external
investment pool are accounted for on the accrual basis. Agency funds' assets and liabilities and expendable
trust fund transactions are accounted for on the modified accrual basis.

Budgetary Data

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for the General Fund and those Special Revenue Funds
(i.e. Health Services; Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair; Parking Meter; Cable T.V.; Income Tax
Infrastructure; Income Tax Transit; Motor Vehicle License; and Special Recreation) identified as appropriated
in the financial statements. Budgetary data for better management control exists over the Nonappropriated
Special Revenue Funds. The Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual does not include those Nonappropriated Special Revenue
Funds. The budgetary data reports included within the financial statements are prepared on a cash basis of
accounting, with the exception of certain accrued personal service and employee benefit costs. Encumbrances,
which do not lapse at year-end, are included as expenditures in the current year budget (Non-GAAP). The
budgetary process begins at least six months prior to the calendar year for which the budget is to be adopted,
with the City certifying the proposed budget to the County Auditor by July 20. By January 1, City Council
may adopt annual or temporary appropriation measures using, in part, the official certificate of estimated
resources approved by the County Budget Commission and tax rates certified by the County Auditor. By April
[, City Council must adopt annual appropriation ordinances. Appropriations lapse at year end.

The levels of appropriation control for each budgeted expenditure classification that may not be exceeded are:

personal services, non-personal services, capital outlay, and debt service. Any revisions that aiter the budgeted
expenditure classification of any division within a City department must be approved by City Council. During
the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.
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The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations and fund balances at the end of the year from
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) basis to the Non-GAAP budgetary basis are as follows:

(AMOUNT IN THOUSANDS)

As reported {GAAP basis)
Increase (Decrease) due to:
Revenues:
Received in 1999 and
earned in 1998
Received in 2000 and
earned in 1999
Expenditures:

Accrued December 31, 1998 and

paid in 1999

Accrued December 31, 1999 and

paid in 2000

Transfers out made in 1999
for 1998

Purchase of Inventory,
Current Year
Prior Year

Current Year Encumbrances

Prior Year Encumbrances
Expenditures related to
Prior Year Encumbrances

Cumulative Effect of Prior Year’s
Change in Accounting Principle

Adjustments for Non-
appropriated Special
Revenue Funds

{Non-GAAP) Budgetary Basis

Other Accounting Policies

Revenues and Other

Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures
And Other Uses
General Special
Fund “Revenue
$ 3572 $4,047
23,284 6,345
(20,002) (6,208)
(6,000) {1,073)
4,257 876
(60)
(324) (35)

(11,921) (3,192)

10,065 1,855

- 1.517

2871 §L098

Fund Balances
ec r 31
General Special
Fund Revenue

$59,852  $57,959

(20,002)  (6,208)

4,257 876
(60)

(324) (35)
(12) (119)

(11,921)  (3,192)
(1,246)  (1,496)

(659) (16)
(20,405)
$29.885  $27.364

A. Investments - The investments of the City (excluding the City of Cincinnati's Retirement System, see
Notes 2 and 17) are comprised primarily of time deposits and other securities guaranteed by the United
States Government or its agencies and are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

B. Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost using either the moving weighted average or the first-in,
first-out method. Inventory in the governmental funds and the proprietary funds are recorded using the
consumption method whereby inventories are recorded as expenditures or expenses when they are used.

21



C. Insurance - The City maintains a comprehensive all risk property insurance program that provides

E.

L

insurance coverage for approximately $781 million in property values. In addition certain enterprise
funds carry insurance coverage for specific purposes as determined by management. An estimated
liability for uninsured losses is reported as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 10 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues.
State law authorizes the issuance of judgment bonds to settle claims. The City's available legal debt
margin of $142 million at December 31, 1999, is considered adequate for catastrophic loss coverage.

Inter-Fimd Transactions - During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions
between funds including expenditures/expenses, advances and transfers of resources to provide services,
construct assets and service debt. The governmental and proprietary fund type financial statements
generally reflect such transactions as transfers or advances. The internal service funds record charges for
service to City departments as operating revenue. All City funds record these payments to the internal
service funds as operating expenditures/expenses. The proprietary funds record operating subsidies as
other income whereas the fund paying the subsidy records it as either an expenditure/expense or transfer.
Transfers are intended to reallocate money permanently from one fund to another. Advances are
intended to temporarily reallocate cash from one fund to another.

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the funds
involved. The General Fund provides administrative services to enterprise funds. The amounts charged
for those services are treated as revenue to the General Fund and as operating expenses in the enterprise
fund.

Deferred Revenues - The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for
recognition in the current period. Certain intergovernmental receivables, uncollected assessments and
miscellaneous receivables not meeting the availability criteria have been deferred and will be realized in
a subsequent period. '

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues - The proprietary fund types recognize the federal
reimbursement-type capital grants as intergovernmental receivables and contributed capital as the related
expenses are incurred. All other federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as intergovernmental
receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred.

Capitalization of Interest - Interest is capitalized by the City in proprietary fund types when it is
determined to be material. The City capitalizes interest in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 62, Capitalization of Interest Costs in Situations Involving Certain Tax-Exempt
Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants. This statement requires that the interest cost capitalized during
construction be reduced by interest income earned on investments of the bond proceeds from the date of
the borrowing until the assets constructed from the bond proceeds are ready for their intended use.

Statement of Cash Flows - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider
all highly liquid investments held by trustees, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased,
to be cash equivalents. In addition, all cash and temporary investments with the City Treasurer are also
considered to be cash equivalents since they are available to the proprietary funds on demand. The
temporary investments, primarily consist of certificates of deposit and U. S. Treasury securities that have
maturities of up to two years.

Total (Memorandum Only) - The amounts in the Total (Memorandum Only) columns of the combined
financial statements are a surnmation of the accounts of the fund types and account groups and are
presented solely to assist in financial analysis. Data included in the columns do not present financial
position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Eliminations of interfund transactions have not been made, and the data presented is not to be considered
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consolidated. In addition, the amounts in total are not to be interpreted as total resources and obligations
of the City of Cincinnati or sources and uses thereof. Comparative data for the prior year has also been
provided in the genera! purpose financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in
the City's financial position and operations. '

J. Pronouncements Issued Buf Not Yer Effective - Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement Number 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, was issued
in December 1998 and established accounting and financial reporting standards to guide state and local
governments’ decisions about when (in which fiscal year) to report the results of nonexchange
transactions. In a nonexchange transaction, a government gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in return. This Statement establishes more uniform recognition criteria
to promote greater consistency and comparability in financial reporting. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements
— and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, was issued in June
1999 and establishes new financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout
the United States. The statement will require the addition of management’s discussion and analysis and
government-wide financial statements, consisting of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.
Prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, these
statements should report al! of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and gains and losses of the
government. The new financial statements will include ail governmental and business-type activities,
but not fiduciary activities. Capital assets now reported in the general fixed assets account group will
henceforth be reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net
assets. Governments also will be required to report general infrastructure assets in this same column. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after june 15,
2001,

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS

The City of Cincinnati combines the cash balances in individual funds to form a pool of cash and investments.

Each fund reports its respective equity in City Treasury cash as an element of its resources. In addition, several
funds separately hold cash and equivalents and investments which are appropriately identified in the combined
balance sheet of the City. Earnings from the pooled cash and investments are allocated on a quarterly basis
to each participating fund based on month-end equity balances. The data presented in the accompanying
financial statements is for the City of Cincinnati as 2 whole.

Deposits

At year-end the carrying amount of the City's deposits, including certificates of deposit with various financial
institutions was $134,679,000 and the bank balance was $159,465,000. The entire bank balance is held in the
name of the City and is secured either by federal depository insurance or securities pledged as collateral and
segregated by the Federal Reserve Bank in a pledge account. The collateral is held by the City's agent in the
City's name; it cannot be released by the Federal Reserve Bank without the City's approval.

Statutes specify that the City Treasurer require institttions designated as a public depository to pledge and to
deposit with the Treasurer's office, as security for the payment of all public moneys to be deposited in the
public depository during the period of designation, eligible securities of an aggregate market value equal to
the excess of the amount of public monies that are at the time so deposited over and above such portion or
amount of such money as is at such time insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other
agency or instrumentality of the federal government. As an alternative, the City Treasurer may require such
institution to deposit with him surety company bonds which, when executed, shall be for an amount equal to
such excess amount.
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Excluded from these amounts are deposits held by the City’s Retirement System for which the year-end book
and bank balances totaled $86,466,000 and $80,637,000, respectively. These funds are not subject to the same
insurance and collateralization requirements as the City’s deposits and are uncollateralized.

Investments

The fair value of investments for the City at December 31, 1999 was $473,502,000. These investments
include $472,160,000 in U. S. Treasury Securities and $1,124,000 in Equity Securities. The City is legally
authorized to invest in obligations of the U.8. Treasury, federal agencies or instrumentalities, obligations of
the State of Ohio and its political subdivisions and repurchase agreements. All investments of the City of
Cincinnati are insured or registered, or are securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. The City
Treasurer may enter into a repurchase agreement of United States Treasury obligations or other obligations
for which the full faith and credit of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest, or
obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency. The City has not used reverse repurchase
agreements or derivatives as investment instruments.

Excluded from the City’s investments discussed above are assets held in trust by the City’s Retirement System
and Park Board. The fair value of investments for these funds at December 31, 1999 was $2,638,949,000.
These investments include $29,073,000 in Commercial Paper, $488,899,000 in U. S. Treasury Securities,
$270,032,000 in Corporate Bonds and Notes and $1,850,945,000 in Equity Securities. In those cases where
resources are maintained in trust, authority for investment of the property rests with either the trust agreement
or local ordinance. Investments of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System are, by ordinance, subject to
certain terms and limitations. The limitations do not apply to investments in securities of the City and federal
government or their agencies. Investments of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System are uninsured, with
securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

3. EXTERNAL INVESTMENT POOL

On April 10, 1968, the Board of County Commissioners of Hamilton County and the City of Cincinnati
consolidated all County and City sanitary sewer facilities, under the direction and control of the Board of
County Commissioners and the management and operation of the City. The cash balance in the fund
established for this purpose, the Metropolitan Sewer District fund (MSD), is combined with the City’s pool
of cash and investments. For the purposes of financial reporting, the MSD portion of the City’s pool of cash
and investments is reported as an External Investment Pool. Assets in the pool are reported at fair value based
on quoted market prices. The pool is not subject to regulatory oversight. Fair value amounts are determined
at year end. The City has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees to support the value of the
External Investment Pool. MSD is required by Chapter 301 of the Cincinnati Municipal Code to participate
in the External Investment Pool. Disclosures required by GASB Statement 3 are discussed in Note 2.

Summary by major investment classification:

Cost ~Fair Value  Interest Rate Maturity Dates
Money Market Fund $ 1,518 $ 1,518 5.59% - 6.25% OPEN
Certificates of Deposit 5,874 5,874 2.00% - 6.05% 01/04/00-8/11/04
U.S. Treasury Notes 21,096 - 20,991 4.00% - 6.25% 1/31/00-10/31/02
FHLB/FNMA Securities 2,200 2,138 5.00% - 6.34%  10/29/01-05/17/04
City of Cincinnati Notes 858 8§58 5.75% - 5.85% 12/01/02 - 12/1/04
Cash 327 327 _
Total $3i.873 £31,706
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4. INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS:
Due From Due To
Fund Type Other Funds Qther Funds
General $ 114 $ 1,053
Appropriated Special Revenue Health Services 17 22
Street Construction, Maintenance, and Repair 49 12
Parking Meter 211 9
Cable T.V. 7 7
income Tax Infrastructure 28
Motor Vehicle License 4 121
Special Recreation 2 2
Total Appropriated Special Revenue 250 201
Nonappropriated Special Revenue Recreation 1
Parks 1
Safely 4
Health 116 49
Community Development 2 74
DCepartment of Labor Grants 101 37
Other 43 24
Total Nonappropriated Special Revenue 262 190
Capital Project Bond 50
' Capital Projects 3,140 B &04
Total Capital Project 3,180 604
Enterprise Water Works 54 1177
Parking Facilities 4 219
Convention Center 744
General Aviation 165
Municipal Golf 5
Stormwater Management 56 66
Total Enterprise 114 2,376
Internal Service Purchasing - Reproduction and Printing 41
Muricipal Garage 841 1,539
Purchasing General Stores 112 1
Property Management 53
Self Insurance-Medical 1,404 11
Regional Camputer Center a71 13
Total Intemal Service 3,469 1,617
Trust & Agency Pension Trust 32 1,404
Agency 210 236
Total Trust & Agency 242 1,640
TOTAL $__ 7881 -
ADVANCES FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS:
- Receivable Fund . _Amount Payable Fund
General Fund $ 125 Purchasing Stores
General Fund 177 Property Management
General Fund 250 Nonappropriated-Other
Appropriated-Health Services M5 Nonappropriated-Health
Appropriated-Street Construction 495 General Fund
Norappropriated-Recreation 25 General Fund
Water Works 448 Municipal Garage
Parking Facilities 1,048 Capital Improvements
Convention Center 64 Capital improvements
General Aviation 481 Capitai Improvements
Munigipal Golf 124 ‘Capital Improvements
Stormwater Management 5,850 Capital Improvements
Regional Compuier Center 2,449 Capital Improvements
TOTAL 312,430
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains six enterprise funds which provide water, parking, convention center, airport, goif, and

stormwater services.

Segment information for the year ended December 31, 1999 for these funds Is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Operating Revenue
Depreciation and Amortization
Operating Income (Loss)
Operating Transfers In (Out)
Net income {Loss)
Current Capital Contributions
Plant, Property and Equipment:
Additions
Deletions

Net Working Capital

Total Assets

Bonds and Other Long-Term Liabilities:

Due to Other Governmental Agencies

Bonds Payable

Total Equity

T
Water Parking Convention General Municipal Stormwater Ent:rt:rlise
Works Facilties Center Aviation Golf  Management Funds

$ 85013 $ 7762 $ 4027 $ 1381 $ 6616 §$ 7,002 $ 111,81

10,732 1,331 3.000 550 397 1,343 17,353
23,601 2,058 (3.849) (192) 1,071 2,789 25,478
3 (843} (840)
22,188 1,171 (2,723) (95) 953 2,900 24,394
6,147 25 148 48 6,368
33,946 313 655 677 5,283 41,418
2,435 101 19 7 159 2,721
72197 3,100 3,189 1,502 1,616 4,467 85,971
512,567 30,614 44,499 26,032 10,193 41,833 665,738
3,137 3,157
110,940 2,685 3,145 7.000 123,770
382,064 26,755 43,052 25,649 6822 34,330 - 518,672
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6. LEASES
CITY AS LESSEE
A. Capital Leases L

The City has capitalized leases for the following property and equipment in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13 with the obligation recorded at the present value of future rental
payments. The related assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset.

Amounts relating to capitalized leases at December 31, 1999:

{(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) {nternal
Enterprise Service
Funds Funds
Leased Property/Equipment under Capital Leases $ 190 $2,085
Accumulated Amortization 18 743
Current Obligations under Capital Leases 57 754
Non-Current Obligations under Capital Leases 117 1,077

The following is a schedule of future minimum capital leases and the present value of the net minimum lease
payments at December 31, 1999:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) Internal General
Enterprise Service Long-term
Year _ . Funds " .. Funds . ..Obligations
2000 : $ 69 3§ 853 % 53
2001 69 622 30
2002 ’ 53 7520 30
2003 , 4 . 16
Total minimum lease payments 195 1,995 129
Less: Amounts representing interest 21 164 23 ) )
Present value of net minimum
lease payments $.174 g 1,831 $_106
Capital Lease Payments - 1999 §_21 3 818 $ 14

B. Operating Leases

The City has entered into various leases for property, equipment and office space. These leases are considered
for accounting purposes to be operating leases. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Year Amount
2000 $1,572
2001 1,538
2002 . 1,119
2003 - 285
2004 : 151
Remaining years 62
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments 4227
Operating Lease Payments - 1999 - , . L7271

27



CITY AS LESSOR

The City has entered into various contractual agreements for the rental of properties to various commercial
enterprises, which are reported as operating leases for accounting purposes.

Amounts relating to the operating leases as of December 31, 1999 are included in the financial statements of
the following:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) T
Enterprise General Fixed
__Funds : _Assets Account Group
Land $ 538 3 2,050
Buildings 3,675 2,948
Improvements 38 83,264
Accumulated Depreciation 2,307

Future minimum rentals on non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 1999 are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Special Capital
Enterprise  Debt Service Revenue  General  Projects

2000 $ 789 $ 15256 $ 373 $ 42 3 17
2001 678 15,256 384 44 18
2002 ' 537 15,256 210 44 8
2003 : 458 15,256 36 .45
20604 423 15,256 45

Remaining years 1,753 411915 _ 45

Total Future Minimum Rental Payments $4.638 £488.195 $1.003 $ 265 $ 43

Total Rentals for 1999: .5 927 $ 15,256 -$ 346 -3 62 $ 15

Future minimum rentals of the Debt Service Fund are contingent upon changes in the Gross National Product's
implicit price deflator with a cap of + 4% but not iess than $11,000,000 annually.

Enterprise Funds o S . o

The General Aviation rentals do not include contingent rentals which may be received on the basis of hours
or usage in excess of stipulated minimums. Terms of the leases are normally on a five year basis with renewal
options not to exceed fourteen years.

General Fixed Assets Account Group

In late 1992, the City purchased an office building across from City Hall. Currently 25% of that building is
leased to tenants. Their leases extend for seven years and include renewal options.

The City-owned railway line, the Cincinnati Southern Railway, is leased to the Cincinnati, New Orleans, and
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Texas Pacific Railway Company until December 31, 2026, with a renewal option of twenty-five years.

During 1995, the City entered into a lease involving land with American Commercial Marine. The lease is
for ten years, beginning January 1, 1996 and ending December 31, 2005.

In 1997, the City renewed a iease with Columbia Development Corporation for property adjacent to Whetstone
Alley. The lease is for five years, beginning June 1, 1997, and ending May 31, 2002.

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The City's long-term debt outstanding and other long-term obligations are reflected in the general long-term
obligations account group and in the proprietary funds. Revenues from all sources have been sufficient to meet
all of the City's debt service requirements.

General Long-Term Debt _

The composition of this long-term debt is general obligation bonds and notes and revenue bonds. The general
obligation debt is subdivided into tax-supported, self-supported and revenue supported debt. Annually, City
Council authorizes the property tax rates required to be levied to service the tax-supported debt. The self-
supported debt is serviced by revenues received from municipal income taxes and agreements in effect and
includes the following types: $23 million from the pledge of municipal income taxes, $11.1 million from
contractual agreements, and $14 miliion from urban renewal tax increment payments. The Debt Service Fund
records all revenues and expenditures for the City's general long-term debt. Expenditures of this fund include
principal and interest payments on bonded indebtedness and expenses related to the administration of the fund.

Enterprise Funds

There are various issues of general obligation bonds included in the enterprise funds. The general obligation
bonds are serviced by water, stormwater, golf and parking facilities user charges. Should such user charges
be insufficient for debt service, the principal and interest would be paid from the levy of ad valorem taxes on
all property in the City without limitation as to the rate or amount.

Defeasance of Cincinnati Southern Railway Bonds

On September 26, 1990, City Council authorized the execution of an escrow trust agreement for the purpose
of defeasing the Cincinnati Southern Railway Improvement Bonds. The defeasance of the bonds was
accomplished by making a payment of $6,762,000 to an irrevocable trust maintained by the escrow trust agent.
The monies used for making this payment had been accumulating in a reserve account specifically established
for the retirement of the Cincinnati Southern Railway Improvement Bonds. As a result, the lability for these
bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. The outstandmg balance
of the debt was paid off during 1999.

29



Annnal Long-Term Debt Requirements _ e .

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 1999, including interest
payments of $84,625,000 are as presented below:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) General Obligation
Year Ending Govermnmental Funds _ Enterprise Funds
December 31 Principal Interest Principal , Interest
2000 - $29,939 $9,024 $ 16,481 $6,130
2001 26,738 7,530 16,131 5,262
2002 29,819 6,240 16,189 4,420
2003 18,593 - 4,738 16,223 3,575
2004 19,063 3,852 13,588 2,729
2005-2009 35,588 9,829 _. 35,358 5,754
2010-2014 8,330 .3,875. . 9,800 1,218
2015-2019 3.953 965 ' A .
Total $174,023 $46,053 $123.770 $29.088
Year Ending Revenue Bonds ,
December 31 . Principal Interest Total
2000 $ 433 3 992 62,999
2001 527 958 57,146
2002 567 919 58,154
2003 617 ] 873 44,619
2004 668 i "~ 823 40,723
2005-2009 o 4,203 T3,232 93,964
2010-2014 4,219 1,562 290,004
2015-2019 1,545 125 8,388
Total $12.779 £9.484 $395.197

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
January 1

General Obligation

Bonds $165,097

Tax Supported Notes 6,403
Revenue Bonds 13,123
Estimated Liability for

Compensated Absences 59,058
Estimated Liability for

Unpaid Claims 2,674
Non-Current Obligations

under Capital Leases
Police and Fire

Prior Service Cost 59,204
Total Changes in Long-
Term Obligations $305,339

Balance
Additions

$28,000
" 19,900
17,584
2,437
67

— 2,493

30

Reductions
$30,377
15,000

344
19,153

1,692

Balance

_ December 31

$162,720
11,303
12,779
57,489
3,419

67

58.505



Bonds and Notes Outstanding at December 31, 1999

{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Amount Amount
. Original Due Outstanding
Description Interest Rates Issue Dates _ Maturity Dates Issues 2000 12/31/99
Bonds:
General Property Tax 3.25% 1957-1961 2001-2007 3 6,000 § 145 3 410

Supported 4.1% to 5% 1971-1999 2000-2009 _ 122,700 13,455 83,930

5.15% to 5.25% 1992-1995 2000-2005 30,700 3,500 _ 11,900
5.625% to 6% 1984-1991 2001-2004 19,560 1,830 3,985
6.7% 1990 2000 14,300 1,500 1,500
7.875% to 8% 1985-1987 2000-2017 39,000 . 1,600 18,600

Various Rate Issues 5.25%to0 6.2% 1991 2004 7,085 545 2,725
Urban Redevelopment

Various Rate Issues 4.8% 10 6.3% 1995 © 2015 3,250 100 2,895
Municipal Income Tax 4.375% 10 5.375% 1992-1998 2002-2004 . 22,400 . 2,950 11,650
Recreational Facilities 5.15% to 6.75% 1977-1995 2002-2011 8,598 ) 574 3,935
iJrban Renewal 4.1% to 4,375% 1996-1999 2001-2004 9,000 1,800 7,200

4.75%t0 5.15% 1995-1997 2000-2007 7.000 1,400 3,400
6.75% 1990 2005 . 1,500 100 600

Various Rate Issues 5.75% 10 6.3% 1991 2008 3,900 240 2,790
Urban Development Taxable

Various Rate Issues 5% 10 6.25% - 1998 2019 7,200 .. 200 7,200
Total General Long-Term - -

Obligations 302,133 29,939 162,720
Recreational Facilities 4.6% to 5.375% 1972-19%4 2002-2007 6,302 531 ) 3,145
OfT Street Parking 6.75% 1990 2006 " 5,000 350 2,450

8% 1985 2000 3,500 235 235

Water Works 4.1% to 6.5% 1275-1999 “2000-2014 116,000 10,050 88,580

6.7% t0 6.75% 1989-1990 2004-2006 37,000 2,450 14,600

7% 1988 2003 28,000 1,940 7,760

Stormwater 4.2 t05.15% 1995-1999 2005-2007 8,800 925 7,000
Total Proprietary Fund

Obligations 204,602 16,481 123,770
Total General Obligation

Bonds Payable 506,735 46,420 286,490
Notes: 7
Municipatl Income Tax 5.75t05.85 1999 2004 11,303 0 . 11,303
Total General Obligation Bonds 7

and Notes Payable $ 518,038 § 46420 3 297,793
Revenue Bonds Various {990-1998 2000-2016 b 13375 % 433 §% 12,779
Total Outstanding Debt $ 310,572

31



The following changes occurred in long-term debt for both governmental and proprietary funds:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
General Revenue

Obligation _Bonds
Bonds and Notes Qutstanding January 1, 1999 - $278,018 $13,123
Notes Issued 19,900
Bonds Issued 59,600 :
Bonds Retired (44,725) (344)
Notes Retired {15,000) ,
Bonds and Notes Qutstanding at December 31, 1999 $297.793 §£12.779

Compensated Absences B ) . .

GASB Statement No. 16 requires state and local governments to recognize the liabilities associated with
employees' compensated absences. Therefore, the following obligations have been included in the
Comparative Schedule of General Long-Term Obligations.

Vacation - Vacation benefits are considered to be vested benefits of the employees. The
obligation at December 31, 1999 for vacation benefits of the governmental funds
is approximately $21,691,000.

Sick Leave - Sick leave benefits are included in the estimated liability for ail employees, based
upon the portion of accumulated sick leave liability estimated to eventually be paid
as a retirement or death benefit. At December 31, 1999 this liability is
approximately $16,516,000. )

Compensatory Time - Employees of the governmental funds are permitted to accumulate compensatory
time for work in excess of their normal forty hour work week. The amount of this
obligation at December 31, 1999 is approximately $19,282,000.

The following is a Summary of the Changes in the Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences of the City
of Cincinnati for the year ended December 31, 1999.

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Accrued Compensatory

Vacation . . SickPay . __Time . Total
Estimated Liability for
Compensated Absences,
January 1, 1999 $22,170 $17,475 $19,413 $£59,058
Eamed During 1999 10,272 1,271 6,041 17,584
Used During 1999 (10,751) (2,230) (5,138) (18,119)
Funded in Non-Appropriated ' T
Special Revenue Fund ‘ {1.034) . . (1.034)
Estimated Liability for
Compensated Absences,
December 31, 1999 $21.691 $16,516 - $19.282 $57.480
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State Infrastructure Bank Loan

On May 19, 1999 City Council authorized the City Manager to amend the repayment terms of an April 30,
1998 note agreement the City had made with the Ohio Department of Transportation, State Infrastructure
Bank. The loan to the City has an original principal amount not to exceed $20,020,000 and was issued for the
purpose of paying 2 portion of the Fort Washington Way Improvement project. The terms of the original note
agreement required that the loan be repaid 18 month from the date of the initial disbursement under the note.
The initial disbursement was made on May 29, 1998, so the first payment would be required on November 29,
1999. Under the terms of the new loan agreement, the City is obligated to pay accrued interest and a principal
payment of $5,000,000 on February 1, 2000. On February 1, 2001, the City shall make a principal payment
of $5,000,000. Thereafter, the note is payable as to principal and interest (5%), in 30 equal semi-annual
installments. The balance of the loan was $9,056,000 at December 31, 1999 and is included in “Due to Other
Governmental Agencies” in the Capital Projects Fund.

8. RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS

Included in the general purpose financial statements are certain enterprise funds and internal service funds with
retained eamings deficits as of December 31, 1999. The net retained earnings deficits in the two enterprise
funds of Convention Center {§21,663,000) and General Aviation ($1,224,000) are to be covered by fufure user
charges and contributions from other City funds. The net retained earmnings deficits in the internal service
funds of Regional Computer Center ($4,653,000) and Municipal Garage ($538,000) are to be covered by
future user charges.

9. DEBT LIMITATION

The City's "indirect” (ten mill) debt limit was removed by decision of the Ohio courts. In September 1977,
the Supreme Court of Ohio dismissed an appeal from the decision of the Court of Appeals, First Appellate
District, Hamilton County, Ohio, involving the City's debt limitations. In summary, the City instituted a test
case against the Director of Finance for the purpose of obtaining a definitive construction of certain sections
of the City Charter bearing on the right of the City to levy taxes in excess of the ten mill limitation of Section
5705.02 of the Ohio Revised Code. As a result of the Court decision, the City has the right to levy property
taxes without limitation to support its lawfully issued bonds and notes, and the City's ability to incur debt will
be limited only by the arithmetical (percentage) limitations set forth under Section 133.03 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 133.03 provides that the principal amount of both voted and unvoted debt of the City may not exceed
10-1/2% of the City's assessed valuation, and the principal amount of the City’s unvoted debt may not exceed
5-1/2% of the City's assessed valuation. The Code also provides several exemptions of debt from the 5-1/2%
and 10-1/2% limitations.

10. TAXES

City Income Tax

This locally levied tax applies to gross salaries, wages and other personal service compensation earmed by
residents both in and out of the City and to eamings of nonresidents (except cerfain transients) eamned in the
City. It also applies fo net income of business organizations for business conducted in the City. The tax is the
largest single source of General Fund revenue.

The City's income tax of 2.1% is subdivided into four components. The first component is the latest increase
of .1% enacted July 1, 1988, to be spent only for the maintenance of the City’s infrastructure. The second
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component is the 3% which can be used only for public transit purposes, including both capital and current
operating expense. The third component is .15%, which can be used only for permanent improvement
purposes. The remaining 1.55% is first used to meet annual deficiencies, to the extent required, in the General
Fund. The amount of the 1.55% income tax revenue over the fixed allocation to the General Fund at the end
of any year is recognized as revenue in the Income Tax Permanent Improvement Fund. The unused amount
can be carried forward for subsequent year capital or operating needs.

Actual collections of $182,695,000 for the 1.55% portion in 1999 were more than the original allocation of
$180,500,000 for the General Fund. Consequently, the excess collections of $2,195,000 were transferred to
the Permanent Improvement Funds. The following table identifies the excess 1.55% income tax collections
for the years 1995 through 1999: ' ' - -

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Actual Collections
Collections Allocation inn Excess of
Year = of 1,55% 1o General Fund Allocation
1995 $148,203 $144,445 $3,758
1996 156,553 149,670 6,883
1997 162,140 " 160,270 1,870
1998 174,335 164,300 — ... 10,035
1999 182,695 . 180,500 2,195
Property Taxes

The assessed valuation of property within the City subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes includes real
property, public utilities property and tangible personal property. The assessed value upon which the 1999
levy was based was $3,749,678,000, $398,950,000 and $664,939,000 for real property, public utility property
and tangible personal property, respectively (per Hamilton County Auditor). The City's property taxes are
collected by the Hamilton County Auditor and are remitted to the City on a periodic basis. Real property taxes
collected in any calendar year are generally levied on assessed values as of January 1 of the preceding year
according to the following calendar:

Property Tax Calendar - 2000

Lien date January 1, 1999
Levy date October 31, 1999
First installment payment due January 31, 2000
Second instaliment payment due June 20, 2000

Assessed values are established by the County Auditor, at no more than 35% of appraised market value. The
laws of the State of Ohio presently require that all property be revalued no less than every six years, at any time
the County Auditor finds that true or taxable value thereof has changed, and in the third calendar year
following the year in which a sexennial reappraisal is completed if ordered by the State Commissioner of Tax
Equalization. Real property was reappraised during 1999 with the results affecting collections beginning in
2000. The City recognizes the property taxes due to be paid in 2000 as deferred revenue since the first
settiement date is more than sixty days after year-end and does not meet the availability criteria for accrual.

Public utilities property taxes in any calendar year are those levied on assessed values as of December 31 of

the preceding year. Tangible personal property of public utilities is generally assessed at 100% of true value.
Tangible personal property used in business, other than public utilities, is assessed at 25% of true value.
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11. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

During the year, contributed capital increased (decreased) by the following amounts:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Source

Federal Grants

City Capital Appropriations
Capital Contributed by
Customers and Developers
Depreciation on contributed
assets acquired with
capital grants

Total Changes to Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital, January 1

Contributed Capital, December 31

QUITS

Federal Grants
City Capital Appropriations

Capital Contributed by Customers &

Developers

Depreciation on contributed assets
acquired with capital grants

Total Changes to Contributed Capital

Contributed Capital, January 1

Contributed Capital, December 31

Water
Works Fagilities Center

3

Parking

Convention

General Municipal

Aviaﬁon Q_QE
$ 148 3

$ $
25 48
6,147
@ 60 Q4 | @) _
5885 (5 (1,145 ©5) 48
20,754 8.695 63.860

26968 1,242

$26.630 38670 64715 26873 51220

Regional

Purchasing Municipal Computer

Purchasing
Stormwater Printing
Management Services Stores
$ $ $
i 5
) 1 5
2.348 24 _
$2.348 323 3.3

35

Garage Cepter - Tota)

s $ $ 148
10 1,923 2,112
6,147

, {941} (2.641)
110 982 = 5,766

3,074 19916 148881
$3.184  $20808 $154.647



12. CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets for 1999 is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 L Additions Deletions 1999
Land $114,056 $22,430 $ 453 $136,033
Buildings 125,743 4,214 137 129,820
Improvements 182,050 24,378 6,631 199,797
Machinery and
Equipment 57,695 2,795 1,459 - 759,031
Construction in )
Progress 194.647 . 149.481 22,202 288,566
Total $674,191 $203.208 $64242 - $813,247

Construction in Progress at December 31, 1999 is comprised of the following:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Project Expended to. Required

Authori- December 31, Future
Administering Department Zations . 1999 Committed Einancing
Transportation & Engineering $306,400 $186,615 - $119,785 $106.907
Economic Development 66,222 41,144 25,078 14,190
Evaluation and Budget 106 93 13
Neighborhood Services 25,465 15,320 . 10,145 I
Recreation 29,922 . 10,715 19,207 8,003
Safety 3,126 740 2,386 1,500
Parks 14,818 6,867 7,951 3,626
Public Services 9,302 - 5,034 4,268 16
Other 42444 . 22.038 . _20400 S .
Totals $497,805 $288,566 $209.239 $134.321

The above amounts expended at December 31, 1999 inciude cash-basis expenditures only and do not reflect
payables at that date. Required future financing represents State and Federal commitments in support of City
projects.

36



A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment at December 31, 1999, is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) Total Total
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds

Land § 25,124 $ 133
Buildings 242,065 272
Improvements 324,352 133
Machinery and Equipment 126,782 26,448
Construction in Progress : 85,6438
Property Acquired under Capital Leases 190 . __2.085

Total 804,161 29,071
Accumulated Depreciation (272,964} (13,608)
Accumulated Amortization (13) _ (743)

Net $531.179 $14.720
Construction in Progress at December 31, 1999 is comprised of the following:
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Project Expended to Required
Authori- December 31, Future

Enterprise Fund i ] ~ zations 1999 . Committed  Financing
Water Works $100,186 $69,120 $31,066 b
Parking Facilities 2,564 1,516 1,048
Convention Center 3,507 1,851 1,656 2,328
General Aviation 3,842 2,031 1,811 1,499
Municipal Golf 126 3 123
Stormwater Management 16977 11,127 - _3.850
Totals $127202  $35.648 $41,554  $3.827

In July 1997, the Cincinnati Water Works (CWW) entered into an agreement with AssetWorks, Incorporated
{AWT) to provide a Work Order Resource Management Solution and Stores Inventory Management System for
the CWW. AWI failed to adequately perform its professional services under the agreement and failed to cure
material breaches of the agreement. The CWW decided that it was necessary to abandon the AWI application
software and purchase new application software. The CWW is entitled to, and received in April 2000, the full
amount of the letter of credit posted by AWI ($1,941,000) in order to recover a portion of the replacement costs
and other damages. The letter of credit posted by AWI is included in accounts receivable as of December 31,
1999. The CWW recorded a non-cash charge of $1,769,000 to write-off the remaining carrying value of costs
related to the development of the AWI Work Order Resource Management Solution and Stores Inverntory
Management System.
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13. RECEIVABLES

Accounts Receivable are presented in the general purpose financial statements net of the allowance for
uncollectible accounts. The uncollectible accounts related to the General Fund at December 31, 1999, are as
follows: Taxes Receivable ($1,886,000) and other accounts receivable ($423,000). The uncollectible accounts
related to the Debt Service Fund at December 31, 1999 are Taxes Receivable ($1,734,000). The balances of
the allowance accounts of the proprietary funds as of December 31, 1999 are as follows: Water Works
($2,080,000), Regional Computer Center ($137,000), Convention Center ($67,000), Municipal Goif ($7,000),
Parking Facilities ($3,000), and Stormwater Management ($3,902,000).

Loans receivable of the special revenue funds are made from revolving type loan accounts financed by
allocations from the City's Community Development Block Grant. Federal regulations provide that the grantor
maintains the ownership of the City's Community Development Block Grant funded revolving loan portfolio;
accordingly, revolving loan fund transactions do not affect the operating statement. A small number of the
special revenue loans, with a value of $2,380,000, were made from Housing and Urban Development Section
108 funds and do not involve a revolving type loan account. The loans are repaid to the federal government.
If the borrower fails to repay the loan, the City's Community Development Block Grant funds may be used to
repay the federal government. The total amount receivable for the special revenue loans is offset by an
allowance for uncollectible loans receivable. Special revenue loans receivable at December 31, 1999 total
$59,200,000. — T '

Loans receivable of the capital project funds receive similar treatment to the special revenue funds' loans
receivable, in that the total amount receivable is offset by an allowance for uncollectible loans receivable. The
balance of the loans receivable at December 31, 1999 is $521,000. This amount is related to Goodall Properties
Lid. o . . L

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Federal and State Grants

The City has received Federal and State grants in excess of $102 million for specific purposes that are subject
to review and audit by the grantor agencies or their designee. Such audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior
experience, the City Administration believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City as of December 31, 1999. A liability of $3.4 million
was recorded for those claims and judgments as of December 31, 1998. Over the past decade, the City has
averaged annual payments of $1,234,000 for claim and lawsuit settlements. Adequate funds have been provided
annually to meet the claims paid both from the General Fund and restricted funds of the City. In the City
Solicitor's opinion, there is no foreseen problem in having adequate resources to settle presently known cases.
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15. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; employee health claims; unemployment compensation claims; and environmental
damage. The City purchases commercial insurance to cover losses due to: theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets
and purchases general liability insurance for specific operations and professional liability insurance for certain operations.
All other risks of loss are self-insured by the City. There has been no reduction in insurance coverage from coverage in
{998. Insurance settlements for claims resulting from the risks covered by commercial insurance have not exceeded the
insurance coverage in any of the past three years,

The City of Cincinnati provides the choice of three separate health insurance plans for its employees. All of the plans are
self-insured and accounted for as an internal service fund. This internal service fund, titled "Self Insurance - Medical"
has been in existence since 1980. Operating funds are charged a monthly rate per employee, by type of coverage.

In 1990, the City began to account for and finance its risk of Joss due to workers' compensation claims and established an
internal service fund titled "Self Insurance - Workers' Compensation". Workers' compensation is administered by the State
under a retrospective rating plan. The City reimburses the Bureau of Workers' Compensation for injured workers' claims.
All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the internal service fund based on the experience
premium that would normally be charged by the Bureau of Workers' Compensation. Changes in the balances of claims
liabilities and claims adjustment expenses during 1999 and 1998 are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
General Water Works  Parking Facilities Convention Municipal Capital
Fund Fund Fund Center Fund Golf Fund  Projects Fund
1999 1998 1999 1?98 1959 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998
Balance at $327 § 218 $60 $70 $2 8 $7 $27 $5 $i8 S $

January 1
Current-Year

Claims and

Changes in

Estimates 392 1,253 64 30 24 8 (19 9 1 4,160
Claim Payments (43D (1.i49) (67 40 (23) 3 an @ &y aa 0
Balance at ‘ - T - T

December 31 £288 §337 347 5.60 $3 5_4 £4 £ 7 $35 $3 S

Stormwater Income Tax Self Insurance Workers General
Management [nfrastructure Medical Compensation Long-Term
Fund Fund Fund Fund Obligations Totals
199% 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 199¢ 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998
Balance at $ 3 590 £ 0 §$ 1 £8,401  $7.579 22,568 20,866 $2,674 $3,140 334,047 $31,936

January 1
Current-Year

Chaims and

Changes in -

Estimates 15 6 26 4 30,841 25,448 361 2,660 2,437 (456) 38,337 128,930
Claim Paymenis (4 3 (13) {15y {30,409 (24,@26] 58 { 958y {1,§92) {10) (32,611 (26819
Bafance at

December 31 §.4 §.3 $13 5._ 58833 § 84001 522987 §22.568 MMMM
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The claims liabilities at December 31, 1999 for the Internal Service Funds above (Self-Insurance Medical and
Workers Compensation) are included in the following liabilities in the balance sheet:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Self Insurance Workers
Medical Compensation

Accounts Payable $2,822 : 5
Due to Other Funds 1
Accrued Liabilities 5,535
Estimated Liability

For Unpaid Claims 6.000 ) 17.452
Total $8.833 $22,987

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 20, 2000, City Council authorized the taking of bids on $75,885,000 of general obligation bonds
to be dated April 1, 2000.- The six bond issues sold at coupon rates from 5.0% to 5.375%, but with a bid
premium of $184,839 the effective rates were from 4,57% to 5.55%. The bonds include tax supported issues
of $55,125,000 for Street Improvements, $3,870,000 for Public Building Improvements, $6,000,000 for
Urban Renewal [mprovements, $5,330,000 for Parks and Recreation Improvements, and municipal income
tax supported issue of $5,560,000 for Urban Redevelopment Improvements,

On January 20, 2000, City Council authorized the negotiating of a sale on $42,000,000 of general obligation
bonds to be dated March 1, 2000. The bonds were issued for the purpose of providing funds to prepay, at a
discount rate, the City’s accrued liability to the State’s Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pension Fund. The
bond issue sold at coupon rates from 4.10% to 5.95% with the effective rates from 4.10% to 5.97%.
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17. PENSION AND RETIREMENT

City employees are covered by one of three pension systems. They are the Police and Firemen's Disability and
Pension Fund and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which are State pension systems, and the
City of Cincinnati's Retirement System. Each of these three systems Is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan.

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund

Plan Description

Police and Fire Fighters of the City of Cincinnati are members of the State Police and Firemen s Disability
and Pension Fund. The City of Cincinnati contributes to the (PFDPF), a cost -sharing multipie-employer
defined benefit pension plan. PFDPF provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Contribution requirements and benefit
provisions are established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohic Revised
Code. The PFDPF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial information and required
supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to PFDPF, 140 East Town
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 10.0% of their annual covered salary, while the City of Cincinnati is
required to contribute 19.5% and 24% respectively for police officers and fire fighters. The City of
Cincinnati s contributions to PFDPF for the vears ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$23,961,000, $22,346,000 and $21,377,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year
including the installment payments on the unfunded prior service cost.

The PFDPF has informed the City that the City's only unfunded prior service cost of the fund is the deficiency
existing at the time the fund was established in 1967 as determined by actuarial evaluation. The following
table reflects the unfunded prior service cost for Police Officers and Fire Fighters at December 31:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
1999 1998
Police $28,619 £28,961
Fire 29.886 30.243
Total unfunded prior service cost $58.505 $39.204

As prescribed by Section 742.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, this accrued liability has been budgeted and paid
from the General Fund over a term of sixty-seven years in annual installments which began in 1969 and which
would end in 2036. At December 31, 1999, thirty-six years remain in which semi-annual installments fixed
by the fund's Board of Trustees at $781,000 and $815,000 would have been paid for Police and Fire Fighters,
respectively. The accrued liability for the unfunded prior service cost is included in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group at December 31, 1999.

On March 1, 2000 the City sold bonds for the refunding of the City’s obligation for the employer’s accrued
liability . Pursuant to Section 742.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, the City and the PFDPF (the Fund) have
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entered into an agreement whichs permits the City to make a one-time payment to the Fund for the purpose
of extinquishing the City’s obligation to the Fund for employer’s accrued liability. The payment amount is
$41,454,863.83 which represents 68% of the first $500,000 of the employer’s accrued liability and 70% of
the balance, plus accrued interest on the full amount of such accrued liability from March 1, 2000 to the date
of payment.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information

The fund provides postemployment health care coverage to any person who receives or is eligibie to receive
a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. The health care coverage
provided by the police and firefighters' retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit
(OPEB). A portion of each employer’s contribution to the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund
is set aside for the funding of postemployment health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory
authority ailowing the fund's board of trustees to provide health care coverage to all eligible individuals.
Health care funding and accounting are on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 1999, 7% of covered payroll was used
to pay retiree health care expenses. )

The number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December 31, 1998 was 11,424 for
police and 9,186 for firefighters. The portion of the City's contributions that was used to pay postemployment
benefits was $3,856,465 for police and $2,927,826 for firefighters. Total health care expenses of the fund for
the year ending December 31, 1998, were $78,596,790.

State PERS
Plan Description

Only City employees who were members in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) or
another Ohic State Retirement System prior to their City employment, City personnel employed in the building
crafts trade since 1961, elected officials and certain part-time employees are enrolled in PERS.

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised
Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to PERS, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or calling (614) 466-2085.

Funding Policy

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. Empioyees
contribute 8.5% of their annual compensation. The City's contribution rate for 1999 was 13.55% of covered
payroll; 9.35% was the portion used to fund pension obligations and 4.20% was used to fund health care for
1999. City of Cincinnati’s contributions to PERS for the vears ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997
were $1,717,000, $1,417,000 and $1,406,000 respectively equal to the required contributions for each year.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information
PERS provides postemployment health care coverage to age and service retirants with ten or more years of

qualifying service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is
availabie. The health care coverage provided by PERS is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit
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(OPEB). A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of postemployment
health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions.

OPEB are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings there on. The contributions
allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

Expenditures for OPEB during 1999 were $523,599,349. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated
net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9,870,285,641. The number of benefit recipients eligible
for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was 118,062.

City of Cincinnati Retirement System

Plan Description

The City of Cincinnati Retirement System is considered part of the City of Cincinnati's financial reporting
entity and is included in the City’s financial report as a pension trust fund. There are four employers that
contribute to the plan. They are the City of Cincinnati, University of Cincinnati, University Hospital and
Hamilton County. Membership of the Retirement System of the City consisted of the following at December
31, 1999, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Pension  Health care
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 4,184 4,184
Terminated plan members entitled to future benefits 116 116
Active plan members:
Vested 3,652 - 2,020
Nonvested 2,026 3.658
Total 2978 2218

1,457 of the Nonvested members are part-time employees who are included in the system to comply with the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990, which mandated the inclusion of certain classifications of
employees either in state or municipal retirement systems or the Federal Insurance Contribution Act (Social
Security). The City of Cincinnati's Retirement System covers the majority of non-uniformed City employees
and a closed group of members from other employers which includes employees of the University of
Cincinnati and University Hospital who joined before control of these institutions was transferred to the State
of Ohio, and former City employees staying with various operations transferred to the control of Hamilton
County.

The service retirement allowance vests after five years of creditable service. Medical care benefits vest after
fifieen years of creditable service or after reaching age sixty with five years of creditable service. Any member
in service may retire upon attaining age sixty, regardless of length of membership service if he was enrolled
prior to January 1, 1969, or with at least five years of membership service if enrollment occurred at January
1, 1969 or later, or upon completing thirty or more years of membership service at any age, with a retirement
allowance commencing immediately; or any member upon completing five years of creditable service before
age sixty may retire with a retirement allowance commencing at age sixty, provided, however, at the time of
election of the deferred annuity there is no loan outstanding against his contributions.
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The annual retirement allowance consists of an annuity provided by the number equal in value to contributions
with interest at the time of retirement and a pension which together with an annuity produces a total annual
retirement allowance equal to 2.22% of the average of the three highest years' compensation multiplied by the
number of years of membership service. Emiployees hired before July 12, 1998 elected either the 2.22% or
a 2.5% formula which does not factor in overtime pay and lump sum payments for vacation, sick leave and
compensatory balances. All new employees hired July 12, 1998 and there after are subject to the 2.5%
formula. Pensions are increased by 3% compounded annually commencing one year after retirement. The
System also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by the Cincinnati Municipal Code. .

Coatributions

Each member contributes at a rate of 7% of his salary until his retirement. This percent contributed by the
employees is fixed by the fund's Board of Trustees on the basis of authority provided by Chapter 203 Section
77 of the Cincinnati Municipal Code. The City makes annual employer contributions based on a percentage
of the salaries of all members. The contribution rate for 1999 was 7.00% for all employers. City of
Cincinnati s contributions to the City of Cincinnati Retirement System for the years ending December 31,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $11,629,000, $22,325,000, and $29,493,000, respectively equal to the required
contributions for each year. Administrative costs are financed from the system assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting - The City of Cincinnati Retirement System financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - The Retirement System investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national or international
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the
basis of future principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information

The System provides hospital and surgical insurance to retired members who have eamed fifteen years credited
service at the time of termination or terminate after age sixty with five years credited service. Those who are
receiving survivor benefits of eligible members are entitled to have their hospital and surgical insurance
premiums paid by the System, When benefits would be reduced by reason of the retired member’s eligibility
for hospital and medical benefits under federal social security laws, the System will pay whatever additional
fees are required for the federal medical coverage.

The health care coverage provided by the System is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB).
It is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis as a portion of the employer contribution requirement
to the System. The Cincinnati Municipal Code provides authority for employer contributions.

The actuarial assumptions used for the December 31, 1999 valuation of unfunded liabilities included an

assumption recognizing medical benefits at current premium costs with projected increases of 7% per annum.
The cost of OPEBs are recognized as an expense as claims are paid.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION PLAN
Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial UAAlL as a
Value Liability Accrued Percentage of
Actuarial of {AAL) Liability Funded Covered Coverad
Valuation Assels -Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payrall
Date (a) ) (o-a) {a/b) () {(b-a)lcy
12/31/93 806,188 1,050,597 244 409 76.74 175,763 138.06
12/31/64 852,089 1,155,544 303,445 73.74 179,587 188.97
12/31/958 847,802 1,105,267 157405 85.75 177,240 8s.86
12/31/96 1,082,880 1,141,076 58,086 54.91 177,943 22.85
12/31/97 1,250,887 1,214,573 {36,424} 103.00 181,547 (20.06)
12/31/98 1.411 847 1,385,579 (26,268) 101.90 181,691 (14.48)
12/31/99 1,554 854 1,548,854 {5,000} 100.39 184,477 (3.25)
HEALTHCARE PLAN
1231793 345,480 450,217 104,737 76.74 175,763 59.59
12/31/94 371,430 503,702 132,272 73.74 179,587 7368
12/31/85 424 475 435,010 70,535 85.75 177,240 39.80
12/31/96 472 559 497,910 25,351 94.61 177,943 14.25
123197 548,239 532,277 (15,962) 103.00 181,547 (8.79)
12131/98 524,185 585,919 (38.266) 106.53 181,691 (21.08)
12/31/98 698,701 613,949 (82,752} 113.48 184,477 (44.86)
Schedule of Employers’ Contributions
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION PLAN
Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed
19393 ‘ v 22,487 95.78
1994 25277 105.38
1995 26,513 92.03
1966 16,823 141.80
1097 23,335 106.80
1998 14,560 127.83
1998 (3,467) 198.88
HEALTHCARE PLAN
Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed
1983 14986 ’ ™ 9578
1994 8,426 105.38
1995 8,838 82.03
1996 5,608 141,60
1987 7.778 106.80
1998 4853 127.83
1999 (3.156) 198.86
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The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return*

Projected salary increases*

Medical benefits

*Inflation rate

12/31/99

Entry age normal, frozen initial liability method

Preliminary actuarial value of assets is calculated by
projecting the prior year's actuarial value to the current
valuation date using the valuation interest asswmnption and
actual contributions, benefit payments and expenses. This
preliminary value is then adjusted if it is not within a

corridor equal to 90% - 110% of the market value of assets.

8.75% prior to the deduction of expenses per annum,
compounded annually and adding an expense assumption
to the determination of the plan s normal cost.

4.5% per annum with select rates during the first three
years of service plus provision for an 10% increase in final
average salary due to final lump salary payment.

Current premium costs with projected increases of 7% per
annum post retirement benefit increases.

No assumption.

Cost-of-living adjustments 3% compound interest
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for resources,
traditionally associated with governments, which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.
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CIiTY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
{Continued) o
Expenditures
Office of the Mayor
Personal Services ] 155 $ 149 3
Non-Personal Services 36 35 1
Total Office of the Mayor 191 184 7
Office of the Clerk of Council
Personal Services 315 34 1
Non-Personal Services 489 424 65
Capital Outlay 15 _ 15
Total Office of the Clerk of Council 819 738 81
Department of the City Manager
Office of the City Manager
Personal Services 787 715 72
Non-Personal Services 480 480
Capitai QOutlay 4 4
Total Office of the City Manager 1,271 1,195 76
Division of Environmental Management
Personal Services 209 207 2
Non-Personal Services 343 341 2
Total Division of Environmental Management 552 548 4
Division of Employment and Training
Personal Services 85 85
Non-Personal Services 1,877 1877
Total Division of Employment and Training 1,962 1,962
Office of Contract Compliance and Administrative Hearings
Personal Services 599 518 81
Non-Personal Services 1,242 1,082 150
Total Office of Contract Compliance and
Administrative Hearings 1,841 1,610 231
Office of Municipal Investigations
Personal Services 491 438 53
Non-Personal Services 80 75 5
Total Office of Municipal Investigations 5714 513 58
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Far the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND
{Continued)
Revenue
Charges for Current Services
General Government

Recreation

Charges for Current Services
Buildings and Inspections
Other Inspection Certificates
Elevator Certifications

Public Safety
Police and Communication Charges
Fire Protection Service Outside of City
impounded Vehicle Fees
Protective inspection Fees
Protection Service - Burglary Alarm
Emergency Transportation Service
Other Public Safety Charges

General Services

Public Works

Public Health
Vital Statistics
Clinic Fees
Other Public Health Charges
Total Charges for Current Services
Miscellaneous Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
City Council

Office of the Clerk of Council
Office of the Mayor

Regional Computer Center
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1999 1998

5,847 5912
(1) 12
1,267 1,158
410 475
29 31
38 39
828 962
60 50
210 202
2,595 1,186
448 115
2 2
508 411
746 725
106 106
6 g
12,901 11,392
1,885 2,870
296,081 278,305
1,102 1,029
6883 708
185 172

1
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND
{Continued)
Expenditures
Office of the City Manager

Division of the City Manager
Division of Budget and Evaluation
Division of Contract Compliance and Administrative Hearings
Division of Environmental Managerment
Division of Employment and Training
Division of Municipal Investigations
Division of Internal Audit

Total Office of the City Manager

Depariment of Law
Division of Legal Services

Total Department of Law
Department of Personnel

Department of Finance
Office of the Director
Division of Budget and Evaluation
Division of Treasury
Division of Income Tax
Division of Risk Management
Division of Purchasing
Division of Accounts and Audits

Total Department of Finance
Department of Economic Development
Depariment of Neighborhood Services

Office of the Director
Division of Housing Development
Division of Human Services

Total Department of Neighborhood Services

Department of City Planning

1998 1998
1,137 1,035
6 808
825 623
536 428
1,918 1,022
521 425
338 325
5,282 4,668
3,835 4,108
3,835 4,108
2,226 2,064
316 263
837
498 402
3,328 3.125
221 194
1,186 1,053
1,766 1.870
8,143 6,707
1,698 1,859
387 414
987 578
5,848 4,957
7,202 5,949
1,597 1,272

Note: in February 1999 the Budget and Evaluation function was moved from the Office of the City Manager to

a division under the Depariment of Finance.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND 1989 1998
{Continued)
Expenditures
Department of Public Recreation
Division of Community Activities - Region 1 3 2,224 $ 2,309
Division of Communify Activilies - Region 2 2,066 2,041
Division of Community Activities - Region 3 2,390 2,265
Division of Community Activities - Region 4 1,887 2,214
Division of Seniors and Special Populations 1,173 1,625
Division of Athletics 382 298
Division of Waterfront Activities 646 645
Division of Administrative Services 3,847 1,841
Total Department of Public Recreation 14,615 13,238
Department of Parks
Division of Administration and Program Service 180 206
Division of Planning, Design and Development 1,987 1,833
Division of Qperations 2,364 2,061
Total Department of Parks 4,531 4,100
Department of Buiidings and Inspections
(ffice of the Director 648 470
Division of Licenses and Permits 1,269 1,264
Division of Building Construction Inspection 1,938 1,886
Division of Safety and Maintenance Inspection 1,838 1,522
Total Department of Buildings and Inspections 5,694 5,142

Department of Public Safety

Office of the Director 524 581
Division of Police 75,968 72,350
Division of Fire 49,713 45774
Division of Telecommunications . 45

Total Department of Public Safety 126,205 118,730

Department of Public Works

Office of the Director 829
Division of Engineering 1,176
Division of Highway Maintenance 1.225
Division of Sanitation 13,288
Division of Traffic Engineering 3,897
Total Depariment of Public Works 20,525
(Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND ' 1999 1598
{Continued)
Expenditures
Department of Transportation and Engineering

Office of the Director $ 83 $

Division of Transportation Planning 108

Division of Engineering 1,045

Total Department of Transportation and Engineering " 1,238

Department of General Services

Division of Facility Management 3,781 4,027
Regional Computer Center 4,511 3,685
Total Department of General Services 8,202 7.722

Department of Public Services

Director's Office 676
Highway Maintenance Division 1,546
Division of Solid Waste Services 15,006
Division of Traffic Operations 7 3,602

Total Depariment of Public Services ' 20,830

Department of Public Health

Office of the Commissioner 648 749
Division of Technical Resources 3,157 3,282
Division of Community Health Services 7,674 8,720
Division of Primary Health Care - Special Programs 4,033 3,398
Division of Primary Health Care - Heaith Centers 4,426 3,683
Division of Primary Care - Contract Centers _ 887 840

Total Department of Public Health : 20,831 18,682

Nondeparimental Accounts

Contribution to City Pension System 3,655 8,015
Contribution to State Pension System 1,130 610
Contribution fo Police Pension System 11,883 11,315
Contribution to Fire Pension System 11,618 10,736
Contribution to Employee Hospital Care 10,875 9,689
Contribution to Dental and Vision Care 1,989 2,048
" Contribution to Medicare 1,492 1,299

Note: The Department of Public Works was divided into the Department of Transportation & Engineering
and the Department of Public Services in 1999.

(Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND 1999 . 1998
(Continued)
Expendifures
Public Employees Assistance Program $ 193 5 196
Contribution to Workers' Compensation Insurance 5,469 5,786
Police Officers and Firefighters' Insurance 255 245
State Unemployment Compensation 120 48
Life Insurance 85
City Council Staff Benefits 8 10
Judgments against the City 1,865 1,559
Cincinnati Human Relations Commission 302 381
Citizen's Commitiee on Youth 3916 845
Mayor's Office Obligations 10 14
Nat'! Underground RR Freedom Center 727 273
Total Nondepartmental Accounis 52,602 ‘ 53,065
Capita!l Qutlay
Motorized and Construction Equipment 378 338
Office and Technical Equipment _ 44
Total Capital Outiay 378 383
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 287,278 270,121
Excess of Revenue over Expenditures 8,803 8,184

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In 375 1,578
Ogperating Transfers (Out) {5,806} {7.587)
Total Other Financing (Uses) {5,231) (6,008)

Excess of Revenue and Other Financing Sources

over Expenditures and Other Uses 3,672 2,175
Fund Balarnce, January 1 56,280 53,595
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle 510
Fund Balance, January 1, as restated 56,280 54,105
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 59,852 $ 56,280

53



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1889 1998 {Unfavorable)
Revenue
Taxes
Real Property $ 21,450 $ 22,268 $ 818
Personal Property 3,860 3,841 (19)
City Income Tax 180,500 180,500
Admissions 2,800 2,634 (266)
Total Direct Taxes 208,710 208,243 533
Licenses and Permits
Street Use 1,700 1,710 10
Health 300 227 (73)
Police and Protective 70 83 13
Beer and Liquor 500 472 {28)
Business and Merchandising 20 20
Amusements 130 103 27)
Professional and Occupational 140 139 (0
Buildings, Structures and Equipment 2,310 2,445 135
Total Licenses and Permits 5170 5,199 28
Use of Money and Property
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 3,600 4,287 687
Income from Treasury Investments 10,500 11,288 788
Rents 100 126 26
General Concessions and Commissions 150 162 12
Total Use of Money and Property 14,380 15,863 1,513
Intergovernmental Revenue
Proportionately Shared State Taxes
Local Government Revenue Assistance 2,680 2,929 248
Local Government Fund - Sales, Franchise, State
Income Tax 24,557 25,982 1,425
Local Government Fund - Financial Institution Tax 1,050 833 217)
Estate Tax 15,000 19,721 4,721
State Income Tax - Real Property Tax Reduction 2,590 2,605 15
State Income Tax - Tangible Tax Reduction 255 239 (16)
Payments from Other Governmental Units 15 32 17
Revenue from Private Sources 14 14
Total Intergovernmental Revenue 46,147 52,355 6,208
{Continued)
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CI{TY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis} and Actual

For the year ended December 31

{Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND
{Continued)
Revenue
Charges for Current Services
General Government

Parks and Recreation

Buildings and Inspections
Other Inspection Certificates
Elevator Certifications

Public Safety
Police and Communication Charges
Fire Protection Service Outside of City
impounded Vehicle Fees
Protective inspection Fees
Protection Service - Burglary Alarm
Emergency Transportation Service
Cther Public Safety Charges

General Services

Public Works
Host Community Fee
Recycling Incentive Fee
Other Public Works Charges
Public Health
Vital Statistics
Clinic Fees
Other Public Health Charges

Total Charges for Current Services
Miscellaneous Revenue
TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
City Coungil
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total City Council
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Variance
Budget Actual Favorabie
1699 1699 (Unfavorable)
8,600 $ 7675 % (925}
7 (1 8
880 1,267 287
460 410 {50)
35 29 6)
38 39 1
960 828 (132)
50 &0 10
190 211 21
1,100 2,595 1,495
121 448 327
2 2
25 {25)
330 349 18
55 160 105
705 746 41
106 106
1 6 5
13,765 14,930 1,165
1,665 1,564 {101)
289,807 298,154 9,347
1,156 1,026 130
94 85 9
1,250 1,111 139
(Continued)



CIiTY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
{Continued) o
Expenditures
Office of the Mayor
Personal Services ] 155 $ 149 3
Non-Personal Services 36 35 1
Total Office of the Mayor 191 184 7
Office of the Clerk of Council
Personal Services 315 34 1
Non-Personal Services 489 424 65
Capital Outlay 15 _ 15
Total Office of the Clerk of Council 819 738 81
Department of the City Manager
Office of the City Manager
Personal Services 787 715 72
Non-Personal Services 480 480
Capitai QOutlay 4 4
Total Office of the City Manager 1,271 1,195 76
Division of Environmental Management
Personal Services 209 207 2
Non-Personal Services 343 341 2
Total Division of Environmental Management 552 548 4
Division of Employment and Training
Personal Services 85 85
Non-Personal Services 1,877 1877
Total Division of Employment and Training 1,962 1,962
Office of Contract Compliance and Administrative Hearings
Personal Services 599 518 81
Non-Personal Services 1,242 1,082 150
Total Office of Contract Compliance and
Administrative Hearings 1,841 1,610 231
Office of Municipal Investigations
Personal Services 491 438 53
Non-Personal Services 80 75 5
Total Office of Municipal Investigations 5714 513 58
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATIL, OHIO
Scheduie of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 34
(Amounts in Thousands)

GENERAL FUND
{Continued)
Expenditures
Intemnal Audit Unit
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Internal Audit Unit
Total Department of the City Manager

Department of Law
Division of Legal Services
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Department of Law

Departiment of Personnel
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Department of Personnel

Department of Finance
Office of the Director
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services
Capital Qutlay

Total Office of the Director

Division of Budget & Evaluation
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Division of Budget and Evaluation

Expenditures
Division of Accounts and Audits
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Division of Accounts and Audits

Division of Treasury
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services
Capital Outlay

Total Division of Treasury
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Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1999 (Unfaveorable)
322 $ 321 1
29 20 g
351 341 10
6,548 6,169 378
3,380 3,331 49
818 805 13
4,198 4,136 62
1,662 1,640 22
739 578 161
2,401 2,218 183
207 207
112 110 2
20 20
338 337 2
704 685 19
214 200 14
818 885 33
1,018 1,017 1
747 745 2
1,765 1,762
437 366 71
78 €8 8
20 20 _
535 455 g0
(Continued)



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1899 {(Unfavorable)
{Continued)
Expenditures
Division of Risk Management
Norn-Personal Services $ 262 3 199 $ 63
Total Division of Risk Management 262 199 63
Bivision of Income Tax
Personal Services 2,402 2,385 17
Non-Perscnal Services 861 881
Total Division of Income Tax 3,263 3,246 17
Division of Purchasing
Personal Services 955 868 8¢
Non-Personal Services } 316 312 4
Capital Outlay o 75 75
Total Division of Purchasing 1,346 1,253 83
Total Department of Finance 8,428 8,137 291
Department of Economic Development
Personal Services 256 244 12
Non-Personal Services 1,572 1,571 1
Total Departrnent of Economic Development 1,828 1,815 13
Department of Neighborhood Services
Office of the Director
Personal Services 318 316
Non-Personal Services 58 54
Total Office of the Director 374 370
Division of Housing Development
Personal Services 37 37
Non-Personal Services 1,455 1,444 11
Total Division of Housing Development 1,492 1,481 11
Division of Human Services
Personal Services 466 454 12
Non-Personal Services 5,803 5,573 230
Total Division of Human Services 6,269 6,027 242
Total Department of Neighborhood Services 8,135 7,878 257
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
(Continued)
Expenditures
Department of City Planning
Personal Services $ 1,082 $ 1,081 $ 1
Non-Personal Services 630 621 9
Capital Outlay 4 2 2
Total Department of City Planning 1,716 1,704 12
Department of Public Recreation
Comrmunity Activities - Region 1
Personal Services 1,857 1,857
MNon-Persenal Services 363 363
Total Community Activities - Region 1 2,220 2,220
Community Activities - Region 2
Personal Services 1,693 1,693
Nen-Personal Services 342 342
Total Community Activities - Region 2 2,035 2,035
Community Activities - Region 3
Personal Services 2,042 2,042
Non-Personal Services 356 356
Total Community Activities - Region 3 2,398 2,398
Community Activities - Region 4
Personal Services 1,598 1,698
Non-Personal Services 284 284
Total Community Activities - Region 4 1,882 1,882
Division of Seniors and Special Populations
Personal Services ’ 952 952
Non-Personal Services 208 208
Total Division of Seniors and Special Populations 1,160 1,160
Division of Athletics
Personal Services 345 345
Non-Personal Services 38 38
Totai Division of Athletics 383 383
Division of Waterfront Activities
Personal Services 507 507
Non-Personal Services 139 139
Total Division of Waterfront Activities 646 648
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Ameounts in Thousands)

_ Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {Unfavorabie)
{Gontinued)
Expenditures
Division of Administration
Personal Services $ 2,077 $ 2,076 % 1
Non-Personal Services 1,635 1,635
Capital Qutlay 70 70
Total Division of Administration 3,782 3,781 1
Total Depariment of Public Recreation 14,506 14,505 1
Department of Parks
Division of Administration and Program Services
Personal Services 138 137 1
Non-Personal Services ' 4 2 2
Capital Cutiay 42 41 1
Total Division of Administration and Program Services 184 180 4
Division of Operations
Personal Services 1,651 1,839 12
Non-Personal Services 875 849 26
Total Division of Operations 2,526 2,488 38
Division of Planning, Design and Development
Personal Services 1,250 1,246 4
Non-Personal Services 803 802 1
Total Division of Planning, Design and Development 2,053 2,048 5
Total Department of Parks 4,763 4,716 47
Department of Buildings and Inspections
Office of the Director
Personal Services 419 396 23
Non-Personal Services 276 275 1
Capital Qutlay 72 72
Total Office of the Director 767 743 24
Division of Licenses and Permits
Personal Services 1,192 1,172 20
Non-Personal Services 108 ] 108
Total Division of Licenses and Permits 1,300 1,280 20
Division of Building Construction Inspection
Personal Services ' 1,844 1,760 84
Non-Personal Services 189 189
Total Division of Building Construction Inspection 2,033 1,845 84
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1699 1898 ~__(Unfavorable)
(Continued)
Expenditures
Division of Safety and Maintenance Inspection
Personal Services ] 1,368 $ 1,388 -]
Non-Personal Services 469 468 1
Total Division of Safety and Maintenance Inspection 1,837 1,838 1
Total Department of Buildings and Inspections 5,937 5,808 129
Department of Public Safety
Office of the Director
Personal Services 404 401 3
Non-Persconal Services 141 129 12
Capital Outlay 11 11
Total Office of the Director 556 541 15
Division of Police
Personal Services 64,982 64,976 &
Non-Personal Services 11,531 11,484 47
Capital Cutlay 63 58 5
Total Division of Police 76,576 76,518 58
Division of Fire Protection
Personal Services 44 865 44 289 576
Non-Personal Services 5,458 5,451 7
Capital Outiay 7 7
Total Division of Fire Protection 50,330 49,747 583
Total Department of Public Safety . 127,462 126,806 656
Department of Transportation and Engineering
Office of the Director
Personal Services 41 38
Non-Personal Services 4 3 1
Total Office of the Director 45 41 4
Division of Transportation, Plannning and Urban Design
Personal Services 232 97 135
Non-Personal Services 3 3
Total Division of Transportation, Plannning and Urban Design 235 100 135
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {(Unfavorable)
{Continuec)
Expenditures
Division of Engineering
Personal Services $ 711 $ 711 $
Non-Personal Services 3681 325 36
Total Division of Engineering 1,072 1,036 36
Department of Transportation and Engineering 1,352 1,177 175
Department of General Services
Division of Facility Management
Personal Services 1,215 1,212 3
Non-Personal Services 2,777 2,774
Total Division of Facility Management 3,992 3,086 3]
Regional Computer Center
Non-Personal Services ’ 4,513 4,511 2
Total Regional Computer Center 4,513 4511 2
Total Department of General Services 8,505 8,497 8
Department of Public Services
Office of the Director
Personal Services 588 580 g
Non-Personal Services 102 100 2
Capital Outlay 27 28 1
Total Office of the Director 718 706 12
Division of Highway Maintenance
Personal Services 727 T 626 101
- Non-Personal Services 7 968 e03 66
Total Division of Highway Maintenance 1,696 1,529 167
Division of Sanitation
Personal Services 7.258 7,252 6
Non-Personal Services 7.545 7,535 10
Capital Outiay 36 36
Total Division of Sanitation 14,839 14,823 16
Division of Traffic Engineer
Personal Services 1,783 1,703 a0
Non-Personal Services 1,991 1,925 €6
Total Division of Traffic Engineering 3,774 3,628 146
Total Department of Public Services 21,027 20,686 341
(Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATIL, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 19589 1999 {Unfavorable)
(Continued)
Expenditures
Department of Public Health
Office of the Commissioner
Personal Services $ 555 5 530 3 25
Non-Personal Services : . 145 118 26
Capital Outlay 67 20 47
Total Office of the Commissioner 767 669 98
Division of Technical Resources
Personal Services 2,227 2,206 21
Non-Personal Services 1,167 1,078 89
Teotal Division of Technical Resources 3,384 3,284 110
Division of Community Health Services
Persconal Services 6,841 6,734 107
Non-Personal Services 1,257 1,140 117
Total Division of Community Health Services 8,088 7,874 224
Division of Primary Care - Special Services
Personal Services 3,335 3,333 2
Non-Personal Services 805 801 4
Total Division of Primary Care - Special Services 4,140 4134 6
Division of Primary Care - Health Centers
Personal Services 3,036 2,974 82
Non-Personal Services 1,606 1,500 108
Total Division of Primary Care - Health Centers 4,642 4474 168
Division of Primary Care - Contract Health Centers
Personal Services 12 11 1
Non-Personal Services 891 862 29
Total Division of Primary Care - Contract
Health Centers 903 873 30
Total Department of Public Health 21,944 21,308 636
Nondepartmental Accounts
Pension Systems
Contribution to City Pension System 5,311 5,293 18
Contribution to State Pension System 938 839
Contribution to Police Pension System 12,164 11,882 282
Contribution to Fire Pension System 11,664 11,817 47
(Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI!, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
GENERAL FUND 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
{Cantinued)
Expenditures
Employee Benefits
Contribution to Employee Hospital Care $ 10,944 $ 10,511 $ 433
Dental and Vision Care 2,182 1,821 361
Medicare Tax 1,451 1,450 1
Public Employee Assistance 195 193 2
Contribution to Workers' Compensation insurance 5,672 5,867 5
Police Officers and Firefighters' Insurance 260 255 5
State Unemployment Compensation 167 167
Life Insurance 110 85 25
City Council Staff Benefits 10 8 2
Professional Services and Legal Fees
Judgments against the City 2,000 1,984 36
Cincinnati Human Relations Commission 333 302 3
Citizen’s Committee on Youth 880 880 '
Citizen's Commitiee on Youth - Capital 63 63
Miscellaneous Accounts
Mayor's Office Obligations 10 10
Reserve for Contingencies 423 423
Moterized and Construction Equipment 333 333
Total Nondepartmental Accounts 55,111 53,440 1,671
TCTAL EXPENDITURES _. 286,121 291,033 5,088
Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Qperating Transfer In 260 260
Operating Transfer (Out} (5,510) (5,510)
Total Cther Finanging Sources (5,250) (5,250)
Excess of Revenue over (under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (6.314) 2,871 9,185
Canceilation of Prior Years Encumbrances 1,880 1,860
Fund Balance, January 1 25154 25,154
Fund Balance, December 31 3 18,840 $ 29,885 3 11,045
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Appropriated:

Health Services Fund - Used to improve, establish, expand, and/or maintain health services to the citizens
of Cincinnati.

Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair Fund - Used to account for street maintenance, repair and

cleaning, and the operation and maintenance of traffic signals. Financing is provided by the City's share
of State-levied Motor Vehicle License Tax, Gasoline Tax, and reimbursements of expenses.

Parking Meter Fund - Used to account for resources provided by collections from parking meters,
Cable T.V. Fund - Used to account for the proceeds of cable franchise fees received from the cable provider,

Income Tax Infrastructure Fund - Used to account for the proceeds of 2 .1% levy on earned income for
infrastructure purposes. L

W&M - Used to account for the proceeds of a .3% levy on earned income for transit
purposes.

Motor Vehigle License Fund - Used to account for resources provnded by the locally levied Municipal Motor
Vehicle License Tax. _

Special Recreation Fund - Used to account for monies received for spemal activities such as enrichment
exercise programs or caretaker services.

Nonappropriated:

Recreation - Used to account for Federal funds, private contributions, and user fees, and for expenditures
made for special recreation activities.

Parks -~ Used to account for State funds, private contributions, and user fees, and for expenditures made for
special parks activities.

Safety - Used to account for Federal and State funds and private contributions, and for expenditures made
for public safety purposes.

Health - Used to account for Federal and State funds, private contributions and user fees, and for
expenditures made for public health purposes.

Cincinnati Blue Ash Airport - Used to account for the revenue and the expenditures for the operation and
maintenance of a municipal airport.

Community Development - Used to account for Federal funds received for city-wide development
cperations.

Depaniment of Labor Grants - Used to account for Federal funds received for the relief of unemployment
through jobs and training.

Other - Used to account for Federal and State funds, private contributions and user fees, and for expenditures
for specific purposes not otherwise designated.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget {(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts-in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 7 1898 {Unfavorable)
HEALTH SERVICES FUND
Revenue
Charges for Current Services $ 3400 3 2836 3 {504)
TOTAL REVENUE _ 3,400 2,896 (504)
Expenditures
Department of Public Heaith
Division of Primary Care - Special Programs

Personal Setvices 251 61 190

Non-Personal Services 664 282 382

Capital Outlay 60 60

Total Division of Primary Care - Special Programs g75 343 632
Division of Primary Care - Health Centers
Personal Services 1,084 1,048 46
Non-Personal Services 1.412 1,321 91
Total Division of Primary Care - Health Centers 2,506 2,369 137
Total Department of Heaith 3,481 2.712 769
Nondepartmental Accounts

Contribution to City Pension System 87 81 8

Employee Hospital Care 89 82 7

Dental and Vision Care 17 16 1

Medicare Tax 11 11

Workers' Compensation insurance 52 49 3

Life Insurance 2 ) 1 1

General Fund Overhead Charge 107 106 1

Total Nondepartmental Accounts 365 _ 348 18
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,846 3,058 788
Excess of Revenue over (under)

Expenditures (446) (162) 284
Cancellation of Prior Years Encumbrances 147 147
Fund Balance, January 1 1,362 1,362
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 916 ] 1,347 5 431
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1998 (Unfavorable)
STREET CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE
AND REPAIR FUND
Revenue
Intergovernmental Revenue :
Motor Vehicle License $ 2590 % 2581 § (9)
Gasdline 5,475 5,016 {459)
Miscellaneous _ 335 408 73
TOTAL REVENUE 8,400 8,005 {395)
Expenditures
Department of Public Services
Division of Highway Maintenance

Personal Services 5,372 ’ 5214 158

Non-Personal Services 2,748 2,700 48

Capital Qutlay 56 22 34

Total Department of Public Services 8,176 7,936 240
Nondepartmental Accounts

Contribution to City Pension System 447 447

Employee Hospital Care 634 545 89

Dental and Vision Care 108 101 7

Medicare Tax 55 54 2

Workers' Compensation Insurance 137 137

Life Insurance 6 4 2

Total Nondepartmental Accounts 1,388 1,288 100
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,564 9,224 _ 340
Excess of Revenue {under)

Expenditures {1,164) (1,218) (55)
Canceliation of Prior Years Encumbrances 991 991
Fund Balance, January 1 2,232 : 2,232
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 1,068 % 2,004 $ 936
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1989 (Untavorable)
PARKING METER FUND
Revenue
Miscellaneous $ 825 % 1,004 § 179
TOTAL REVENUE 825 1,004 179
Expenditures
Department of Economic Development
Non-Personal Services 78 78
Total Department of Economic Development 78 78
Department of Public Services
Division of Traffic Engineering
Non-Personal Services 491 452 39
Total Department of Public Services 491 452 39
Downtown Special improvements District
Non-Personal Services 140 77 63
Total Miscellaneous Accounts 140 77 B3
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 708 807 102
Other Financing (Uses)

Operating Transfers (Out) {250} 250
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES) (250} 250
Excess of Revenue over Expenditures and

Other Financing (Uses) 116 147 31
Canceliation of Prior Years Encumbrances 8 3
Fund Balance, January 1 1,217 1,217
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 1,333 5 1,372 b 39
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CITY OF CINCINNATIL, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

CABLE T.V. FUND
Revenue
Licenses and Permits
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Department of Public Safety
Division of Police
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Department of Public Safety

Division of Cable Communications
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Division of Cable Communications

Regional Computer Center
Perscnal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Regional Computer Center

Nondepartmental Accounts
Contribution to City Penslon System
Employee Hospital Care
Dental and Vision Care
Medicare Tax
Workers' Compensation Insurance
Life Insurance
General Fund Overhead Charge

Total Nondepartmental Accounts
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess of Revenues over
Expenditures
Cancellation of Prior Years Encumbrances
Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
$ 1750 3% 1,987 237
15 105 80
- 1,765 2,092 327
476 476
8 9
485 485
200 174 26
223 220. 3
423 394 28
228 218 10
B 158 1568 2
384 372 12
31 28 3
48 35 13
10 9 1
9 9
23 8 15
1 1
27 16 11
149 106 43
1,441 1,357 84
324 735 411
41 41
1,572 1,872
$ 1,896 5 2,348 452
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis} and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1899 (Unfavorable)
INCOME TAX INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
Revenue
Taxes
City Income Tax 3 11,640 % 11,787 147
Miscellaneous 300 427 127
TOTAL REVENUE o 11,840 12,214 274
Expenditures
Office of the City Manager
Office of Envircnmental Management
Personal Services 152 150 2
Non-Personal Services 58 45 13
Total Office of Environmental Management 210 185 15
Office of Contract Compliance and Administrative
Hearings
Personal Services 31 23 8
Non-Perscnal Services 18 18
Totat Office of Contract Compliance and
Administrative Hearings 49 41 8
Total Office of the City Manager 259 236 23
Department of Law
Division of Legal Services
Personal Services 143 120 23
Non-Personal Services 9 8
Total Department of Law 152 129 23
Department of Personnel
Personal Services 144 120 24
Total Department of Personnel 144 120 24
Department of Finance
Division of Budget & Evaluation
Persanal Services 55 55
Non-Personal Services 3 3
Total Division of Budget & Evaiuation 58 55 3
Division of Accounts and Audits
Personal Services 94 o4
Non-Personal Services 3 3
Total Division of Accounts and Audits g7 g7
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
INCOME TAX INFRASTRUCTURE FUND Budget Actual Favorable
{Continued) 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)

Division of Purchasing

Personal Services 5 169 $ 157 3 12

Non-Perscnal Services _ ) A7 47 '

Total Division of Purchasing 216 204 12
Total Department of Finance 371 356 15
Department of Public Recreation

Division of Maintenance and Technology

Personal Services 221 221
Total Department of Public Recreation 221 221
Department of Parks

Division of Operations

Personal Services 761 755 5
Total Department of Parks 761 755 6
Department of Buildings & Inspections

Division of Building Construction inspection )

Personal Services ag 38 1
Total Department of Buildings & Inspection 39 38 1
Department of Transportation & Engineering

Cffice of the Director

Personal Services 11 3 8

Total Office of the Director 11 3 8

Division of Transportation Planning

Personal Services 142 13 129

Non-Personal Services g 7 2

Total Division of Transportation Planning 151 20 131

Division of Engineering

Personal Services 1,705 1,811 94

MNon-Personal Services 435 - 380 56

Total Division of Engineering 2,141 1,991 150
Total Department of Transportation & Engineering 2,303 2,014 289
Department of General Services

Division of Facility Management

Personal Services 595 584 1

Non-Personal Services 814 812 2

Total Division of Facility Management 1.409 1,406 3

Regional Computer Center

Non-FPersonal Services 488 498

{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIOC
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
INCOME TAX INFRASTRUCTURE FUND Budget Actual Favorable
(Continued) 1985 1968 {Unfavorable)
Tota! Regicnal Computer Center 5 498 % 438 & 0
Total Department of General Services 1,807 1,804 3
Department of Public Services
Office of the Director
Personal Services 116 112 4
Non-Personal Services 50 45 5
Capital Outlay 3 3
Total Office of the Director 169 157 12
Division of Highway Maintenance
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services 1,114 1,114
‘TFotal Division of Highway Maintenance 1,114 1,114
Division of Traffic Operations
Personal Services 702 702
Non-Personal Seivicas 271 269 2
Total Division of Traffic Operations 973 a71 2
Total Department of Public Services 2,258 2,242 14
Nondepartmental Accounts
Contribution to City Pension System 4861 440 21
Employee Hospital Care 453 393 60
Dental and Vision Care 79 76 3
Medicare Tax 52 498 3
FPublic Empioyee Assistance 7 6 1
Workers' Compensation Insurance 213 192 21
State Unemployment Compensation 14 13 1
Life Insurance 7 7
General Fund Overhead 423 409 14

Total Nondepartmental Accounts 1,709 1,585 124
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,122 9,600 522
Other Financing (Uses)

Operating Transfers Out (1,038) {1,038)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES) (1,038) (1,038)

Excess of Revenue over Expenditures 780 1,576 796
Cancellation of Prior Years Encumbrances 185 185
Fund Balance, January 1 5,264 5,264
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 6044 3 7025 % a81

- - ]
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1999 {(Unfavorable)
INCOME TAX TRANSIT FUND
Revenue
Taxes
City Income Tax $ 34940 § 35360 % 420
Use of Money and Property
Income from Treasury Investments 400 477 77
TOTAL REVENUE 35,340 35,837 497
Expenditures
SORTA
Operations , 34,879 34,879
Total SORTA 34,879 34,878
Office of the City Manager
Division of Employment and Training
Non Personal Services I 70 70
Total Division of Employment and Training 70 70
Total Office of the City Manager 70 70
Depariment of Finance
Division of Budget and Evaluation
Personal Services 51 51
Non Personal Services 34 25 B ]
Total Division of Budget and Evaluation 85 76 9
Division of Income Tax
Non Personal Services 632 583 49
Total Department of Finance ' 717 659 58
Department Transportation and Engineering
Personal Services 124 124
Total Department Transportation and Engineering 124 124
Nondepartmental Accounts
Contribution to City Pension System 4 4
Employee Hospital Care 4 3 1
Dental and Vision Care 1 1
Medicare Tax 1 1
Workers' Compensation Insurance 2 1 1
Life Insurance
General Fund Overhead 3 3
. Total Nendepartmental Accounts 15 13 2
{Continued)
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
INCOME TAX TRANSIT FUND Budget Actual Favorable
{Continued) 1988 1899 {Unfavorable)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES § 35805 3 35,621 $ 184
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers Out (85) 85
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) '_ (85) 85
Excess of Revenue over (under)

Expenditures {465) 131 596
Cancellation of Prior Years Encumbrances 150 150
Fund Balance, January 1 11,084 11,084 ‘

Fund Balance, December 31 $ 10618 § 11,365 $ 746
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual

For the year ended December 31

- (Amounts in Thousands)

MOTOR VEBICLE LICENSE FUND
Revenue
Licenses and Pemits
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures

Department of Transportation & Engineering

Division of Engineering
Non-Personal Services

Total Division of Engineering

Total Department of Transportation & Engineering

Department of Public Service
Division of Highway Maintenance
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Division of Highway Maintenance

Total Department of Public Service

Nondepartmentat Accounts
Contribution o City Pension System
Employee Hospital Care
Dental and Vision Care
Medicare Tax
Workers' Compensation Insurance
General Fund Overhead

Total Nondepartmental Accounts
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess of Revenue over (under)
Expenditures

Cancellation of Prior Year Encumbrances
Fund Balance, January 1

Fund Balance, December 31

82

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
1999 1989 {Unfavorable)
$ 2,990 L3 2,921 69
10 9 (1)
3,000 2,930 (70)
306 308
306 306
308 306
1,328 1,187 141
1,490 1,483 7
2,818 2,670 148
2,818 2,670 148
a8 1 7
108 52 56
18 8 10
10 4 6
80 73 7
152 151 1
466 379 87
. 3,580 3,355 235
(590) (425) 165
140 140
951 851
$ 361 ] 666 305




CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis} and Actual

For the year ended December 31

(Amounts in Thousands)

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
Revenue
Use of Money and Property
Charges for Current Services
Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Department of Recreation
Community Activities - Region 1
Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Community Activities - Region 1
Community Activities - Region 2

Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Community Activities - Region 2
Community Activities - Region 3

Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Community Activities - Region 3
Community Activities - Reglon 4

Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Community Activities - Region 4
Seniors & Special Populations

Personal Services
Non-Personal Services

Total Seniors & Special Populations

83

Variance
Budget Actual Favorable
19488 1998 {Unfavorable)
308 § 321 12
3,460 3,607 147
156 2] (147)
3,925 3,937 12
253 186 67
209 202 7
482 388 74
353 292 61
154 144 10
507 436 71
255 212 43
169 167 2
424 379 45
394 359 35
97 g6 1
491 455 38
28 28
85 83 2
113 83 30
{Continued)



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual
For the year ended December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

Variance
SPECIAL RECREATION FUND Budget Actual Favorable
(Continued) 1999 1999 {Unfavorable)
Division of Athletics
Personal Services 3 210 3 186 $ 24
Non-Personal Services 264 258 5
Total Division of Athletics 474 445 28
Division of Waterfront
Personal Services 440 406 34
Non-Personal Services 565 510 55
Capital Outlay 22 14 8
Total Division of Waterfront 1,027 930 97
Division of Administration
Personal Services 25 25
Non-Personal Services 50 43 7
Total Division of Administration 75 ' 43 32
Total Department of Recreation 3,573 3,159 414
Nondepartmental Accounis
Contribution to City Pension 87 59 28
Haospital Care 17 10 7
Dental & Vision Care 3 1 2
Medicare Tax 25 20 5
Workers' Compensation Insurance 73 62 11
General Fund Overhead 133 133
Motorized & Construction Equipment 178 178
Total Nondepartmental Accounts 516 463 53
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,083 3,622 - 467
Excess of Revenue over (under) Expenditures {164) 315 479
Canceliation of Prior Years Encumbrances 79 78
Fund Balance, January 1 843 843 _
Fund Balance, December 31 $ 679 $ 1,237 3 858
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Permanent Improvement Funds - Used to account for special receipts limited in their use to capital
projects and to account for the transfers of funds for those projects.

Bond Fund - Used to account for the proceeds of debt issuances and to account for transfers of funds to
capital projects.

,

- Used to account for various revenue and transfers received for capital projects and
for the expenditures of those funds on capital projects.

85



(This page intentionally left blank.)

86



zar'sel  $ 0s6'vel ¢
025201 8i¥'i9
608 acn'L
L29'0L el
¥8e'se £66°CE
cio'ze Liv'ie
09L'¥
21z'ol 566°6
5Z6'l ore
950'6 950'6
v0g ¥09
8¢
zi0'N 8 Siv'er ¢
26¥'6EL % 0S6'¥21L %
508 20"t
LEg'E 08l'e
06 vLL
4:14 6£2
yiv'y rd
LT ¥£0'2
£20'0 161'G1
opg'val 980°¥6
ose'él 3% 050'6 s
9661 6661
L€ Jequisdag L€ JaquIsdaq

8Le'l8

8€0°1
289'61
112'ee

§£6'9€
09L'y
966°6
4
950'6
¥09

LiVel

8.£'28

8e0')
orl's
64

261°61
ces'es
050'6

pun4
wofoid
[eyden

$

£YY'0S

$

$

$

99/ ¢ 908'9t  $
991 0T'9E
99/ ¥66'se
8lz
9gg
BEe
$ 862 $
99/ $ 208'0E $
0g
4 £6
6ee
¥£0'C
147 06E°¥E
¢ $
pun4 spund
puog uswAcud
JusUBLUR
(spuesnouy U} sjunowry)
1§ Joquiensg
spuny )oefold jeyden

jesys soueed Buguon
OIHO ‘LLYNNIONID 40 AllD

finbz pund pue sapiige [ejoy,
Aynb3 punj 1101
Aiojusau) Joj partasay
spefold |eudes) Joj parsssay
$8oURIqLINSUT JO) parlasey
‘saougjeqg pund

Anb3 pund
safjlliger] [eJ0 ),

swied piedun) 10} Ayiger) pejewnsy
SPUn4 JSO WO} SSOUBADY
anUDADY poLaR]
sawuely [EusuLBAcD) 180 0} 9NQ
Spun feyl0 0} s}
s|qeded SJoUINOA
ageled sunoxoy

sejae]

BT PU PUE SO
51988y (810,

AuojuaAu|

SpUn4 JeLD) Wosj sng
1s8J8jU) penIody
sjuslussassy jepads
39N ‘sfunooy
saxe]

SBjeNeoeY

sjusLLsam|

ysen Ainseall Ay0 u Aynb3

sjusjeainby pue yseo)

e

87



0/8'00L $ 6i¥'28 ¢
086'201 028'90}
)

$98°'/01 029901
(o1'4) (1ec's1)
$09'09 Sve'sY
(to1'g6) (r9¢'Z6)
zZig'101 £62'F8
£61'85 008'Lp
0 oLl
(w1210} {9ec'69)
96.'001 969'c81
962°90} 989'c81
Z80'sy 00e'v11
688 PSS
0L 20202
o£s'e 616'49
l18'e 05Z'1
(X4 18}

&gt £2Y'L
Leoe 8 yOL'22 %
8661 6661
L¢ l=2quiadag }E Ba0uwiadad)

leloL

EVP0S $
85'65

926'65
(580'6)

828'i8

(voz')
9.6'28

=139

{c16'06)
S¥0'18lL
S0'181

zeL'06

e1g
48202
¢le'Ls
0sZ'4

cgl

pung
wajoug
1eiden

98/ 3 0lz'ee  §
Sl¢ - 196'0F
Gl€ Clo6'oY
L6¢ (z68'01)
0% - (582'28)
{(165'085) - {B05'sE)
£60'¢ yee's
006'2¥
() 88512
9l §€9'Z
ol G£0'T
g £Z2'Ve
o
81
$ 98z}
$ ¥al'zz ¢
puny spLing
puog JUBLIBAOILY
jRueHLe g

(spuesnoy |, Ul Slunouy)
L€ Jaquisoaq pepue Jeak oyj 104
spung 1o9foad |eyden

OIHO “LLYNNIONID 40 ALID

}€ Jequigoag ‘seouefeg pund
pajejsal se '| Aenue ‘sesuejeg pund

" sjdiputd Bugunooy uy
abueyn  jo 19343 sAEIMUND
| Aenuepr 'sasuejeg pun.

838 JOYID

pue saimipuadx3 Jaao seomnog
Bupoueuly Jayj) pue anusaay jo 5953

(sesn) ssounog Bupueuly IR0 jE10)

{in0} sigysuel] Bugetsdo

u| s:9jsuel] Bugersdp

$p8320I4 SI0N pue puog

siuswaalby aseat enden
{sesn) seounog Bupueuy eLio

saimpuadxy (lopun) JOAD SEMIBARY JO §820X3
saJnmpuadx3 ol

Aepng fended
saIMpUsdx3

snuBARY 8101

SNOBUE|SISIN
Salpisgng pue sjuels) 1ejg
Sjuelg) |eiapa.]

snuaAay jeusuiuaaofiloi)
SJuaIlSsassy |einadg
Auadosg pue Asuo jo asn
saxe]

ETIETENY|

s30ugleq pung u sebuey) pue saimpuadxg ‘anuansy Jo Juawelgls Buquio)

88



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

——

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Water Works - Used to account for sale of water to the general public and the operation of the water
delivery system.

Parking Facilities - Used to account for the revenue and expenses of the parking meters, garages, and lots
of the City. . ‘

Convention Center - Used to account for the expenses from the operation of the Albert B. Sabin
Convention Center, financed primarily through user fees.

General Aviation - Used to account for the expenses of Lunken Airport, financed primarily through user
fees.

Mupnicipal Golf - Used to account for the revenue received from all golf activities and for the expenses
of operating the golf courses of the City.

Stormwater Management - Used to account for the operation, maintenance and improvement of a

stormwater management system. Financing is provided by the users of the system in proportion to their
use of the system.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Purchasing-Reproduction and Printing - Used to account for revenue from City departments and for the

expenses of operations and maintenance of the Division of Reproduction and Printing.

Municipal Garage - Used to account for revenue from City departments for auto repairs and maintenance
and to account for the expenses necessary to provide this service.

Purchasing-General Stores - Used to account for the revenue and expenses re]atcd to the dlstrxbunon and
sale of materials and supplies.

Property Mapagement - Used to account for proceeds of City leases and land sales and to account for
costs of administering the fixed assets of the City.

Self Insurance-Medical - Used to account for monies appropriated from the General or other funds or
received from contract agencies, employees, members of council and others, including interest earned, and
to make expenditures for employee medical costs.

Self Insurance-Workers' Compensation - Used to receive, from all City funds, workers’ compensation
premium charges, and to pay workers' compensation premium payments, claim costs and reserve
settlements.

Regional Computer Center - Used to account for revenue and expenses related to the delwery of data
processing services to the City, Hamilton County, and others.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Expendable Trust Fund
Expendable Trust - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests made for the
Bettman Nature Center.
Groesbeck Fndowiment - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests made for the
cost of music concerts in Burnet Woods.

Schmidlapp Park Musjc - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests made for
the cost of music concerts in Eden Park.

Joanna Peters Bequest - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequest made for the
treatment of alecholism.
W, M. Ampt Music Endowment - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests
made for the cost of concerts in various City parks.
Crosley Field Trust - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests made for the
maintenance of the Crosley Field Sports Complex.
Kroger Trust - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequest made for the
maintenance of the Hartwell Recreation Center.
Yeatman's Cove Park Trust - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequest made
for the maintenance of the Yeatman's Cove Park.
Park Board Fund - Used to account for the investment and expenditure of bequests related to the
maintenance and improvement of Fleishmann Gardens, the Geier Esplanade, and various citywide
parks.

Pension Trust Fund
Pension Trust - Used to account for the receipts and expenditures of the City retirement system.
Prepaid Taxes on Purchased Property - Used to account for real estate taxes withheld from amounts
paid for property purchases.
Bond Retirement Deposits - Used to account for recelpts applicable to the Bond Retirement fund.
Undistributed City Income Tax - Used to account for receipts from collections of City income tax.
Dhio Sales Tax Deposits - Used to account for collections of Ohio state sales tax.
Towing Charges - Used to account for monies received as charges for towing and storage of
impounded vehicles.
Food Service Operation Deposits - Used to account for taxes on food service licenses.
Admission Tax Bond ~ Used to account for deposits related to entertainment facilities in the City.
Emplovee Withholdings - Used to account for payroll withholdings of City employees.
State Child Abuse Deposits - Used to account for surcharges applied to birth and death certificates.
Public Works Deposits - Used to account for Public Works monies reserved for specific purposes.
Surety Deposits - Used to account for unclassified receipts and unclaimed wages.

State Swimming Pool Deposits - Used to account for the deposits of the State's share of swimming
pool license fees.

Cable Access - Used to account for monies received from Warner Cable Comununications.
Metropolitan Sewer District - Used to account for the monies of the Metropolitan Sewer District.
Deferred Compensation - Used to account for assets held for employees in accordance with the
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Debt Service Trustee - Used to account for monies received for payment on Urban Renewal Increment
Bonds.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds
For the year ended December 31, 1999
(Amounts in Thousands)

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31
1999 Additions Deductions 1889
PREPAID TAXES PURCHASED PROPERTY
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash $ 52 $ 83 % 8 § 127
LIABILITIES ,
Deposits Payable 3 52 $ 131§ 56 $ 127
IREMEN .
ASSETS -
Equity in City Treasury Cash 3 $ 2,802 $ 2902 §$
LIABILITIES B . . T -
Deposits Payable 3 3 5,474 $ 5474 $
UN TED T .
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash 3 $ 255970 § 255970 §
LIABILITIES N
Deposits Payable $ 263,489 $ 263,489 §
OHIQ SALES TAX DEP
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash % 34 3% 254 3 282 % 6
LIABILITIES - o S )
Due to Other Governmental Agencies $ 34 8 233 3 261 % 6
TOWING CHARGES - P T TOR
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash $ 39 § 378 $ 388 % 28
LIABILITIES : _ '
Deposits Payable $ 33 % 599 3% 609 % 29
FOOD SERVICE OPERATION DEPOSITS
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash $ 1 $ 78 $ 38 § 41
LIABILITIES - -
Due to Other Governmental Agencies $ 1 $ 108 3 B  $ 41
(Continued)
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{Continued)
TAX DS
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash
LIABILITIES

Deposits Payable

EMPLOYEE WITHHOLDINGS

ASSETS

Equity in City Treasury Cash
LIABILITIES

Withhelding and Other Deposits

EGHILD A DE

ASSETS

Equity in City Treasury Cash
LIABILITIES

Deposits Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

LI RKS DEPQSIT
ASSETS

Equity in City Treasury Cash

Accounts Receivable

Due From Other Funds
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable

SURETY DEPQSITS
ASSETS

Equity in City Treasury Cash
Due From QOther Fund
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable

ING PO POSI
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable

ABL NAGEME D
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash
Accrued Interest Receivable
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Additions Deductions §999
$ 21 5 8 § 8 3 21
$ 21 $ 12 3 12 % 21
$ 2,239 _ $ 79,611 $ 80587 % 1,253
$ 2238 $ 112631 $ 113817 3 1,253
3 12 $ 1697 $ 197 % 12
11 3 393 3 392 0% 12
3 1
3 12 , 3 393 _'5 303 % 17
$ 1,108 3 1,002 3 827 $ 1,483
17 32 48 1
2 2
K 1,425 T 10368 3 575 3 1,488
3 1,125 $ 1,234 $ 873 3 1,486
$ 187 $ 14,754 $ 14,066 $ 875
62 62
$ 245 $ 14754 ) . ? 875
$ 249 $ 20,002 $ 18,376 $ 875
$ 3 18 3 18 3
$ 3 18 $ 18 $
$ 221§ 762§ 625 $ 358

2 2 2 2
¥ 223 % 78X 567§ 360

$ 223

$ 1,386 § 1,249

$ 360
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{Continued)

METROPOLITAN SEWER DISTRICT
ASSETS

investments

Accounts Receivable

Accrued Interest Receivable

Due From Other Funds

Prepaid ltems

Inventory
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Vouchers Payable
Due o Other Funds
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Accrued Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEBT SERVICE TRUSTEE FUND
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash
{nvestments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits Payable

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid - Other Governments
Inventory
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Vouchers Payable
Withholding and Other Deposits
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Due to Other Funds
Accrued Liabilities
Deposits Payable
Total Liabilities

Balance

Balance

January 1, December 31,
1899 Additions Deductions 1999

$ 187,290 $ 34,782 $ 91,118 $ 130,934

16,538 17,662 16,538 ’ 17,662

1,391 1,045 1,391 1,045

170 208 170 208

14 14

910 629 908

831

$ 12244 % 4,466 $ 12244 3 4,466
85 118,616 118,701

238 236 238 236

192,037 144,367 192,037 144,367

1,896 1,702 1,696 1,702

$ 5769 $ 2281 $ 1,068 % 6,981

1,526 1,493 1,985 1,034

$ 7295 $ 3774 $ 3,054 $ 8,015

$ 7295 $ 8,848 $ 8,128 8 8,015

$ 9683 $ 358,206 $ 356,793 $ 14,186

188,816 36,255 93,103 131,968

16,556 17,694 16,587 17,663

1,393 1,047 1,393 1,047

232 210 232 - 210

14 14

910 629 631 908

217590 $ 414,145 $ 468,739 $ 162,996

$ 12244 4466 $ 12244 $ 4,466
85 118,616 118,701

2,239 112,631 113,617 1,253

182,072 144,709 192,367 144,414

238 236 239 236

1,696 1,702 1,696 1,702

9,015 301,586 299,676 10,925

$ 217590 $ 683946 $ 738540 $ 162,096
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ACCOUNT GROUPS
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, CHIO
Comparative Schedule of General Fixed Assets
December 31
{Amounts In Thousands)

1989 1998
General Fixed Assets
Land $ 136,033 114,056
Buildings 129,820 125,743
improvements 199,797 182,050
Machinery and Equipment 58,031 57,695
Construction in Progress 288,566 194,647
Total General Fixed Assets 3 813,247 674,191
investment in General Fixed Assets $ 813247 674,191
CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source
December 31
{Amounts In Thousands)
1999 1988
Investment in General Fixed Assets from:
Permanent improvement Fund or
General Obligation Bonds $ 534,941 456,208
Federal Grants 11,557 11,117
State Grants 80,905 37,151
County Grants 16,522 10,464
General Fund Revenues 11,380 _ 10,036
Special Revenue Funds 6,198 5102
Gifts ' 3,651 6,623
Other and Undifferentiated 139,083 137,492
Total from All Sources $ 813,247 674,191
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function and Activity
As of December 31, 1998
{Amounts In Thousands)

Total Land Buildings improvements Equipment
Mayor and Council $ 107 $ $ $ $ 107
City Manager 1,016 194 822
Law 83 g3
Personnel 229 228
Finance 492 492
Economic Development 44,829 44 782 47
Neighborhood Services 6,426 3,439 2,173 801 13
City Planning 41 41
Recreation 55,633 7,042 8,468 37,071 2,952
Parks 33,355 11,291 9,765 8,878 2,421
Buildings and Inspections 300 300
Public Safety 41,451 1,352 5,457 7,098 27,544
Transportation & Engineering 21,588 3,505 5,464 11,488 1,131
General Services 4,455 533 2,359 1,663
Public Services 23,271 332 2,632 1,144 19,163
Public Health 9,586 272 2,722 4,479 2,113
Southern Railway Improvement 83,224 83,224
General Government
Land 63,485 63,485
Buildings 92,945 92,945
Improvements 42,255 , , N 42,255
Total General Fixed Assets
Allocated by Function £24.681 $ 136,033 $ 129,820 $ 199,797 $ 59,031
Construction in Progress 288,566

Total General Fixed Assets $ 813,247
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Function and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31, 1998
{Amounts in Thousands)

Mayor and Councit
City Manager
Law
Personnel
Finance
Economic Development
Neighborhood Services
City Planning
Recreation
Parks
Buildings and Inspections
Public Safety
Transportation & Engineering
General Services
Public Services
Public Health
Southern Railway Improvement
General Govermment
Land
Buildings
Improvements

Construction in Progress

Total General Fixed Assets

General General
Fixed Assets Fixed Assets
1/1/99 Additions Deletions 12/31/99

$ 110 $ 3 3 $ 107

957 82 23 1,016

93 83

228 228

470 79 57 492

34,778 10,496 445 44 829

4,082 2,344 6,426

41 41

36,586 18,675 728 55,533

32,707 766 118 33,355

3597 20 117 300

41,691 674 914 41,451

21,386 253 51 21,588
4,684 - 228 _4,4{)5 )

24,865 4,220 5814 23,271

7.628 1,988 28 8,586

83,224 83,224

56,435 7,067 17 63,485

88,867 4,214 136 92,945

40,316 1,939 42,255

184,647 145,481 55,562 288,566

$ 674,191 $ 203,288 $ 64242 $ 813,247
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Comparative Schedule of General Long-Term Obligations
December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

1999 1998
Amounts Avaijlable and {o be Provided for the
Retirement of General Long-Term Obligations ~
Amount Available in Debt Service Funds $ 16,467 $ 15,420
Amount to be Provided . 289,854 280,139
Total Available and to be Provided $ 306,321 $ 305,588
General Long-Term Obligations Payable
General Long-Term Debt: -
Tax-Supported $ 134,354 $ 130,588
Self-Suppoarted 39,669 40,912
Revenue 12,779 13,123
Total General Long-Term Debt 186,802 184,623
Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences 57,489 59,058
Estimated Liability for Unpaid Claims 3,419 2,874
Current Obligations under Capital Leases ag
Non-Current Obligations under Capital Leases 67
Police and Fire Prior Service Cost 58,505 59,204
Total General Long-Term Obligations $ 308,321 $ 305,559
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Year
1999

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2005
2007
2008
2008
2010
2011
2012

2014
20156
2016
2017

Year
1599
2000
2001

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

Year
1999
2000
2004
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2018

PROPERTY TAX-SUPPORTEQ
Debt
Interest Service
Maluring Cost Regquirement
$22,575,000 $6,275,605  $28,850,695
19,675,000 5,131,555 24,806,555
16,505,000 4,176,025 21,081,025
14,105,000 3,360,600 17,465,600
11,140,000 2,685,880 13,825,880
8,680,000 2,145,540 10,825,540
7,680,000 1,724,353 9,404,353
6,360,000 1,354,665 7,714,665
4,640,000 1,039,098 5,679,098
3,290,000 804,530 4,084,930
1,600,000 630.000 1,620,000
1,000,000 551,250 1,551,250
1,000,000 472,500 1,472,500
1,000,000 293,750 1,393,750
1,000,000 315,000 1,315,000
1,000,000 236,250 1,236,250
1,000,000 157,500 1,157,500
1,000,000 78,750 1,078,750
MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX-SUPPORTED
Debt
Interest Service
WMaturing Cost Bequirement
$2,950,000 51,248,263 $4,198.263
3,000,000 1,108,851 4,108,851
9,403,000 966,751 10,369,751
2,400,000 451,575 2,551,575
5,500,000 358,350 5,858,350
Jatal
Debt
Interest Service
Maturing Gost Beguirement
$46,853,000  $16,146,304 62,999,304
43,397,000 13,750,823 57,147,823
46,575,000 11,579,570 58,154,570
35,432,000 9,185,783 44,617,783
33,318,000 7.403,454 40,721,454
22 358,000 5,651,313 28,009,313
19,115,000 4,527,510 23,642,510
15,687,000 3,584,471 19,271,471
11,120,000 2,806,806 13,926,506
6,868,000 2,244,710 9,112,710
4,524,000 1,871,509 5,355,509
4,430,000 1,598,538 6,028,538
4,425,000 1,331,759 5,756,759
4,525,000 1,064,358 5,589,368
4,445,000 788,811 5,233,811
2,765,000 513,126 3,278,126
2,035,000 308,588 2,343,588
1,535,000 176,563 1,711,563
565,000 64,063 629,083
600,000 28,125 628,125

CITY OF CINCINNATI, CHIO

Schedule of Annual Debt Service

December 31, 1999

Outstanding
Debt

End of Year
$123,050,000
100,475,000
80,800,000
63,895,000
49,750,000
38,650,000
29,970,000
22,290,000
15,930,000
11,280,000
8,000,000
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
0

Qutstanding
Debt

r
$22,953,000
20,003,000
17,003,000
7,600,000
5,500,000
0

Quitstanding
Dehbt

$310,572,000
263,719,000
220,322,000
173,747,000
138,315,000
104,997,600
82,639,000
€3,524,000
47,837,000
35,717,000
29,849,600
25,325,000
20,895,000
16,470,000
11,845,000
7,500,000
4,735,000
2,700,000
1,165,000
600,000

0

122

Maturing
$20,895,000
20,195,000
19,700,000
18,610,000
16,010,000
12,960,000
10,665,000
8,490,000
5,570,000
2,610,000
2,645,000
2,690,000
2,625,000
2,660,000
2,510,000
765,000
500,000
535,000
565,000
600,000

Maturing

$433,000
527,000
567,000
617,000
668,000
718,000
770,000
837,000
10,000
968,000
879,000
740,000
800,000
865,000
935,000
1.010,000
5§35.000

1989
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2015
2016
2017
2018
2018

SELF-SUPPORTED
Debt
Interest Service
Cost Beguirement
$7,630,345  $25,525,345
6,551,969 26,748,969
5,517,674 25,217,674
4,500,714 23,110,714
3,536,425 19,546,425
2,737,349 15,697,319
2,093,221 12,758,221
1,579,645 10,069,645
1,181,405 6,751,405
922,900 3,532,900
800,425 3,445,425
671,979 2,361,979
543,774 3,168,774
420,124 3,080,124
293,811 2,803,811
173,076 928,078
129,688 620,688
97.813 632,813
64,063 629,063
28,125 628,125
REVENUE
Debt
Interest Service

Cost Beguirement
$962,001 $1.425,001
958,448 1,485,448
919,120 1,486,120
872,854 1,489,894
822,799 1,490,799
768,454 1,486,454
709,936 1,479,936
650,161 1,487,161
586,403 1,496,403
516,880 1,484,680
441,084 1,320,084
375,309 1,115,309
315,485 1,115,485
250,404 1,115,494
180,000 1,115,000
103,500 1,113,800
21,400 556,400

Outstanding
Debt

End of Year
$151,790,000
130,895,000
110,700,000
91,000,000
72,290,000
56,380,000
43,420,000
32,755,000
24,255,000
18,695,000
16,085,000
13,440,000
10,750,000
8,125,000
5,465,000
2,955,000
2,200,000
1,700,000
1,165,000
600,000

o

Qutstanding
Debt

End of Year
$12,778,000
12,346,000
11,819,000
11,252,000
10,635,000
9,967,000
9,243,000
8,479,000
7,642,000
6,732,000
5,764,000
4,885,000
4,145,000
3,345,000
2,480,000
1,545,000
535,000
[+}

Year
1999
2000
2001

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

1999




{s)

{s)
(5] {g}
{e51) F444 3 ¥z {col}
to6) g 10} dYIdS-SHd-LOH-0¥CL
[f}] it 1 €Ll {os) ZECTV-dh0-Z-18
12 1z LALEL
£ € SA-LCL
¥) {ev) vACLE}
¥ ] S1-LEL
{og} 802 [ {g2)
[(1}] 892 F£43 tF ¥OI6-G/L# I9BIU0D
e {et) SROGXSSH FRRU0D
{o5) {ag) YEOEXSSH KRND
{zo1) iy oL (vg}
@ {ar awiet
9 9 SN-LEL
{s2) {62} is'1ed
L L 95-18)
{sc) {6} S8 26L
(oz) iy ol {5} 0Z5-39-4102-18
FA Ze 9657181
{gs) ve ¥¥e {09}
¥ %3 v o) - 501654 PRiuo)
] {zg) SODEXSLE ReIICD
, 9 9 YROEXSON FRINOD
{9 fg) SEOGXISH 18U

(ss) {s5) s89'Z ! £25'C {1os)

{ss) {c) Bel {svz}

Gl &z 98} fsped 2e5e-y-92-21

 {ese) LoY'Z ! £25'2 fasz)

[FAZ4] 07T i £25°¢ sz1) BE-10- 4102 1E
2 ® FBV-LELND
fogy) {as1) LEV-IEL-HD
{2) {2) PEV-LEL-WO
(s) {s} SEV-LELND

jeson) Jojuels) sjussnipy o seInjpuadxg anuaaty pasjpsey 6E/LIL O SV #unn
6661 ‘L€ s0quivoaq {stumuiuday) 4D 18410 pue BnueAsy soueleg

soudeg SPHURADY SuopnQUeY 1ORIUOD PRUOD
JorIuGs pUe JURIS pue jueis puR JueID

{spuesnoy] u] SIINCWY)
6661 '1€ Jaqweoa( pepua Jeak auy Jo4
{stseq Arejebpng dyyo-UoN)

SpIEMY |£18D34 JO ainyipuadx3 Jo JNPpSKS

L857C6

$OTES
89T°E6
99Z'Es
goCth
R9TLE
e T

¥oZ'Es
¥ET'ES
[

L61'c8
L6168
6hes
16168
LBL'E6
15156
lel'ee

t51'e8
I5HES
\5h'e8
ISL'ES

10904

£58°04
15670}
15501
185°0}
155°0}

#v040

S288888

oy

ory
g

086

(135
16
1.
162
lee

punj

195°€6 "ON V040 40} B0k .
welbold 10IRD sleplloay

$8Z°CH "ON Y040 4 0],
R{oedg LRl VOGN LoEZRInI|
ueld Loy UofeZiunwuy
Hild UOGDY LORRTHIMuUL]
Ui UONDY LOREZIUMIML}
UB}) UOHDY LoRejLnwL]
voeziurLLYg spjedoy

¥ZT'E6 "ON V04D 1 IR0},
SHOMION tRRSH NEULDUID
WoMmaN jesH ReUURUD
HOAGEN YiEaH HRUMIHD

LBVC6 "ON YO 1) @101
uoiueABL] Suposiod pee jpucibed
uomeAsLd Bunisiod pee [Buoibay
uousAvd Buposiad peen [suoiBey
vogusAsld Buiosod pee jBuciloy
voueAsld Buluosiod peen) [BuciBay

Josiold Uofueasly Buniosd PesT POOUDILD

16i01g UOINIGAG) (] SUIOSI PesT] POCUPIYD

15128 ON V(40 0] 19101,
wieaBard die) ke ssaieoi}
weuiol 818 Yizey SSHOIOH
WRbold 887 WHEOH SSHPLICH
waiboyd 018D YeoH] $SEIUOH

SONAIBS USUAIE PUE R 10 jixepdad 'S T

123

FUNLINJYOY O LNSHLUYLIT WLIOL

109'0} ON Y04 1) [BI0L,
SiteLIACIA Jespep APt

1S5°01 "ON VYO0 Jo} 8oL
WaiB0dd DIAA ARINOD UOYIUEL
wesBodd DM Aking? LojnLeH
walord Hip Aunog uopiteH
WeBalg DM AunoD UCiEH
weibord DM Auncg uounLEey
anynouby Jo jeupeded ‘ST 1

ofi), wniBosguojuelo



{¥z8) les't 7 TiT'et {gza}
{56) 591 12 {6ct)
7 581 121 {ze) Z68-d9-d-10-Tie
82 52 LBZ-LE}
t b 867-L8Y
{2) 64 G6Z-L84
{zen) (ze1) p6Z-154
¥ ¥Zg 962 61
2} V54 BT §1-6Z6005HDI0EY
Z-10-05991 SHDIOIOEY
1 €8 £ Sl Z6S-Z8-d10-2 1
12 ¥4 Z+10-05993 SHODIOEY
(192} {182) FH LY
¥z 9z ou-IE1L
{2 {2) su-Lgl
{r6) Zr 9 {ool}
foc) ¥ o {ec} . T6EXGdIOTIE
” 8i-L£)
i 0] Li-igl
{5} {s) 91-1€1
(og) {os) gi-Lcl
() s S84
9 09y ]! 0zZg {rzt)
(ze1) 0L ool &) VIS0 10T E
_ av-ith
] o ot (3] YOI 10-2-1E
[ s TOv-IEE
(1e) (19 OV-LE)
{eg} te9) 9H-LEL
[T ! SH-L£}
o 9l LVYLEl
Ze rAL 0zz 09 Z6C-SY-d 02
(1) zz 41 {9)
b 74 1 3] ZEe-AG-I 0T
9 9 AIEL
(1) {1 aA-LEL
{n ] sAIEL
z z TAIEL
{s} {s) LA-LEL
{eee) 681 el5
{gee) 66l FIT] ZO09XSE # 10BINOD
1207 FL LT TS suawsnfpy o saumpusdxg anmiaasy pPoAIRdIY G6/LIL O SY #juRin
6561 1L Jeqluedeg (sjuewudeday) 840 Hyjo pug anuerey Soumpeg
souRRg SOIURADY suohnquIue) J3RAUOY PRIUCD
12RnU0Y pue Juein pu juers pus jueIn
{spuesnoy ), Ul sjunowy)
6661 'L€ 19quIaoa( pepus Jeak o) Jod
{siseq Aiejabpng dvvO-UoN)

SpIeMy [BJapa4] j0 ainypuadx3 Jo ANpayos

166°CE
16626
166°E6
166°€6
156'C6

BLG'ER
8/6°E8
el6°EE
8/6°t6
BLE'EE
9./6C6
9l6'ce

L1886
LL66
1i8°¢6
LIB'E8
11666
LiB'es

or6'c
Q¥5'es
ors'es
ore'cs
]
0rG'es
D¥6'E6
0¥8'es
0r6'ce

186
LI6°E8
L18'E6
LIBER
LIB'E8
LIB'E6

855°C6

#vado

SIOIAYIS NYIWNH ONY HLTV3H 40 INGW1IHYA3ad Tvi0oL

SZr
SZr
ser
1144
744

74
8le
BlE
BLE
gt
BLE
BLiE

gle
BLE
8L
2le
BLE
ele

BiE
eLE
gie
ele
8Le

gle
ale
BlE

glt
74>
gle
glt
115
gl

Eo¥

punyj

166°E6 'ON Y030 10} 18101
Kunog uoyuLer W yyesH uesH
Aunog uoinirey uj yyegeH Lee
Aunog uolijuieH W Uyeey WeaH
Auno?) uoiwsy Ul kel LeeH
Klunos) LoWRLEY Ul Yeey pesH

BL6'E6 "ON WD 0} 18101
sisye0 Bujurel | uonusasld AIHALS
®)51U00 BuB)L UOHUSARI] AIH/OLS

ejue) Bumaer] QLS
wjuag buner] Q1S
Joye) Bues) IS
seuag ey LS
Jajuag Byuiel]l QLS

L16'T6 ON V0D 10} 1210,
wesbosd oiued QLS
wesBoid joJwed QLS
wesBaid joipod QLS
weBor jojuod QLS
wesBold pRusdH Q18
uoHedNp WieeH SOV

OFS'€6 "ON V0D 0) |El0L
Wweunes)) pue sgouberd gi1S

. wofiuersLd SOMV SIS

sen) pesag AU SOy Sies

ale) peses Amnunuo) SOIV $IRS

0Jey) paseq AUnUILOD SOIY S1BIS

siis Buyesunog) g Bupsat, A

sig Bugesunoy g BusaL Al

wusAsld SOIV 1ped

UoueASId STV BRI

216°C6 "ON VO 4D 20§ €10, ,
SARRIL; SHUA UERY
SAYEIHU} SUAA LBAY
QMBI S UBhY
SAREII BIRAA UBAY
CAMEIU] GIRAA UBAY
SANIEJIU} BUMM UBAY

855°€6 "ON V040 10 BloL
ANVL sogrues o} souesissy Amodwe)

spiL wwbogpojuels

124



HOIYIINI 3HL 30 INSWLIHY 3O TVL0L

{1 s 9
{1) g 9 , ¥06°54 "ON V(40 1] [B10L
v} S 9 16206y  $0E'SE gee SeLod0L] DOIBIH NELRIDULD
; . Jopei) oY) jo Jusiedsq SN ¥
{eor) {158} 1414 Ze9'y Y21 (8s6) . . ANINOTIAZA NVEHN '§ ONISNOH 40 INaWLHV3A TVL0L
(zav} (£2¢) ELE') £18'1 (19¢) 006'F1 "ON V10 45} 1810), ,
(2ar [{(¥23) L'} £18°t (T3] FB-ZZOONIHO  DOB'YL 8:15 Pwlosd Uswsiegy pRaT HeUURUD
g5t gse _ , LFZ'FH "ON V04D 20} 0L
S 5 100468HOIHO  1¥Z'FL SOF  SPiV Uitn B1dosd Jo sepunpoddg) Busnol
o¥e are L00496HOIHG  trE'Yl SOF  SPIY Ui eidoed Jod sagunioddo Bupsned
(894 LIVE o€ 91t {or1} : 5 " gET'Y) 'ON YOI 205 [0,
SLZOECONBEN 6zl b INOH 1y
{ea1) Lite 0e ghi'e tovt) SIZOE-ONERE N BECYL 11 INOH N
. ogL'} 081’} BEZ'F) "ON V40 10} [ej0L
oy or SOU-ODEDBIHO  GET'F) oir 2180 NI ISIBUS-SNOH
Lo} L0l EMDOTLED0IHO  BEZYL oLk 200 Shig IBHRUS-DNOH
1 50¢ ¥az Z00C-96091HO  $EZ°F1 oy 0187 SNid JeusyS-BNCH
62¢ 82t ZCIO-SED9IHO  BET'¥I oM o180 s JOUSUS-INOH
{11) SOF oLy EBOL-EE6D9LHO  9ETH1 oty BIRD Shid JeS-INOH
¥55 5¥5 {5) 1ETPL ON V(4D 20 810),
ril ¥ol SO00-6E-DW-B6-8  1ET¥L Srr RIS Jayeys Auediows
oLe 19¢ {6) £000-BL-OW858  1ELYL =44 w0 sopoyg Aovebioury
{1eg) 0rs'gl Z09'r 1ST'yl {gr¥} 21Z°Fl "ON YOI 10} 8101
(26¢) 0rs'sl 209’y 15Tyl {ayr) £0006E0YEEE  WIZ'HL ¥08 816 %0 JULLdOEAS(] ARUMILILGD
Jusiudosaasq teqin 3 Busnoy jo Juelspeded SN €
(Lo T V)T ) sjueunsnlpy jo  saunjjpuadxy snusARY paARdaY 86/H4 JO SY # g #vas0  pund ei ) weiBosguoluel
6661 ‘1€ J1aquisdeg (sjuswhedey) s49 1Mo pue BnuBAGY sougieg
[T ] SPOURAPY SUOHNGANDY 15RRU0D 12RUOD
PDRUOY) pur ueID pus JuIH puw jues)

{spuesnoy] u| snowy)
6661 ‘L€ Joqwessq papud Jeak ay) o4
(siseq Amjobpng dvWO-UON)
SpIemy je1opa4 J0 ainypuadxs Jo Sinpads



(s {ees) . or ocs't 454 £06's (a9}
(oL} ol
ot) L[
{sz) 0s $1
{52) 05 (7]
{Le1) 891 Ly ¥9Z {t)
(e} 601 Ir ¥oZ iy
{51 or 108 9l 666 it
or oy K
{s1) 84
1), 1t £Z
iy ) e
1Y) zc ¥ :
" 4]
{6) ]
Y £l ‘
Se 19 4
() £ 05 -
o} g 9 ,
fc} {e)
fg1) {51}
gl 8l
{os) oot 0%
{ce) {eg)
] ¥y &
o or
z z
) {0L5) 816 10} 0z {824)
(&l {08) €59 1z (zzn)
Q) {9) ]
s {rey) £o2 09 0zl
_nua.._ plail Ji] ﬂﬂoEuuB—ﬂC 10 uu._w..__ﬁ_.—aum eLeADRY paajedey 664111 JO SY
€661 '1LL Jaqiuereq (Buswieday) 8§49 B0 pue anuaasy sauvie
asue|Eg SIURAPY SUONYLIUOY 0eHu0D PRUOD
J2RUCD pUE JURID pue i)y pus Jer)

{Spuesnok| ] Ut siunouy)

vi10-XMO 18881

LdOFi-LE

9855 SYA-JIMLL

FOO0-XM-1D-58
8.£47108-90-L6
8LEL- 108086
§56L-200-O0-€6
19EL-103-D(L6
18£4-104-D0-86
18€L- 1040058
64€1-108-00-LB
6.£4-109-90-98
6.£.-109-90-86
CBEL-TOHOO-16
TREL- DS D0-06
25eL-108-00-46
1984710800 6
rlEL 1040056
viEL-H0FDQ PG

0018

00ge

gocosH
§L£4-108-9(-€6
¢8el-106-00°¢6

0¥06 XAQ] 6681
OrLE¥ABTL6
SLVENAET 26
OrLE-XA-dT88

¥ein

6661 '€ Jequiasa( papua Jesh ay) Jo4
(siseg Aiejebpng dvvO-UoN)

spiemy [esepad Jo anpuadxa jo SNpayes

(R¥A:]

0LL'9

ces'ol

61594
6L5°'91
625’94
815°9%
615'94
61504
6.5'9}
615'91
6458
6L9'9L
elsal
61591
8199}
6159
BLS9
626'91
[FAR: 13
8591
8i59t
61591
659}

00281
0ozgk
002’9k
]

¥ vQ42

898

89¢

punz

FOLSN 40 LINIWLHYd3I] TWi0L

LLL'g) ON Y040 30 el
sdory 0} sdooi)

012°81 "ON VO 10} 1|14
SHORT BOI0 PRSI ABLMULIOY) J004IS

699°81 ON V04D 0} W0l
UBUOM IsUEly GOUSIOIA

815°91 'ON V(4D 40} BI10L
S0P Sd0D

UOUBABL BURID LINOA
UOGUEAS BUID INGA
1BjUBY SUAIRS UHIA

g o] Jajua) Aelg

SIS 9] e ABIS

SXS Bj Jea Aeig
pefol BouBos, ey
poefosg BaUston Aung
UONUBARI BIUBIOLA AiRLIE
uojonpey sry Asuenbulieq
uofanpay yeiy Aovenbuyeg
807 Joindwod

Fooig auj U Xokg

OHIND WSIOUONY

DjURD WSHOUONRY

Jejua?) Jebmy dois BUD
J8ue) Jeamy doiS BUD
weiold keg Alejes epeie) PINL
pEunExng v 'd'0’0
oppsng

00Z'91 "ON VO30 X} BI0L
Ul X00jg JUBLEI0JLT ME ] 16507
U210 ¥00|g IsWeOT Me 820
WEID) %o0ig ISWEdIoT M) 18007
JURID %00iF LSWEdOR MeT] 18907

sl Jo Justupeded 'S S

et wniBorguoels

. 5 @

126



£ {596'2) rrt'r9 {1 00L'89 0z8
ees's) PFE'FO PLEL9 yED
(L0g) 0%
1z VI
595'¢ S95°C
812'e FAR:Y oro's
{o0a's) irl'cy 180°6¥ ¥£9
£8 (ze) (1) ]! 981
3 (st} o991 gl
(9] ] 1
(1 {1}
{8L5) 9e0's €L get's {eri)
(845) 169 Z62'F (crl)
152} sz
{2) ] 85
, €8 3 fos)
ozt SEE Sz ,
6L £og -]
{¥e) 56 82l te)
] 5t fs1)
(3] 1)) |
fr1) s¥l I
(ze0) £0) 05€ .
06 sl (42
(8) 6)
iz £olL 8t
£59 g9 5t
fo) 6 52
¥ e {ec)
(¥ 608 058
s (15}
[(ThA] os¥ szl
829 4] {sg}
s 624'1 £ 9011
6V} £L 9041
i®307 e guewsnipy Jo sanypuedsg nusAdY peajedrey 65/L/1 Jo SY
€651 "L quiateq {sjuswiedey) sS4 18850 pun anusasy souejeg
Nuweq SHOURADY suoynguIuo D jsenu0n 1RO
JIRRUOY pue JLRID pU Juessy pue R

(SpuBsnot ] Ul SJUNowy)

G811-8100-8E-
60-8100-68-€
024 00-68-€
203100628

000680 86-€
00-00-00-£6°C
00-00-80-96-E
00-00-80-66-A
00-00-80-86A
10-00-90-66°F
1 0-00- 20860
10-00-80-48-F
€O-00-20-96-M
09-L8-00-6-96¥ LN
10-0080-66-Y
40-00-80r86°Y
10-00-80-48-8
+0-00-80-66-8
10-00-20-86-8
0 00-90-66"1
10-00-8C-B6-}
+0-00-90-66-8
1 0-00-80-86-5
Hr 0090660
10-00-80-86-0

YEOO-XM- - L6

#IRID

866} 'L€ Jaquisna(] papua Jeak auj Jod

(siseq Aeybpng dyvo-UoN)

spiemy [e1opa4 Jo aimipuadxd) Jo einpeydg

S0Z'0Z

S0E'02
SOC0C
S0C02

o002
a0l'0g
90108
Q0102

05T L)
05zl
szl
szl
osTLL
(141 |
0sT'L)
05l
05T°LL
05T L)
05T L)
05Z°LE
05272
05T 1L
05Tl
052748
05211
05T L)
[ TAfA )
ST L
0sZ'LL

627}

#vad42

NOUY.LHO4SNYYL 40 LNIGN1¥Yd3a TWI0L

S0Z°0Z ON YD 0} Biol

“D26 UoUDnIIsUOD pue Supueld AsmyBiy
LObZ-086 uognisuoy pue Butiuely Aemybiy
9622-006 uogonusues) pue Buued Aeaubii
962Z-088 “uofponssucy) pue Buluueld Aemyby
S822:095 uolpiuisucy pre Suuued Aemubiy

£01°02 "ON VLI x0f =101

5112086 JuBLUSACIL WID VY L6, Ueum)
LOZL-06 epeibdn puths poday uaxum
1691-086 V40 WT-HZ MY uesur]

tueludorere( JefueH- | usxu

0691086
! uogepOdsueL] 0 Jueupeded 'S L

127

HOGY 30 INSWLEYJIA WLOL
052°21 "ON VYO0 103 0],
1744 B VI epLvdLr
iy by Wl oL dLr
Php , V-l epLASLE
£y bog [0 Tha 2T Ty
crr ol eR1-vdAr
6Er » W SULVILr
écr Y W sh1vaLr
scv P el EnLvdar
gEr gzn_mw“__ M1l
gcr NI SL-VdAr
ok , mn__ amL-vdir
eck \ {AnL-vdLr
gy S0l oi-vdLr
BEY VMO SL-VdLr
PN Srvemaai siL-vdLr
icr W S L-ILr
157 Wi efu1-Ydlr
sEr g S L-dLP
sey B+ s vdir
143 Vel ap-vdir
04 Vi eL-vdir
10Z°L1 "ON V(4D Joj [e10L
e wasbosy Bupp pEsieArn
10q87 jo Juswpeded 'S 9
pung Rt weibarduojueis



*000'002°65$ PHIRI0) 656 *LE JBQUIENa 18 BUIPUEISING SUEO] JUaWdOBASD ANUAIOD (B10)

1

““““““““ IR
(oor)
oZy
I¥h'L
{1v6'2)
(104 'g9)
(Y1) RSN {1 ¥ of | BANALGR || S RNHSEReURe 1/, & /) SUENN | 04 0sL'201 {s08'2)
{8h) {zzsi {o1) g1et 62 ) {ozs}
{r2zs) SLE’L 622 510°) {55}
T3] 0ig sL a5t Bz1]
{ose) ££5 z T4 {zaz}
{sg) ziy Fa! 162 {rat)
{13} 1] fol) i (s2}
W ) on i el
@ o1 50} (g}
[£4] ohL 60} %)
0
(z) ok 60} (e
{38} 1378 gt ot {ea)
— (ag) £9l 8t 1]} (c8)
{es) €ol BE 0L (6]
18207 Jojuels) sjususnipy 1o seanypuedxy . BnusABY panasey B&/ILIL JO By
€661 ‘LS 1aquisdeQ (nuawdedey) 840 o0 pue snudAsy asuRieg
soueeg WAEAY suopnauIuon PenuoD pEL T,
YD PUT RIS puR juely pue Jerg
(spuesnoy| u sunowy)

ssq Asjebpng JdyyO-UoN ¥ U0 pejuesasd 5| SPIBAY [810paJ) JO SINEPURdT J0 BINPSLDS ByL

WRUUIDULT 0 ARD) BY) O} 0K 0 G1E1G aul YBnosny pessed SORIOu [€18PFd SajRN] 4

00051~ g-HO-2THL

HO- P93 =40 VNI

00054 -19-4a-Fos |

“orHO-0ELSEBX

1O~ H0-1 9ESEEA
O LO-192688A

0-r98E-0kk

PRIITY

6661 ‘1€ Jaquada( papua jeeh 8y} 4oy

{siseg Ljebpng JvyD-UoN)

spiemy 12I9pe4 Jo aINjipuadxg J0 enpayag

{n1s0 dvVO) saipieging g MUNID [eaped W panuBodey Sunouy

BG/LEAZ) 18 SOIPISGNS § WRJD) [RIGPa) JO [BLBJEY] §59]
BE/1/Z) 12 SOIPISONG B WO ISP JO [BUGRQ Shid
GE/VEIZ1 1R SOIPISONG '3 WIEIE) [R1600.) JO RNIOY Shid
GE/LEIZH 18 TAPISGNS 7 IURID) [BI6P0.L JO RNIIOY $50')

rpde) peinquiIoD $% pazuBioday RINOWYY $$607

el JyyoIoH) STAISENS ' SINVED WESAAI TIVIOL -

91SER
oI15'cR
9lscw

oto'es

009°59

¢00'2L

#Y040

ADNIOY INDWSOYNVIH ADNBOUING TWH303d V101

59
Loy
19¥

1947

£5¥
€Sy

L [4%

pungj

619°c8 'ON VU0 X [BioL
werg pauod poold W4
RIS o0 POt YIND
welg ied poold YiNdd

010°69 'ON V04D 10} {B10)
yoselny esuadsay fouebliewg

Kfously wewebeuey fovelews faisped 0| N

N

-—

AINIOY NOILIBLOY TYLNIWNOMIANE TYLOL

009°88 'ON V04D 19 [Bi0)
Josfoid 1oitd Dregumoig
oeldld 101d PRYUmag
A2uBBy UOSIC] IBJIBLILOIAIT §

NOLLIV V101

Z00"L} ON VOO 203 1B10),
weifold Jeounion Jowes Pasiey
uoay ¢

apiL ureiBorguosid



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
INFRASTRUCTURE INCOME TAX

In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 311 of the Cincinnati Municipal Code, an additional
earnings tax of .1% shall be levied for costs related to constructing, equipping, maintaining and
repair of the City's infrastructure. Such tax shall remain in effect as long as the City appropriates

at least the base amount required and subsequently expends funds at a level (ninety percent of the
annual base amount within three years) specified in Chapter 311, CMC.

The following data summarizes the results of the City's compliance with the infrastructure income
tax requirements for 1999 and 1998.

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
1999 . 1998
Required Base Amount $56,607 $55,248
Actual Appropriated Amount $79,649 $77,524
Infrastructure Expenditures
- As of December 31, 1999 o $41,464 $63,405
Percentage of Expenditures to Base Amount 73.2480% 114.7643%

I hereby certify that the City of Cincinnati appropriated for 1999 an amount sufficient to meet the
requirements for continuation of the Infrastructure Income Tax. I also certify that the City of
Cincinnati did expend through 1999 for the 1998 Infrastructure year more than 90% of the annual
base amount, which satisfies the requirements for continuation of the Infrastructure Income Tax.

Timothy H. Riordan
Director of Finance
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

General Fund
General Governmental Expenditures by Function

Last Ten Years

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Public Services,
General Parks and Public  Transportation Public

1990 $30,595 - $12,915 $84,912 $ $21,461 $15,022 344,287 $209,192
1951 32,217 - 13,357 88,426 20,516 15,590 45,605 215,711
1992 32,959 14,446 92,137 21,934 16,291 48.174 225,941
1993 30,055 13,837 94,809 19,765 14,703 48,215 221,384
1994 31,772 14,621 68,052 ' 19,376 14,887 50,788 229,406
1995 34,333 14,668 103,231 20,522 15,380 51,775 239,909
1996 38,578 15,314 107,156 18,839 16,306 52,685 248,878
1997 40,307 16,535 113,958 19,699 17,791 53,659 261,949
1998 44 849 17,338 118,730 20,525 18,682 49,997 270,121
1999 50,248 19,146 126,205 22,066 20,831 48,782 287,278

Note - The column titled "General Government” includes expenditures made in various departments including Office of City

Manager, Law, Personnel, Finance, City Planning, Economic Development, Buildings and Inspections, and General
Services.

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
General Fund
General Governmental Revenues by Source

Last Ten Years
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Licenses Use of Inter- Charges
and Money and governmental For Current

1990 $147,843 $4,465 $18,388 $31,116 $ 7,751 $2.114 $211,677
1991 153,491 4,339 16,283 32,180 8,548 1,914 216,755
1992 158,342 4,562 10,564 31,518 10,302 1,752 217,040
1993 164,490 4,603 9,343 . 35,170 10.648 1.122 . 225,376
1994 170,407 4,899 9,280 38,802 11,785 1,201 236,374
1995 174,688 5,010 12,071 38,963 12,282 1,266 244,280
1996 176,397 5,569 14,366 41,371 13,202 850 251,755
1997 191,346 5,202 13,876 45,454 12,842 2,102 270,822
1998 194,702 5,043 14,717 49,581 11,392 2,870 278,305
1999 209,606 5,200 14,134 52,355 12,901 1,885 296,081
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Year
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

Net

Current

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Last Ten Years

Percentage
of Current

Collections  Prior Year

Property Tax Levy and Collections

Total

Percentage
of Total
Collections

$42,234,457
49,494,178
48,879,896
49,234,901
54,050,028
53,978,024
53,713,379
56,128,543
56,435,352
56,218,046

Assessed Valuations

Year
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1956
1997
1998
1999

Real Property
$2,556,002,580
3,158,153,430
3,161,209,230
3,165,220,020
3,561,282,660
3,540,684,410
3,531,863,130
3,732,312,910
3,734,237,420
3,749,677,500

$40,402,470 95.66%  $1,729,236 $42,131,706 99.76%
47,159,174 95.28 1,307,632 48,466,806 97.92
46,917,332 95.98 1,511,000 48,428,332 99.08
47,532,229 . 96.44 1,847,653 49,379,382 100.19
51,869,952 95.97 2,028,235 53,898,187 99.72
52,084,199 96.49 1,858,948 53,943,147 99.94
51,586,332 . 96.04 1,572,712 53,159,044 98.97
53,274,996 94.92 2,080,494 55,355,490 08.62
53,642,749 95.05 1,892,964 55,535,713 98.41
52,974,060 94,23 1,986,691 54,960,751 97.76

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Assessed Valuations and Estimated True Values
Last Ten Years

Public Utility Tangible Personal

$365,696,030 - $716,495,760 $3,638,194,370
371,183,780 727,123,570 4,256,460,780
393,517,770 690,438,300 4,245,165,300
422,856,220 675,662,090 4,263,738,330
439,762,520 672,466,430 4,673,511,610
450,760,050 689,532,610 4,680,977,070
421,404,651 707,228,240 4,660,496,021
419,703,440 689,982 870 4,841,999,220
395,256,670 672,898,830 4,802,392 920
398,949,700 664,939,340 4,813,566,540

The current assessed valuation for 1999 is computed at approximately the following percentages of estimated
true value:
real property - 35%; public utilities - 100%; and tangrble personal property machinery and
equipment - 25%; inventory - 25%.

For real property, the estimataed true values for the last ten years are computed as follows:

Estimated Estimated
Xear True Values Xear True Values
1990 $7,302,864,514 1995 $10,116,241,171
1991 0,023,295,514 1996 10,001,037,514
1992 9,032,026,371 1997 10,663,751,117
1993 9,043,485,771 1998 10,669,249,771
1994 10,175,093,314 1999 10,713,364,285

For public utility property, the estimated true values for the last ten years are the same as the above assessed
valuations. For tangible personal property, the City is not able to calculate estimated true values for the last
ten years because the tangible personal property components (machinery and equipment, and business
inventory) have been assessed over the years at different percentages.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Years

Debt Service

City School County Total Included in
1989 for 1990 $11.46 $41.50 $16.26 $69.22 $5.36 $6.80
1990 * 1991 11.46 40,44 16.88 68.78 5.36 6.32
1991 « 1992 11.46 50.04 17.50 79.00 5.36 6.18
1992 * 1993 11.46 49.94 18.56 79.96 5.36 6.14
1993 * 1994 11.46 48.75 18.33 78.54 5.36 6.03
1994 = 1995 11.46 48.53 18.30 78.34 5.36 591
1995 * 1996 11.46 53.52 18.30 83.28 5.36 5.88
1996 “ 1997 11.46 53.19 19.44 84.09 5.36 5.81
1997 * 1998 11.46 53.13 15.01 83.60 5.36 5.71
1998 “ 1999 11.46 53.13 19.54 84.13 5.36 5.71

Note: Rates are expressed as dollars of tax per thousand dollars of taxable valuation.

Source: Hamilton County Auditor's Office

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
December 31, 1999

Assessed Net General Net Tax
Valuation Tax Supported Percent Supported
@ Debt Qiﬁl:lanmnz Qienall.nebi
Direct: )
City of Cincinnati $4,813,566,540 $112,420,155 100% $112,420,155
Overlapping:
Board of Education -
Cincinnagi City
School District  5,415,896,110 - 64,412,000 (a) 9% 57,326,680
Hamilton County 15,351,400,200 . 191,186,768 (b) 31% —939.267.898
Subtotal 255,598 768 116,594,378
Total £368.018.923 . $222.014,733

(a) Source: Cincinnati City School District
(b) Source: Hamilton County Auditor's Office

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Special Assessment Billings and Collections
Last Ten Years
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Year Rilli Callecti Year Billi Collect;
1990 $2,257 $1,563 1995 $1,918 $2,344
1991 1,478 1,628 1996 2,215 2,437
1992 2,137 2,047 1997 2,937 2,004
- 1993 3,202 2,068 1998 2,150 2,079
1994 1,038 2,225 1999 2,041 2,343

Source: City of Cincinnati Finance Department

133



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt
To Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Years
Ratio of Net
Net Bonded Bonded Debt Net Bonded
Debt Population To Assessed = Debt Per

Year —(Note1) , Assessgd_lialn& —(Note2) —Value = _Capifa
1990 $130,340,618 $3,638,194,370 364,000 3.58% $358
1961 126,303,395 . 4,256,460,780 364,000 2.97 : 347
1992 128,737,521 4,245,165,300 364,000 3.03 ~ 354
1993 128,416,636 4,263,738,300 364,000 3.01 353
1994 125,291,191 4,673,511,610 364,000 . 2.68 344
1995 121,543,637 4,680,977,070 364,000 2.60 334
1996 114,646,410 4,660,496,021 - 345,820 2.46 332
1997 113,189,887 4,841,999.220 . . 345,820 2.34 327
1998 112,490,050 4,802,392,920 _ 345,820 2.34 325
1999 112,420,155 4,813,566,540 336,400 2.34 334

Note 1 - Includes only the net general obligation debt that is tax supported.

Note 2 - The 1990 - 1999 figures are based on Bureau of the Census data.

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Ratio of Annual Debt Service for General
Bonded Debt to Total General Fund Expenditures

Last Ten Years
{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Debt Service

on General

Obligation General Fund
Year - —Debt Expenditures . Ratio .
1990 $51,628 $209,192 24.68%
1991 47,393 215,711 21.97
1992 .. 48,582 225,941 21.50
1993 48,871 221,384 22.08
1994 54,834 229,496 23.89
1995 55,354 239,909 23.07
1996 56,979 248,878 22.89
1997 55,714 261,949 . 21.27
1998 58,019 270,121 .. . . 21.48
1999 : . 60,869 287,278 21.19
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Overall Debt Limitation - 10-1/2%
of Assessed Valuation

Gross Indebtedness
Less Debt Cutside Limitations:
Self-Supporting Debt
Urban Redevelopment Bonds

Net Debt Within 10-1/2% Limitation

Legal Debt Margin Within
10-1/2% Limitation

Unvoted Debt Limitation - 5-1/2%
of Assessed Valuation
Gross Indebtedness Authorized by Council
Less Debt Qutside Limitations:
Municipal Income Tax Supported Bonds
and Notes
Off-Street Parking Facilities Bonds
Recreational Facilities Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Stormwater Management Bonds
Urban Development Bonds
Urban Redevelopment Bonds
Urban Renewal Bonds
Watar Works Bonds

Net Debt Within 5-1/2% Limitation

Legal Debt Margin Within 5-1/2% Limitation

December 31

$310,572,000

187,522,000

—— 410,000

187,932,000

$310,162,000

22,953,000
2,685,000

7,080,000 .

12,779,000
7,000,000
7,200,000
2,895,000
13,990,000
110,940,000
187,522,000
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Legal Debt Margin

1999

$505,424,487

1998

$504,251,257

$382,784,487  §3R0.621.257

1999

$264,746,160

$264,131,611

_122,640000 123,630,000
$142.106,160  R140.50L.611



TEN LARGEST AD VALOREM TAXPAYERS IN
CITY OF CINCINNATI 1999

The following is a list of the ten largest ad valorem taxpayers (based on the taxable valuation of their property)
subject to the City's taxing jurisdiction. The valuations were provided to the City's Finance Department by
the Hamilton County Auditor's Office.

Percentage
of Total
Taxable Assessed
Cinergy Public Utility $ 308,384,170 6.41%
The Procter & Gamble Co. Consumer Goods _
Manufacturing 128,653,610 2.67
Cincinnati Bell
Telephone, Inc. Public Utility 95,172,510 1.98
Emery Realty Real Estate Holdings 30,975,000 .64
Prudental Insurance Real Estate Holdings 28,000,000. 58
Columbia Development Real Estate Holdings 28,000,000 S8
Ohio Teachers Retirement
System Real Estate Holdings 26,775,000 .56
Fifth Third Center Real Estate Holdings 21,350,000 .44
580 Walnut Partners Real Estate Holdings 21,000,000 44
Senior Lifestyle Real Estate Holdings 19,285,280 40
All Others _4,105,970,970 8530 .
Total Taxable Valuation $4,813,566,540(b) 100.00%

{a) The taxable valuation is based upon both the Personal and Real Property Valuation of the largest property
holders in the City.

(b) The total assessed valuation figure is the 1998 for 1999 purposes amount.
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Name _of Employer
The Kroger Co.

The Procter & Gamble Co.

U.S. Government
University of Cincinnati
Health Alliance

General Electric
Tri-Health Inc.

Cincinnati Public Schools
American Financial Group

City of Cincinnati

Source:

The following table lists the unemployment rates for the Cincinnati Metropolitan area for the past five years.
The figures are expressed in percentages and represent the ratio of the total unemployed to the total labor

force.

TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS
IN CINCINNATI PRIMARY

METROPOLITAN STATISTICAL AREA

Nature of Business

Consumer Goods Distribution
Consumer Goods Manufacturing
Federal Government

Education

Heaithcare

Aircraft Engines

Healthcare

Education

Financial Services

Municipal Government

Greater Cincinnati Chamber of Commerce
internet site April, 2000,

City of Cincinnati Employment Statistics are

provided by the City's Department of Finance

Approximate
Number of

—Emplovees -
16,200
14,200
13,600
13,600
13,400
7,500
7,500
7,400
6,000

5,850

and include fulltime employees at December 31, 1999,

Unemployment Statistics

Year Rate
1995 - 42%
1996 43
1997 3.8
1998 3.4
1999 33

Source: Bureau of Employment Services, State of Ohio
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Construction, Bank Deposits and Property Value

Last Ten Years
New Residential New Non-Residential Total
Number Estimated Number Estimated Number  Estimated
of Cost of Cost of Cost
1990 116 $31,050 653 $83,755 11,268 $325,569
1991 115 23,470 720 42,530 11,450 209,230
1992 167 37,000 828 38,217 11,837 224,424
1993 133 21,228 817 63,218 12,131 216,233
1994 148 20,553 838 19,068 11,724 182,643
1995 136 16,051 778 40,881 11,108 201,767
1996 160 20,062 1,003 56,595 11,306 258,999
1997 127 13,332 - 735 32,095 11,911 231,917
1998 142 12,973 533 36,588 11,433 266,664
1999 129 12,088 497 196,139 9,471 448,484
— PropertyValue 3y .
Bank Depaosits
) Residential Non-Residential
1990 $10,447,237 $4,697,205 $2,605,659
1991 11,745,028 4,726,434 4,296,861
1992 13,500,357 4,757,714 4,274,312
1993 - 15,290,052 4,757,764 4,285,722
1994 17,301,493 5,342,062 4,833,031
1995 _ 18,661,138 5,360,460 4,755,871
1996 21,598,936 . 5,376,340 4,714,698
1997 18,070,437 5,954,496 4,709,255
1998 24,305,322 S , 5,961,433 4,707,816
1999 41,678,898 ) 5,979,174 4,734,190

Source: (1) The City's Department of Buildings and Inspections records.
(2) Greater Cincinnati Chamber of Commerce for the Hamilton County Area (1990-1998).
1999 - Rederal Reserve Bank

(3) Values obtained from the Hamilton County Auditor’s Office.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

Salaries of Principal Officials
Position _ o ala

Mayor $54,450
Councilmember, other than Mayor £50,950 .
City Manager $156,503
Commissioner of Health $95,397 - $128,786
Deputy City Manager $95,397 - $128,786
City Solicitor $95,397 - $128,786
Various Department Directors $71,224 - §110,223

CITY COUNCIL

The legislature of the Cirty is a nine-member council elected at large on a partisan basis for two-year terms.
The mayor is the council candidate receiving the highest number of votes in the biennial general election.
The vice-mayor is chosen by council from its membership. A list of the council incumbents and the term
each is presently serving appears on page (xxiii). Council selects the city manager who appoints the deputy
city manager and the department directors.

CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Surety Bond Coverage

Specific surety bond coverage is maintained by the City for the following employees at the amounts listed.

City Treasurer ' T $500,000
Income Tax Commissioner 100,000

A faithful performance blanket bond coverage of $100,000 is maintained for all City employees.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Demographic Statistics

1990 1980 ... 1970 2 _1960 = _1950

Population 364,040 385,457 452,524 502,550 503,998
0-4 30,595 28,781 38,520 56,316 48,241
5-19 73,156 82,125 119,261 118,827 95,064
20-64 209,563 218,839 235,884 268,796 310,448
65 -99 50,726 55,712 58,859 58,611 50,245
Race

White 220,285 251,144 325,394 . 392,865 425,313
Black 138,132 130,467 125,070 108,757 78,196
Other 5,623 3,846 2,060 928 439
Employment , _

Labor Force 158,881 159,396 183,877 201,729 214,460
Male 79,866 85,303 105,618 127,816 144,378
Female 79,015 74,003 ' 78,259 73,913 70,082
Private 126,181 122,095 - 139,737 156,827 167,859
Government 24,591 30,738 27,072 20,495 17,124
Self Employed 7,673 6,323 - 8,091 " 11,498 16,466
Total Units 169,088 172,571 172,551 171,679 162,591
Units Occupied 154,342 157,677 159,838 161,827 158,937
Owner Occupied 59,172 60,673 61,504 65,355 60,287
Renter Occupied 95,170 97,004 98,334 96,472 98,650
All Units 1.9 1.9 2.2 24 2.7
Owner Occupied 23 24 2.7 2.9 33
Renter Occupied 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.3 2.4
Education (In School ,

Elementary *36,321 46,909 - 64,681 69,996 52,505
High School *20,000 21,049 26,575 22,145 16,600
College 33,105 29,397 22,494 10,650 7,330
Median $26,774 $ 16,800 $ 8,894 $ 5,701 $ 2,644
Source: City Planning Commission. This data was extracted by the Commission from various reports

of the U.S. Bureau of the Census.

* Estimated by the City's Finance Department,
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Cincinnati Profile

Government and History

Cincinnati was founded in 1788, chartered as a village in 1802, and incorporated as a City within Hamilton
County in 1819. Major revisions to the City Charter were approved by the voters in 1926 to provide for home
rule and the council-manager form of government. Copies of the City Charter are available on request from
the Clerk of Council; City Hall; Cincinnati, Ohio 45202.

Population Estimate Census Census Census Census
J1/98 1990 1980 _197¢ 1960
Cincinnati - City ..... 336,400 364,040 385,457 453,514 502,550
Hamilton County ..... 847,403 866,228 873,224 925,944 364,121
Metropolitan Area . . ... 1,617,836 1,452,645 1,401,491 1,387,207 1,268,479
Area
Cincinnati . ................ 77 sq. miles
HamiltonCounty . ............ 413 sq. miles
Metropolitan Area ............ 3,343 sq. miles

Geographically, the City of Cincinnati is located on the Ohio River in Southwestern Ohio near the junction of
Chio, Indiana and Kentucky. Cincinnati is centrally located relative to the thirty-three major U. S. distribution
centers. Within 600 miles of Cincinnnati reside 54 % percent of the nation's population, 53% of the nation's
purchasing power, 54 % of the nation's manufacturing establishments and 57% of the nation's value added by
manufacturing.

1999 City Data
Milesof Street ... ..o i ittt it i e iaa e 2,820
Milesof Sewer Mains . .........cou'euneenns 2,900
Milesof Water Mains ... .................. 2,300
Number of Water Customers . .......cc.0vs..- 900,000
Number of Water Customer Accounts . ......... 223,900
Number of Sewer Customers . ............... 200,000
Number of Sewer Customer Accounts . ......... 200,000
Acres of Parks and RecreationLand . ........... 7,300
Number of Recreation Facilities . . ... .......... 204
Gross General Bonded Debt . ... ... ccveeen... $310,572,000
Gross Debt per Capita (336,400 est. population) . ... $923.22

Number of Municipal Employees, including three/quarter time

Police 1,058 Service Maintenance 728
Fire 796 Technicians 627
Security 13 Professionals 1,177
Clerical 590 Para-Professionals 229
Skilled Crafts 395 Administrators - 240
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Cincinnati, Ohio and

Jim Petro, Auditor of State of Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Cincinnati,
Ohio (the “City™), as of December 31, 1999 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing
Table of Contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of the City. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such general purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio as of December 31, 1999 and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust funds for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements of the City taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. This schedule is the
responsibility of the management of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 9,
2000, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu



integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Dullsitte, ¥ Toocbn LLP

June 9, 2000
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Comparative Statement of Plan Met Assets
Pension Trust
December 31
{Amounts in Thousands)

199% 1998
Assels .
Cash and Equivalents $ 86,456 $ 93,561
Receivables:
Due from Other Funds 32 118
Due from Other Governments 240 324
Accounts, Net 34,161 7.880
Accrued interest and Dividends 9,770 10,245
Total Receivables 44,203 18,567
investments, at fair value:
U. S. Government Bonds 171,468 198,380
U. S. Government Agencies 83,287 46,023
U. 5. Govemment Mortgage Backed Securities 233,910 217,958
Corporate Bonds 168,010 152,760
Stocks 1,844,185 1,666,592
Asset Backed Securities 85,573 85,588
Venture Capital 14,130 8,220
Commercial Paper 29,073 3,680
Total investments, at fair value 2,629,644 2,379,211
Loans Receivable 22,850 23,187
Equipment 27 17
Accumulated Depreciation (14) (11)
Total Assets 2,783,176 2,514,532
Liabilities:
Accounts Payahle 149,231 97,086
Due to Other Funds 1,404 1,248
Accrued Payroll 34 20
Accrued Liabilities 5,980 5,287
Deferred Revenue 51 276
Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences 73 89
Total Liabilities 156,783 104,008
Net assets: :
Held in Trust for Employees' Pension Benefits 1,862,508 1,703,677
Held in Trust for Employees’ Postemployment :
Healthcare Benefits 763,884 706,849
Combined Net Assets $ 2,626,393 $ 2410526
e b—

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets
Pension Trust

For the year ended December 31
(Amounts in Thousands)

Pension Heaithcare Total Total
1999 1899 1999 1958
Additions:
Contributions:
Member 3 9,873 $ 3,21 3 13,164 $ 12,882
Employer 8,576 3,192 12,768 24,815
Total Contributions 19,449 6,483 25,832 37,897
Investment Income
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of investments 162,428 54,143 216,572 236,895
Interest and Dividends 52,936 17,645 70,581 63,522
215,365 71,788 287,153 300,517
Less investment expense 5,269 1,756 7,025 6,543
Net investment income 210,096 70,032 280,128 293,974
Total Additions 228,545 76,515 306,060 331,671
Deductions:
Benefits Payments:
Pension and Annuities 67,626 67.626 61,473
Hospital and Medical Care 16,826 16,826 15,585
Medicare 1,987 1.887 1,921
Death Benefits, Active and Retired 1,078 1,078 411
Loss Due to Death of Members with Loans 8 8 24
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems 0 101
Total Benefits Payments 68,712 18,813 87,525 79,515
Refunds of Contributions 1,285 428 1,713 2,336
Administration Expenses: ‘
Persanal Services 282 a7 389 378
Contractual Services 382 127 509 277
Materials and Supplies 14 5 - 19 48
Other 25 9 34 50
Depreciation 3 1 4 3
Total Administration Expenses 718 239 955 756
Total Deductions 70,713 19,480 90,183 82,607
Net Increase (Decrease) 158,832 57,035 215,867 249,064
Net Assets heid in Trust for Benefits
Beginning of Year 1,703,677 706,849 2,410,626 2,161,462
End of Year $ 1,862,508 $ 763,884 $ 2,626,393 $ 2410526
b 3 - —_ ..

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Cincinnati, Ohio
External Investment Pool
Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 1999
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets
Equity in City Treasury Cash 3 31,706
Net Assets
Net assets consist of:
Participant deposits h) 31,706
City of Cincinnati, Ohio
External Investment Pool
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year Ended December 31, 1999
{Amounts in Thousands)
Revenues
Interest income b3 1,648
Fair value increases and decreases (270)
Total revenues 1,378

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations

Distributions to participants (196,064)
Participant deposits 200,398
Total increase in net assets resulting from operations 4,334
Net increase in net assets 5,712
Net assets beginning of period 25,994
Net assets end of period 3 31,706

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Cincinnati is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. It is governed with the powers of home
rule by a council of nine members who are elected at large for two year terms. Cincinnati adopted a city
manager-council form of local government in 1926.

A. Reporting Entity

The City as a reporting entity consists of only one governmental unit. Cincinnati has no component units -
defined as entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.

The following organizations are included in the combined financial statements of the City because, under Ohio
law, they have limited corporate powers and are therefore not legally separate organizations:

Cincinnati Park Board

Cincinnati Recreation Commission
City Planning Commission
Cincinnati Board of Health

Civil Service Commission

Cincinnati owns a raiiway line, the Cincinnati Southern Railway, that was completed in 1881 and extends from
Cincinnati, Ohio to Chattanooga, Tennessee, a distance of 335 miles. Improvements have been made at
various intervals; the most recent, a major line revision to eliminate tunnel clearance restrictions, grades, and
curves, was completed in 1964. Improvements other than buildings in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group includes $83,224,000 attributabie to the City's cost to construct and improve this railway system. The
railway is leased to the Cincinnati, New Orleans and Texas Pacific Railway Company until December 31,
2026, with an option to extend the lease for an additional 25 years. The lessee is part of the Norfolk Southern
Railway System and is its second largest operating unit. Total rental income from the railway lease was
$15,256,000 in 1999 and $15,217,000 in 1993,
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B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the City of Cincinnati for 1999 are prepared in accordance with standards
promuigated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These standards include the
effective pronouncements of the National Council on Governmental Accounting and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants which are considered to be "generally accepted accounting principles” for state
and local entities, until they are altered, amended, supplemented, revoked or superseded by a subsequent
GASB pronouncement. For Proprietary Funds, the City has elected only to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Fund and Account Groups

The City records its transactions in numerous individual funds and account groups to comply with the
limitations and restrictions placed on both the resources made avatilable to the City and the services provided.
These financial statements present all of the fund types and account groups of the City. Individual funds and
account groups summarized in the accompanying financial statements are classified as follows:

1) Governmentzl Fund Types

Governmental funds are segregations of financial resources where the measurement focus is upon
determination of financial position and changes in that financial position. The City operates within a
biennial budget which is authorized by City Council through annual appropriations. The City’s records
show that revenues, actual and accrued expenditures, and encumbrances comply with legat, accounting
and budgetary restrictions.

The governmental fund types include:

General Fund - This is the primary operating fund for the City and it is used to account for all revenues
and expenditures which are not accounted for in other funds or account groups.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
funds for major capital projects) that are legaily restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for principal and interest on general obligation bonds
paid principally from taxes levied by the City. It also accounts for the servicing of general obligation
self-supporting bonds and for capital lease payments of governmental funds.

Capital Project Funds - These funds are used primarily to account for resources designated to construct
or acquire general fixed assets. Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of general
obligation debt, federal and state grants and City income tax (see Note 10). 1t is the City's policy to use
the proceeds derived from the sale of bonds only for the capital improvement purpose detailed in the bond
authorizing ordinance and in accordance with state statutes. Any premium and accrued interest received
from the sale of bonds is deposited into the Debt Service Fund.

2) Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - These funds account for operations of entities that provide services, on a user charge
or other basis, to the general public or private organim;ions.

Internal Service Funds - These funds were established to account for the purchase and sale of goods or
services between City departments or agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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3)

4)

3

The measurement focus is on income determination or cost of services. All assets and liabilities are
included on the balance sheet, and the reported fund equity is an indication of the economic net worth
of the funds involved.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a fiduciary
capacity. These funds include expendable and nonexpendable trust funds, a pension trust fund, an
external investment pool and agency funds. Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, and depreciation is
determined using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives (5-40 years).

Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets - Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental services are
recorded as expenditures in the fund making the expenditure and capitalized in the general fixed assets
account group. These assets are capitalized at historical cost, or estimated values which approximate
historical cost. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the time of acquisition.
Construction in Progress includes uncompleted infrastructure improvements; however, the cost of
completed infrastructure improvements is not included in the general fixed assets account group.
Accumulated depreciation is not reported on general fixed assets.

Proprietary Fund Types - Fixed assets in the proprietary funds are stated at historical cost (estimated fair
market value at time of acquisition for assets contributed). Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful lives. The following lives are used:

Water Mains 100 years
Buildings and improvements  25-70 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-40 years
Automotive Equipment 3 years

All fixed assets under construction and intended for ultimate use by a proprietary fund are recorded at
historical cost in the applicable proprietary funds.

General Long-Term Obligations

All unmatured long-term indebtedness other than that directiy related to and expected to be paid from
proprietary or fiduciary funds is reported in the general long-term obligations account group. The general
obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition to the unmatured general
long-term indebtedness, it is the City's policy to record long-term liabilities of the governmental funds for
ceriain compensated absences, non-current obligations under capital leases, estimated claims and
Judgments, and unfunded pension costs representing the City’s commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

The financial statements inciuded herein show the amount available in the debt service fund for debt

payment and the amount that must be provided in future years for debt redemption and other long-term
liabilities.

S19-



Measurement Focus

The governmental fund types utilize the flow of financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual
basis of accounting, with recognition of revenues in the accounting period in which they become measurable
and available.

Income taxes and delinquent property taxes for the current and prior periods are determined to be susceptible
to accrual and are recognized as revenue in the current accounting period. All other major revenues of
governmental funds are determined not to meet the criteria of ¢ither being measurable or available. Available
means they are collectible within the current reporting period or soon encugh thereafter to pay current
liabilities. Expenditures are recognized when the fund liability is incurred except for (1) inventories of
materials and supplies that may be considered expenditures either when purchased or when used, and (2)
prepaid expense items that may be considered expenditures either when paid for or when consumed.
Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods and services. All
encumbrances that are outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year
expenditures and are not considered either expenditures or liabilities in the current period.

The proprietary fund type statements are prepared utilizing the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting for revenues, which are recognized when they are earned, and for expenses,
which are recognized when they are incurred. Unbilled service receivabies are recognized by proprietary funds
when the services are provided.

The fiduciary fund types recognize revenue and expenditures/expenses on a basis consistent with the fund's
accounting measurement objective. Nonexpendable trust funds, the pension trust fund and the external
investment pool are accounted for on the accrual basis. Agency funds' assets and liabilities and expendable
trust fund transactions are accounted for on the modified accrual basis.

Budgetary Data

An operating budget is legally adopted each fiscal year for the General Fund and those Special Revenue Funds
(i.e. Health Services; Street Construction, Maintenance and Repair; Parking Meter; Cable T.V.; Income Tax
Infrastructure; Income Tax Transit; Motor Vehicle License; and Special Recreation) identified as appropriated
in the financial statements. Budgetary data for better management control exists over the Nonappropriated
Special Revenue Funds. The Combined Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual does not include those Nonappropriated Special Revenue
Funds. The budgetary data reports included within the financial statements are prepared on a cash basis of
accounting, with the exception of certain accrued personal service and employee benefit costs. Encumbrances,
which do not lapse at year-end, are included as expenditures in the current year budget (Non-GAAP). The
budgetary process begins at least six months prior to the calendar year for which the budget is to be adopted,
with the City certifying the proposed budget to the County Auditor by July 20. By January 1, City Council
may adopt annual or temporary appropriation measures using, in part, the official certificate of estimated
resources approved by the County Budget Commission and tax rates certified by the County Auditor. By April
1, City Council must adopt annual appropriation ordinances. Appropriations lapse at year end.

The levels of appropriation control for each budgeted expenditure classification that may not be exceeded are:

personal services, non-personal services, capital outlay, and debt service. Any revisions that alter the budgeted
expenditure classification of any division within a City department must be approved by City Council. During
the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

-20-



The adjustinents necessary to convert the results of operations and fund balances at the end of the year from
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principies (GAAP) basis to the Non-GAAP budgetary basis are as follows:

(AMOUNT IN THOUSANDS) Revenues and Other
Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures Fund Balances
—And Other Uses :
CGeneral Special General  Special
Fund  Revenue Fund_ Revenue
As reported (GAAP basis) $ 3,572 $4,047 $59,852  $57,959
Increase (Decrease) due to:
Revenues:
Received in 1999 and
earned in 1998 23,284 6,345
Received in 2000 and
earned in {999 (20,002) {6,208) (20,002)  (6,208)
Expenditures:
Accrued December 31, 1998 and
paid in 1999 {6,000) (1,073
Accrued December 31, 1999 and
paid in 2000 4,257 876 4,257 876
Transfers out made in 1999
for 1998 (60) (60)
Purchase of Inventory,
Current Year (324) G5 (324) (35)
Prior Year (12) (119)
Curmrent Year Encumbrances (11,921 (3,192) (1,921 (3,192)
Prior Year Encumbrances (1,246)  (1,496)
Expenditures related to
Prior Year Encumbrances 10,065 1,855
Cumulative Effect of Prior Year’s
Change in Accounting Principle {659) {16)
Adjustments for Non-
appropriated Special
Revenue Funds {51 (20.405)
(Non-GAAP) Budgetary Basis § 2871  SL098 $20.885  $27.364

Other Accounting Policies

A. Investments - The investments of the City (excluding the City of Cincinnati's Retirement System, see
Notes 2 and 17) are comprised primarily of time deposits and other securities guaranteed by the United
States Government or its agencies and are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

B. Inveniories - Inventories are valued at cost using either the moving weighted average or the first-in,
first-out method. Inventory in the governmental funds and the proprietary funds are recorded using the
consumption method whereby inventories are recorded as expenditures or expenses when they are used.



C.

Insurance - The City maintains a2 comprehensive all risk property insurance program that provides
insurance coverage for approximately $781 million in property values. In addition certain enterprise
funds carry insurance coverage for specific purposes as determined by management. An estimated
liability for uninsured losses is reported as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 10 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance issues.
State law authorizes the issuance of judgment bonds to settle claims. The City's available legal debt
margin of $142 million at December 31, 1999, is considered adequate for catastrophic loss coverage.

Inter-Fund Transactions - During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions
between funds including expenditures/expenses, advances and transfers of resources to provide services,
construct assets and service debt. The governmental and proprietary fund type financial statements
generally reflect such transactions as transfers or advances. The internal service funds record charges for
service to City departments as operating revenue. All City funds record these payments to the internal
service funds as operating expenditures/expenses. The proprietary funds record operating subsidies as
other income whereas the fund paying the subsidy records it as either an expenditure/expense or transfer.
Transfers are intended to reailocate money permanently from one fund to another. Advances are
intended to temporarily reallocate cash from one fund to another.

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the funds
involved. The General Fund provides administrative services to enterprise funds. The amounts charged
for those services are treated as revenue to the General Fund and as operating expenses in the enterprise
fund.

Deferred Revenues - The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for
recognition in the current pericd. Certain intergovernmental receivables, uncoliected assessments and
miscellaneous receivables not meeting the availability criteria have been deferred and will be realized in
a subsequent period.

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues - The proprietary fund types recognize the federal
reimbursement-type capital grants as intergovernmental receivables and contributed capital as the related
expenses are incurred. All other federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as intergovernmental
receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred.

Capitalization of Interest - Interest is capitalized by the City in proprietary fund types when it is
determined to be material. The City capitalizes interest in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 62, Capitalization of Interest Costs in Situations Involving Certain Tax-Exempt
Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants. This statement requires that the interest cost capitalized during
construction be reduced by interest income earmed on investments of the bond proceeds from the date of
the borrowing until the assets constructed from the bond proceeds are ready for their intended use.

Statement of Cash Flows - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider

all highly liquid investments held by trustees, with a maturity of three months or iess when purchased,

to be cash equivalents. In addition, all cash and temporary investments with the City Treasurer are also

considered to be cash equivalents since they are available to the proprietary funds on demand. The

temporary investments, primarily consist of certificates of deposit and U. S. Treasury securities that have
maturities of up to two years.

Total (Memorandum Only) - The amounts in the Total (Memorandum Only) columns of the combined
financial statements are a summation of the accounts of the fund types and account groups and are
presented solely to assist in financial analysis. Data included in the columns do not present financial
position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Eliminations of interfund transactions have not been made, and the data presented is not to be considered
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consolidated. In addition, the amounts in total are not to be interpreted as total resources and obligations
of the City of Cincinnati or sources and vses thereof. Comparative data for the prior year has also been
provided in the general purpose financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in
the City’s financial position and operations.

J.  Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Effective - Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement Number 33, Accounting and Financial Reperting for Nonexchange Transactions, was issued
in December 1998 and established accounting and financial reporting standards to guide state and local
govemnments’ decisions about when (in which fiscal year) to report the results of nonexchange
transactions. In a nonexchange transaction, a government gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in return. This Statement estabiishes more uniform recognition criteria
to promote greater consistency and comparability in financia) reporting. The provisions of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000.

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements
— and Management’s Discussion and Analysis ~ for State and Local Governments, was issued in June
1999 and establishes new financial reporting requirements for state and local governments throughout
the United States. The statement will require the addition of management’s discussion and analysis and
government-wide financial statements, consisting of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.
Prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accruai basis of accounting, these
statements should report all of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and gains and losses of the
government. The new financial statements will include all governmental and business-type activities,
but not fiduciary activities. Capital assets now reported in the general fixed assets account group will
henceforth be reported in the governmentai activities column of the government-wide statement of net
assets, Governmenis also will be required to report general infrastructure assets in this same column. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15,
2001,

2. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS

The City of Cincinnati combines the cash balances in individual funds to form a pool of cash and investrnents.

Each fund reports its respective equity in City Treasury cash as an element of its resources. In addition, several
funds separately hoid cash and equivalents and investments which are appropriately identified in the combined
balance sheet of the City. Earnings from the pooled cash and investments are allocated on a quarterly basis
to each participating fund based on month-end equity balances. The data presented in the accompanying
financial statements is for the City of Cincinnati as a whole.

Deposits

At year-end the carrying amount of the City’s deposits, including certificates of deposit with various financial
institutions was $134,679,000 and the bank balance was $159,465,000. The entire bank balance is held in the
name of the City and is secured either by federal depository insurance or securities pledged as collateral and
segregated by the Federal Reserve Bank in a pledge account. The collateral is held by the City's agent in the
City’s name; it cannot be released by the Federal Reserve Bank without the City's approval.

Statutes specify that the City Treasurer require institutions designated as a public depository to pledge and to
deposit with the Treasurer’s office, as security for the payment of all public moneys to be deposited in the
public depository during the period of designation, eligible securities of an aggregate market value equal to
the excess of the amount of public monies that are at the time so deposited over and above such portion or
amount of such money as is at such time insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other
agency or instrumentality of the federal government. As an alternative, the City Treasurer may require such
institution to deposit with him surety company bonds which, when executed, shall be for an amount equal to
such excess amount.
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Excluded from these amounts are deposits held by the City’s Retirement System for which the year-end book
and bank balances totaled $86,466,000 and $80,637,000, respectively. These funds are not subject to the same
insurance and collateralization requirements as the City’s deposits and are uncollateralized.

Investments

The fair value of investments for the City at December 31, 1999 was $473,502,000. These investments
include $472,160,000 in U. S. Treasury Securities and $1,124,000 in Equity Securities. The City is legally
authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies or instrumentalities, obligations of
the State of Ohio and its political subdivisions and repurchase agreements. All investments of the City of
Cincinnati are insured or registered, or are securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. The City
Treasurer may enter into a repurchase agreement of United States Treasury obligations or other obligations
for which the full faith and credit of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest, or
obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency. The City has not used reverse repurchase
agreements or derivatives as investment instruments.

Excluded from the City’s investments discussed above are assets held in trust by the City’s Retirement System
and Park Board. The fair value of investments for these funds at December 31, 1999 was $2,638,949,000.
These investments include $29,073,000 in Commercial Paper, $488,899,000 in U. S. Treasury Securities,
$270,032,000 in Corporate Bonds and Notes and $1,850,945,000 in Equity Securities. In those cases where
resources are maintained in trust, authority for investment of the property rests with either the trust agreement
or local ordinance. Investments of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System are, by ordinance, subject to
certain terms and limitations. The limitations do not apply to investments in securities of the City and federal
government or their agencies. Investments of the City of Cincinnati Retirement System are uninsured, with
securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

3. EXTERNAL INVESTMENT POOL

On April 10, 1968, the Board of County Commissioners of Hamilton County and the City of Cincinnati
consolidated all County and City sanitary sewer facilities, under the direction and control of the Board of
County Commissioners and the management and operation of the City. The cash balance in the fund
established for this purpose, the Metropolitan Sewer District fund (MSD), is combined with the City’s pool
of cash and investments. For the purposes of financial reporting, the MSD portion of the City’s pool of cash
and investments is reported as an External Investment Pocl. Assets in the pool are reported at fair value based
on quoted market prices. The pool is not subject to regulatory oversight. Fair value amounts are determined
at year end. The City has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees to support the value of the
External Investment Pool. MSD is required by Chapter 301 of the Cincinnati Municipal Code to participate
in the External Investment Pool. Disclosures required by GASB Statement 3 are discussed in Note 2.

Summary by major investment classification:

Cost Fair Valne  Interest Rate Moatuority Dates
Money Market Fund 3 1,518 $ 1,518 5.59% - 6.25% OPEN
Certificates of Deposit 5,874 5,874 2.00% - 6.05% 01/04/00-8/11/4
U.S. Treasury Notes 21,096 20,991 4.00% - 6.25% 1/31/00- 10/31/02
FHLB/FNMA Securities 2,200 2,138 5.00% - 6.34% 102901 -05/1704
City of Cincinnati Notes 858 858 5.75% - 5.85% 12/01/02- 12/1/04
Cash 327 327
Total $31,873 $31.706



4. INTERFUND ASSETSILIABILITIES

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

DUE FROMTO OTHER FUNDS:
Due From Due To
Fund Type Other Funds Other Funds
General 5 114 s 1,053
Appropriated Special Revenue Heaith Services 17 22
Street Construction, Maintenance, and Repair 49 12
Parking Meter 211 g
Cable TV, 7 7
Income Tax Infrastructure 2B
Motor Vehicle License 4 121
Special Recreation 2 2
Total Appropriated Special Revenue 290 201
Nonappropriated Special Revenue Recreation 1
Parks 1
Safety 4
Health 116 49
Community Development 2 74
Department of Labor Grants 101 37
Other 43 24
Total Nonappropriated Special Revenue 262 180
Capital Project Bond 50
Capital Projects 3.140 £04
Total Capital Project 3,190 604
Enterprise Water Works 54 1,177
Parking Facilites 4 219
Convention Center 744
General Aviation 165
Municipal Golf 5
Stormwater Managerment 56 &6
Total Enterprise 114 2,376
Internal Service Purchasing - Reproduction and Printing 41
Municipa! Garage 841 1,538
Purchasing General Stores 112 1
Property Management 53
Self insurance-Medical 1,404 11
Regional Computer Center §71 13
Total internal Service 3,469 1,617
Trust & Agency Pension Trust 32 1,404
Agency 210 236
Total Trust & Agency 242 1,640
TOTAL i 7681 s 7.681
ADVANCES FROMITO OTHER FUNDS:
Receivable Fund Amount Payable Fund
General Fund $ 125 Purchasing Stores
General Fungd 77 Property Management
General Fund 250 Nonappropriated-Other
Approprated-Health Services 915 Nonapptopriated-Heaith
Appropriated-Street Construction 496 General Fund
Nonappropriated-Recreation 25 General Fund
Water Works 445 Municipal Garage
Parking Facilities 1,048 Capital improvements
Convention Center 64 Capital improvements
General Aviation 461 Capital iImprovements
Municipal Golf 124 ‘Capital Improvements
Storrnwater Management 5850 Capital Improvements
Regiona! Computer Center 2,449 Capital Improvements
TOTAL $.12,430



5. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains six enterprise funds which provide water, parking, convention center, airport, golf, and

stormwater services.

Segment information for the year ended December 31, 1939 for these funds is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Operating Revenue
Depreciation and Amortization
Operating income (Loss)
Operating Transfers In (Out)
Net income (Loss)
Cumrent Capitat Contributions
Plant, Property and Equipment:
Additions
Deletions

Net Working Capital

Total Assets

Bonds and Other Long-Term Liabilities:

Due to Other Govemmenta!l Agencies

Borkis Payable

Total Equity

Total
Water Parking Convention General Municipal Stormwater Ent:rprise

Works Facilities Center Aviation Golf  Management Funds
$ 85013 $ 7,782 8 4027 $ 1381 % 6816 § 7,082 $ 111,81
10,732 1,331 3,000 550 397 1,343 17,352
23,601 2,058 (3,849) {152) 1.071 2.789 25,478
3 (843} (840)
22,188 1.171 {2.723) {95) 853 2,900 24394
8,147 25 148 48 6,368
33.846 313 544 655 677 5,283 41,418
2,435 101 19 7 159 2,721
72,197 3,100 3,189 1,502 1,516 4 467 85,971
512,567 30,814 44,499 26,032 10,193 41,833 665,738
3,137 3,137
110,940 2,685 3,145 7.000 123,770
382,064 26,758 43,052 25648 6,822 34,330 518,672
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6. LEASES

CITY AS LESSEE

A. Capital Leases

The City has capitalized leases for the following property and equipment in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 13 with the obligation recorded at the present value of future rental

payments. The related assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset.

Amounts relating to capitalized leases at December 31, 1999:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) Internal
Enterprise Service

Funds Funds

Leased Property/Equipment under Capital Leases $ 190 $2,085
Accumulated Amortization 18 743
Current Obligations under Capital Leases 57 754
Non-Current Obligations under Capital Leases 117 1,077

The foliowing is a schedule of future minimum capital leases and the present value of the net minimum lease
payments at December 31, 1999:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) Internal General
Enterprise Service Long-term
Year Funds : Funds Obligations
2000 $ 69 $ 853 $ 53
2001 69 622 30
2002 53 520 30
2003 4 _16
Total minimum lease payments 195 1,995 129
Less: Amounts representing interest 21 164 23
Present value of net minimum
lease payments 2174 51831 $£.106
Capitai Lease Payments - 1999 $ .21 § 218 $ 14

B. Operating Leases

The City has entered into various leases for property, equipment and office space. These leases are considered
for accounting purposes to be operating leases. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Year . Amount
2000 $1,572
2001 1,538
2002 I,119
2003 285
2004 151
Remaining years 62
Total Future Minimutn Lease Payments £4.727
Operating Lease Payments - 1999 1771



CITY AS LESSOR

The City has entered into various contractual agreements for the rental of properties to various commercial
enterprises, which are reported as operating leases for accounting purposes.

Amounts relating to the operating leases as of December 31, 1999 are included in the financial statements of
the following:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Enterprise General Fixed
—Funds Assets Account Group
Land § 538 5 2,050
Buildings 3,675 2,948
Improvements 38 83,264
Accumulated Depreciation 2,307

Future minimum rentals on non-canceiable operating leases as of December 31, 1999 are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Special Capital
Enterprise  Debt Service Revenue  General Projects
Year Funds Fund Fund Fund Fund
2000 $ 789 $ 15256 $ 373 $ 42 $ 17
2001 678 15,256 384 44 18
2002 537 15,256 210 44 g
2003 458 15,256 36 45
2004 423 15,256 45
Remaining years 1.753 411,915 45
Total Future Minimum Rental Payments 34638 $488.195 $1.003 3 265 3 43
Total Rentals for 1999: $ 927 $ 15,256 $ 346 $ 62 $ 15

Future minimum rentals of the Debt Service Fund are contingent upon changes in the Gross National Product's
implicit price defiator with a cap of + 4% but not less than $11,000,000 annualiy.

Enterprise Funds

The General Aviation rentals do not include contingent rentals which may be received on the basis of hours
or usage in excess of stipulated minimums. Terms of the leases are normally on a five year basis with renewal
options not to exceed fourteen years.

General Fixed Assets Account Group

In late 1992, the City purchased an office building across from City Hall. Currently 25% of that building is
leased to tenants. Their leases extend for seven vears and include renewal options.

The City-owned railway line, the Cincinnati Southern Railway, is leased to the Cincinnati, New Orleans, and



Texas Pacific Railway Company until December 31, 2026, with a renewal option of twenty-five years.

During 1995, the City entered into a lease involving land with American Commercial Marine. The lease is
for ten vears, beginning January 1, 1996 and ending December 31, 2005.

In 1997, the City renewed a lease with Columbia Development Corporation for property adjacent to Whetstone
Alley. The lease is for five years, beginning June 1, 1997, and ending May 31, 2002,

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The City’s long-term debt outstanding and other long-term obligations are reflected in the general long-term
obligations account group and in the proprietary funds. Revenues from all sources have been sufficient to meet
all of the City's debt service requirements.

General Long-Term Debt

The composition of this long-term debt is general obligation bords and notes and revenue bonds. The general
obligation debt is subdivided into tax-supported, self-supported and revenue supported debt. Annually, City
Council authorizes the property tax rates required to be levied to service the tax-supported debt. The self-
supported debt is serviced by revenues received from municipal income taxes and agreements in effect and
inciudes the following types: $23 million from the pledge of municipal income taxes, $11.1 million from
contractual agreements, and $14 million from urban renewal tax increment payments. The Debt Service Fund
records all revenues and expenditures for the City's general long-term debt. Expenditures of this fund inciude
principal and interest payments on bonded indebtedness and expenses related to the administration of the fund.

Enterprise Funds

There are various issues of general obligation bonds included in the enterprise funds. The general obligation
bonds are serviced by water, stormwater, golf and parking facilities user charges. Should such user charges
be insufficient for debt service, the principal and interest would be paid from the levy of ad valorem taxes on
all property in the City without limitation as to the rate or amount.

Defeasance of Cincinnati Senthern Railway Bonds

On September 26, 1990, City Council authorized the execution of an escrow trust agreement for the purpose
of defeasing the Cincinnati Southern Railway improvement Bonds. The defeasance of the bonds was
accomplished by making a payment of $6,762,000 to an irrevocabie trust maintained by the escrow trust agent.
The monies used for making this payment had been accumulating in a reserve account specifically established
for the retirement of the Cincinnati Southemn Railway Improvement Bonds. As a result, the liability for these
bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. The outstanding balance
of the debt was paid off during 1999.
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Arnpual Long-Term Debt Regunirements

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 1999, including interest
payments of $84,625,000 are as presented below:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS) _ General Obligation _
Year Ending Govemmental Funds Enterprise Funds
December 31 Pringipal Interest i Interest
2000 $29,939 $9,024 3 16,481 $6,130
2001 26,738 7,530 16,131 5,262
2002 29,819 6,240 16,189 4,420
2003 18,593 4,738 16,223 3,575
2004 19,063 3,852 13,588 2,729
2005-2009 35,588 9,829 35,358 5,754
2010-2014 8,330 3,875 9,800 1,218
2015-2019 5953 965
Total $174.023 $40,003 2123770 $23.088
Year Ending Revenue Bonds
December 31 Pringipal Interest —Lotal
2000 $ 433 $ 992 62,999
2001 527 958 57,146
2002 567 - 919 58,154
2003 617 873 44,619
2004 668 823 40,723
2005-2009 4,203 - 3,232 93,964
2010-2014 4219 1,562 29,004
2015-2019 1,545 I V) 8.588
Totat 12779 $9.484 $392,197

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

During the year ended December 31, 1999, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the General

Long-Term Obligations Account Group:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Balance Baiance
January | Additions Reductions December 31
General Obligation
Bonds $165,097 $28,000 £30,377 $162,720
Tax Supported Notes 6,403 19,900 15,000 11,303
Revenue Bonds 13,123 344 12,779
Estimated Liability for
Compensated Absences 59,058 17,584 19,153 57,489
Estimated Liability for
Unpaid Claims 2,674 2,437 1,692 3,419
Non-Current Obligations
under Capital Leases 67 67
Police and Fire
Prior Service Cost 59,204 2.493 3.192 58,503
Total Changes in Long-
Term Obligations $305,339 $70.481 269,708 $306.282



Bonds and Notes Outstanding at December 31, 1999
{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Amount Amount
Original Due Outstanding
Description Interest Rates Issue Dates  Maturity Dates Issues 2000 12/31/99
Bonds:
General Property Tax 325% 1957-1961 2001-2007 by 6,000 % 145 3% 410
Supported 4.1% to 5% 1971-1999 2000-2009 122,700 13,455 83,930
5.15%to 5.25% 1992-1995 2000-2005 30,700 3,500 11,900
5.625% 10 6% 1984-1991 2001-2004 19,500 1,330 3,985
6.7% 1990 2000 14,300 1,500 1,500
7.875% 10 8% 1985-1987 2000-2017 39,000 1,600 18,600
Various Rate Issues 525% 10 6.2% 1991 2004 7,085 545 2,725
Urban Redevelopment
Various Rate Issues 4.8% t0 6.3% 1995 2015 3,250 100 2,895
Municipal Income Tax 4.375% 10 5375% 1992-1998 2002-2004 22,400 2,950 11,650
Recreatjonal Facilities 5.15%t0 6.75% 1977-1955 2002-2011 8,598 574 3,935
Urban Renewal 4.1% 10 4.375% 1996-1999 2001-2004 9,000 1,800 7,200
4.75% 10 5.15% 1995-1997 2000-2007 7,000 1,400 3,400
6.75% 1990 2005 1,500 100 600
Various Rate Issues 5.75% 10 6.5% 1991 2008 3,900 240 2,790
Urban Development Taxable
Various Rate Issues 5% t0 6.25% 1998 2019 7,200 200 7,200
Total General Long-Term
Obligations 302,133 29,939 162,720
Recreational Facilities 4.6% t0 5.375% 1972-1994 2002-2007 6,302 531 3,145
Off Street Parking 6.75% 1980 2006 5,000 350 2,450
8% 1985 2000 3,500 235 235
Water Works 4.1% t0 6.5% 1975-1999 2000-2014 116,000 10,050 88,580
6.7% t0 6.75% 1989-1990 2004-2006 37,000 2,450 14,600
7% 1988 2003 28,000 1,940 7,760
Stormwater 4.2 to 5.15% 1995-1999 2005-2007 8,800 925 7.000
Total Proprietary Fund
Obligations 204,602 16,481 123,770
Total General Obligation
Bonds Payable 506,735 46,420 286,490
Notes:
Municipal Income Tax 5.7510 5.85 1999 2004 11,303 0 11,303
Total Genera! Obligation Bonds
and Notes Payable $ 518,038 3§ 46420 % 297,793
Revenue Bonds Various 1950-1998 2000-2016 $ 13375 % 433 % 12,779
Total Quistanding, Debt s 310,572
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The following changes occurred in long-term debt for both governmental and proprietary funds:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Bonds and Notes QOutstanding January 1, 1999

Notes Issued

Bonds Issued
Bonds Retired
Notes Retired

Bonds and Notes QOutstanding at December 31, 1999

Compensated Absences

General
Ohbligation

$278,018

19,900

59,600
{44,725}
£15,000)
3297.793

Revenue

Bonds
$13,123

(344)

312.779

GASB Statement No. 16 requires state and local governments to recognize the liabilities associated with
employees’' compensated absences. Therefore, the following obligations have been included in the
Comparative Schedule of General Long-Term Obligations.

Vacation

Sick Leave

Compensatory Time

- Vacation benefits are considered to be vested benefits of the emplovees. The
obligation at December 31, 1999 for vacation benefits of the governmental funds
is approximately $21,691,000.

- Sick leave benefits are included in the estimated liability for all employees, based
upon the portion of accumulated sick leave liability estimated to eventualiy be paid

as a retirement or death benefit,

approximately $16,516,000.

- Employees of the governmental funds are permitted to accumulate compensatory
time for work in excess of their normal forty hour work week. The amount of this
obligation at December 31, 1999 is approximately $19,282.000.

At December 31, 1999 this liabiiity is

The following is a Summary of the Changes in the Estimated Liability for Compensated Absences of the City
of Cincinnati for the year ended December 31, 1999.

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Accrued
Vacatign
Estimated Liability for
Compensated Absences,
January 1, 1999 $22,170
Eamed During 1999 10,272
Used During 1999 (10,751)
Funded in Non-Appropriated
Special Revenue Fund
Estimated Liability for
Compensated Absences,
December 31, 1999 321691

Sick Pay

$17,475
1,271
(2,230)
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Compensatory
Ti

$19,413
(5,138)

{1.034)

$19.282

Total

$59,058
17,584
(18,119)

- {1.034)

$57.489



State Infrastructure Bank Loan

On May 19, 1999 City Council authorized the City Manager to amend the repayment terms of an April 30,
1998 note agreement the City had made with the Ohio Departinent of Transportation, State Infrastructure
Bank. The loan to the City has an original principal amount not to exceed $20,020,000 and was issued for the
purpose of paying a portion of the Fort Washington Way Improvement project. The terms of the original note
agreement required that the loan be repaid 18 month from the date of the initial disbursement under the note.
The initial disbursement was made on May 29, 1998, so the first payment would be required on November 29,
1999. Under the terms of the new loan agreement, the City is obligated to pay accrued interest and a principal
payment of $5,000,000 on February 1, 2000. On February 1, 2001, the City shall make a principal payment
of $5,000,000. Thereafter, the rote is payable as to principal and interest (5%), in 30 equal semi-annual
installments. The balance of the loan was $9,056,000 at December 31, 1999 and is included in “Due to Other
Governmental Agencies™ in the Capital Projects Fund.

8. RETAINED EARNINGS DEFICITS

Included in the general purpose financial statements are certain enterprise funds and internal service funds with
retained earnings deficits as of December 31, 1999. The net retained earnings deficits in the two enterprise
funds of Convention Center ($21,663,000) and General Aviation (31,224,000) are to be covered by future user
charges and contributions from other City funds. The net retained earnings deficits in the internal service
funds of Regional Computer Center (84,653,000) and Municipal Garage ($538,000) are to be covered by
future user charges.

9. DEBT LIMITATION

The City's "indirect” (ten mill) debt limit was removed by decision of the Ohio courts. In September 1977,
the Supreme Court of Ohio dismissed an appeal from the decisior of the Court of Appeals, First Appellate
District, Hamilton County, Ohio, involving the City's debt limitations. In summary, the City instituted a test
case against the Director of Finance for the purpose of obtaining a definitive construction of certain sections
of the City Charter bearing on the right of the City to levy taxes in excess of the ten mill limitation of Section
5705.02 of the Ohio Revised Code. As a result of the Court decision, the City has the right to levy property
taxes without limitation to support its lawfully issued bonds and notes, and the City's ability to incur debt will
be limited only by the arithmetical (percentage) limitations set forth under Section 133.03 of the Ohio Revised
Code.

Section 133.03 provides that the principal amount of both voted and unvoted debt of the City may not exceed
10-1/2% of the City's assessed valuation, and the principal amount of the City's unvoted debt may not exceed
5-1/2% of the City's assessed valuation. The Code also provides several exemptions of debt from the 5-1/2%
and 10-1/2% limitations.

10. TAXES

City Income Tax

This locally levied tax applies to gross salaries, wages and other personal service compensation eamed by
residents both in and out of the City and to earnings of nonresidents {(except certain transients) earned in the
City. it also applies to net income of business organizations for business conducted in the City. The tax is the
largest single source of General Fund revenue.

The City’s income tax of 2.1% is subdivided into four components. The first component is the latest increase
of .1% enacted July 1, 1988, to be spent only for the maintenance of the City's infrastructure. The second
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campaonent is the 3% which can be used only for public transit purposes, including both capital and current
operating expense. The third component is .15%, which can be used only for permanent improvement
purposes. The remaining 1.55% is first used to meet annual deficiencies, to the extent required, in the General
Fund. The amount of the 1.55% income tax revenue over the fixed allocation to the General Fund at the end
of any year is recognized as revenue in the Income Tax Permanent Improvement Fund. The unused amount
can be carried forward for subsequent year capital or operating needs.

Actual collections of $182,695,000 for the 1.55% portion in 1999 were more than the original allocation of
$180,500,000 for the General Fund. Consequently, the excess collections of $2,195,000 were transferred to
the Permanent Improvement Funds. The following tabie identifies the excess 1.55% income tax collections
for the years 1995 through 1999:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Actual Collections
Collections Allocation in Excess of
Year of 1.55% to General Fund Allocation
1995 $148,203 $144.445 - 83,758
1996 156,553 149,670 6,883
1997 162,140 160,270 1,870
1998 174,335 164,300 10,035
1999 182,695 180,500 2,195
Property Taxes

The assessed valuation of property within the City subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes includes real
property, public utilities property and tangible personal property. The assessed value upon which the 1999
levy was based was $3,749,678,000, $398,950,000 and $664,939,000 for real property, public utility property
and tangible personal property, respectively (per Hamilton County Auditor). The City's property taxes are
collected by the Hamiiton County Auditor and are remitted to the City on a periodic basis. Real property taxes
collected in any calendar year are generally levied on assessed values as of January 1 of the preceding vear
according to the following calendar:

Property Tax Calendar - 2000

Lien date January 1, 1999
Levy date October 31, 1999
First instaliment payment due Januvary 31, 2000
Second installment payment due June 20, 2000

Assessed values are established by the County Auditor, at no more than 35% of appraised market value. The
laws of the State of Ohio presently require that all property be revalued no less than every six years, at any time
the County Auditor finds that true or taxable value thereof has changed, and in the third calendar year
following the year in which a sexennial reappraisal is completed if ordered by the State Commissioner of Tax
Equalization. Real property was reappraised during 1999 with the results affecting collections beginning in
2000. The City recognizes the property taxes due to be paid in 2000 as deferred revenue since the first
settlement date is more than sixty days after year-end and does not meet the availability criteria for accrual.

Public utilities property taxes in any calendar year are those levied on assessed values as of December 31 of

the preceding year. Tangible personal property of public utilities is generally assessed at 100% of true value.
Tangible personal property used in business, other than pubiic utilities, is assessed at 25% of true value.
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11. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

During the year, contributed capital increased (decreased) by the following amounts:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Source

Federal Grants

City Capital Appropriations
Capital Contributed by
Customers and Developers
Depreciation on contributed
assets acquired with
capital grants

Total Changes to Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital, January 1

Contributed Capital, December 31

Source

Federal Grants
City Capital Appropriations

Capital Contributed by Customers &

Developers

Depreciation on contributed assets
acquired with capital grants

Total Changes to Contributed Capital

Contributed Capital, January 1

Contributed Capital, December 31

Water Parking
Works _ Facilities

s b3
25

6,147

262 {(50)
5,885 (25)
20754 8,695

Convention  General Municipal

Center  Avistion  Golf

$ $ 148 $
48
(1,145} (243) . ,
(1,145) 95) 43

65,860 26.968 1.242

320639 38670 364710 826873 1290

Purchasing

Stormwater Printing
Management Services

Regional
Purchasing Municipali Computer

Stores Garage  Center Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ 148
1 5 110 1,923 2,112

6,147
(941) (2.641)

1 5 110 082 5,766

2,348 24 _— 074 19916 148.881
52,348 £ 25 3.5 3,184  $20,898 $£154.647
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12. CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets for 1999 is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Balance Balance
January I, December 31,
1999 Additions Deletions 1999
Land $114,056 $22,430 $ 453 $136,033
Buildings 125,743 4,214 137 129,820
Improvements 182,050 24,378 6,631 199,797
Machinery and
Equipment 57,695 2,795 1,459 59,031
Construction tn
Progress 194,647 49481 55.562 _288.566
Total $674.191 $203,298 $64.242 $813.247

Construction in Progress at December 31, 1999 is comprised of the following:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Project Expended to Required

Authori- December 31, Future
Administering Department _zations . 1999 Committed Financ¢ing
Transportation & Engineering $306,400 $186,615 $119,785 $106,907
Economic Development 66,222 41,144 25,078 14,150
Evaluation and Budget 106 93 13
Neighborhood Services 25,465 15,320 10,145 I
Recreation 29,922 10,715 19,207 8,003
Safety 3,126 740 2,386 1,500
Parks 14,818 6,867 7,951 3,626
Public Services 9,302 5,034 4,268 16
Other 42 444 22,038 20,406 78
Totals $497,800 1238566 $200.229 $i34.321

The above amounts expended at December 31, 1999 include cash-basis expenditures only and do not reflect

payables at that date. Required future financing represents State and Federal commitments in support of City
projects.



A summary of proprietary fund type property, plant and equipment at December 31, 1999, is as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Land

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

Constructicn in Progress

Property Acquired under Capital Leases
Total

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Amortization

Net

Construction in Progress at December 31, 1999 is comprised of the following:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Enterprise Fund

Water Works

Parking Facilities
Convention Center
General Aviation
Municipal Golf
Stormwater Management

Totals

In July 1997, the Cincinnati Water Works (CWW) entered into an agreement with AssetWorks, Incorporated
(AW to provide a Work Order Resource Management Solution and Stores Inventory Management System for
the CWW. AW failed to adequately perform its professional services under the agreement and failed to cure
material breaches of the agreement. The CWW decided that it was necessary to abandon the AW] application
software and purchase new application software. The CWW is entitled to, and received in April 2000, the full
amount of the letter of credit posted by AWI ($1,941,000) in order to recover a portion of the replacement costs
and other damages. The letter of credit posted by AW1 is included in accounts receivable as of December 31,
1999. The CWW recorded a non-cash charge of $1,769,000 to write-off the remaining carrying vaiue of costs
related to the development of the AW] Work Order Resource Management Solution and Stores inventory

Management System.
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Total Total
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
$ 25,124 $ 133
242,065 272
324,352 133
126,782 26,448
85,648
— 190 — 2085
804,161 29,071
{272,964) (13,608)
— {(18) — {743
$331L179 $.14.720
Project Expended to Required
Authori- December 31, Future
zations _1999 Comimitted  Financing
$100,186 $69,120 $31,066 8
2,564 1,516 1,048
3,507 1,851 1,656 2,328
3,842 2,031 1,811 1,499
126 3 123
16,977 11,127 3,830 -
$121.202 582,648 $41.554 $£3.827



13. RECEIVABLES

Accounts Receivable are presented in the general purpose financial statements net of the allowance for
uncoliectible accounts. The uncollectible accounts related to the General Fund at December 31, 1999, are as
follows: Taxes Receivable ($1,886,000) and other accounts receivable ($423,000). The uncollectible accounts
related to the Debt Service Fund at December 31, 1999 are Taxes Receivable ($1,734,000). The balances of
the aliowance accounts of the proprietary funds as of December 31, 1999 are as follows: Water Works
($2,080,000), Regional Computer Center ($137,000), Convention Center ($67,000), Municipal Golf ($7,000),
Parking Facilities ($3,000), and Stormwater Management ($3,902,000).

Loans receivable of the special revenue funds are made from revolving type loan accounts financed by
allocations from the City's Community Development Block Grant. Federal regulations provide that the grantor
maintains the ownership of the City's Community Development Block Grant funded revolving loan portfolio;
accordingly, revolving loan fund transactions do not affect the operating statement. A small number of the
special revenue loans, with a value of $2,380,000, were made from Housing and Urban Development Section
108 funds and do not involve a revolving type loan account. The loans are repaid to the federal government.
If the borrower fails to repay the loan, the City's Community Development Block Grant funds may be used to
repay the federal government. The total amount receivable for the special revenue loans is offset by an
allowance for uncollectibie loans receivable. Special revenue loans receivable at December 31, 1999 total
$59,200,000.

Loans receivable of the capital project funds receive similar treatment to the special revenue funds' Joans
receivable, in that the total amount receivable is offset by an allowance for uncollectible loans receivable. The
balance of the loans receivable at December 31, 1999 is $521,000. This amount is related to Goodall Properties
Ltd.

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Federal and State Grants

The City has received Federal and State grants in excess of $102 million for specific purposes that are subject
to review and aundit by the grantor agencies or their designee. Such audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior
experience, the City Administration believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City as of December 31, 1999. A liability of $3.4 million
was recorded for those claims and judgments as of December 31, 1998. Owver the past decade, the City has
averaged annual payments of $1,234,000 for claim and lawsuit settlements. Adequate funds have been provided
annually to meet the claims paid both from the General Fund and restricted funds of the City. In the City
Solicitor's opinion, there is no foreseen probiem in having adequate resources to settle presently known cases.
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15, RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; employee health claims; unemployment compensation claims; and environmental
damage. The City purchases commercial insurance to cover losses due to: theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets
and purchases general liability insurance for specific operations and professional liability insurance for certain operations.
All other risks of loss are self-insured by the City. There has been no reduction in insurance coverage from coverage in
1998. Insurance settlements for claims resulting from the risks covered by commercial insurance have not exceeded the
insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The City of Cincinnati provides the choice of three separate health insurance plans for its employees. All of the plans are
self-insured and accounted for as an internal service fund. This internal service fund, titled "Self Insurance - Medical"
has been in existence since 1980. Operating funds are charged a monthly rate per employee, by type of coverage.

In 1990, the City began to account for and finance its risk of loss due to workers' compensation claims and established an
internal service fund titled "Self Insurance - Workers’ Compensation”. Workers' compensation is administered by the State
under a retrospective rating plan. The City reimburses the Bureau of Workers' Compensation for injured workers' claims.
All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the intemal service fund based on the experience
premium that would normally be charged by the Bureau of Workers' Compensation. Changes in the balances of claims
liabilities and claims adjustment expenses during 1999 and 1998 are as follows:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
General Water Works  Parking Facilities Convention Municipal Capital
Fund Fund Fund Center Fund Golf Fund  Projects Fund
1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 {999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998
Balance at $ 327 § 218 $ 60 $70 $2 57 $7 £27 $§5 $18 % b
January |
Current-Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates 392 1,253 64 30 24 g (16) 9 I 4,160
Claim Payments  {(43}) (L144) (67 (40) A1) (3} an 4) & 4y 0
Balance at
December 31 1288 3327 237 160 23 22 b4 37 b} 25 8160 .

Stormwater Income Tax  Seif Insurance Workers General
Management Infrastructure Medical Compensation  Long-Term
Fund Fund Fund Fund Obligations Totals

1993 1998 1993 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 1999 1998 1929 1998
Balance at $3 80 30 st $8.401 §7.579 22,568 20,866 32,674 $3,140 $34,047 $£31,936
Janwary 1
Current-Year
Claims and
Changes in

Estimates L5 6 26 4 30841 25448 361 2,660 2,437  (456) 38337 28,930
Claim Payments  (14) (3} (31 U (60400 (24.626) 28 (228) (Le22y (O {32.601) (26819
4 8.3 &l

Balance at
£ L4833 8401 R22087 522568 33419 32074 $39773 534047

December 31
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The claims liabilities at December 31, 1999 for the Internal Service Funds above (Self-Insurance Medical and
Workers Compensation) are included in the following liabilities in the balance sheet:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Self Insurance Workers
Medical Compensation

Accounts Payable $2,822 $
Due to Other Funds 11
Accrued Liabilities 5,535
Estimated Liability

For Unpaid Claims 6,000 17452
Total $8,833 242987

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 20, 2000, City Council authorized the taking of bids on $75,885,000 of general obligation bonds
to be dated April 1, 2000. The six bond issues sold at coupon rates from 5.0% to 5.375%, but with a bid
premium of $184,839 the effective rates were from 4.57% to 5.55%. The bonds include tax supported issues
of $55,125,000 for Street Improvements, $3,870,000 for Public Building Improvements, $6,000,000 for
Urban Renewal Improvements, $5,330,060 for Parks and Recreation improvements, and municipal income
tax supported issue of $5,560,000 for Urban Redevelopment improvements,

On January 20, 2000, City Council authorized the negotiating of a sale on $42,000,000 of general obligation
bonds 1o be dated March 1, 2000. The bonds were issued for the purpose of providing funds to prepay, at a
discount rate, the City’s accrued liability to the State’s Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pension Fund. The
bond issue sold at coupon rates from 4.10% to 5.95% with the effective rates from 4.10% to 5.97%.



17. PENSION AND RETIREMENT

City employees are covered by one of three pension systems. They are the Police and Firemen's Disability and
Pension Fund and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which are State pension systems, and the
City of Cincinnati's Retirement System. Each of these three systems is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan.

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund

Plan Description

Police and Fire Fighters of the City of Cincinnati are members of the State Police and Firemen s Disability
and Pension Fund. The City of Cincinnati contributes to the (PFDPF), a cost -sharing mulitiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. PFDPF provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Contribution requirements and benefit
provisions are established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised
Code. The PFDPF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial information and required
supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to PFDPF, 140 East Town
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 10.0% of their annual covered salary, while the City of Cincinnati is
required to contribute 19.5% and 24% respectively for police officers and fire fighters. The City of
Cincinnati s contributions to PFDPF for the vears ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$23,961,000, $22,346,000 and $21,377,000, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year
including the instaliment payments on the unfunded prior service cost.

The PFDPF has informed the City that the City's only unfunded prior service cost of the fund is the deficiency
existing at the time the fund was established in 1967 as determined by actuarial evaluation. The following
table reflects the unfuonded prior service cost for Police Officers and Fire Fighters at December 31:

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
1999 - 1998
Police $28,619 $28.961
Fire 29,886 20,243
Total unfunded prior service cost $58.505 $59.204

As prescribed by Section 742.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, this accrued liability has been budgeted and paid
from the General Fund over a term of sixty-seven years in annual installments which began in 1969 and which
would end in 2036. At December 31, 1999, thirty-six years remain in which semi-annual instaliments fixed
by the fund's Board of Trustees at $781,000 and $815,000 would have been paid for Police and Fire Fighters,
respectively. The accrued liability for the unfunded prior service cost is included in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group at December 31, 1999.

On March 1, 2000 the City sold bonds for the refunding of the City’s obligation for the employer’s accrued
Lability . Pursuant to Section 742.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, the City and the PFDPF (the Fund) have

41-



entered into an agreement whichs permits the City to make a one-time payment to the Fund for the purpose
of extinquishing the City’s obligation to the Fund for employer’s accrued liability. The payment amount is
$41,454,863.83 which represents 68% of the first $500,000 of the employer’s accrued liability and 70% of
the balance, plus accrued interest on the full amount of such accrued liability from March 1, 2000 to the date
of payment.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information

The fund provides postemployment health care coverage to any person who receives or is eligible to receive
a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. The health care coverage
provided by the police and firefighters' retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit
(OPEB). A portion of each employer's contribution to the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund
is set aside for the funding of postemployment health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory
authority allowing the fund's board of trustees to provide health care coverage to ail eligible individuals.
Heaith care funding and accounting are on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 1999, 7% of covered payroll was used
to pay retiree health care expenses.

The number of participants eligible to receive heaith care benefits as of December 31, 1998 was 11,424 for
police and 9,186 for firefighters. The portion of the City's contributions that was used to pay postemployment
benefits was $3,856,465 for police and $2,927,826 for firefighters. Total health care expenses of the fund for
the year ending December 31, 1998, were $78,596,790.

State PERS
Plan Description

Only City employees who were members in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) or
another Ohio State Retirement System prior to their City employment, City personnel employed in the building
crafts trade since 1961, elected officials and certain part-time employees are enrotled in PERS.

PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised
Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to PERS, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or calling (614) 466-2085.

Funding Policy

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. Employees
contribute 8.5% of their annual compensation. The City's contribution rate for 1999 was 13.55% of covered
payroli; 9.35% was the portion used to fund pension obligations and 4.20% was used to fund health care for
1999. City of Cincinnati’s contributions to PERS for the years ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997
were $1,717,000, $1,417,000 and $1,406,000 respectively equal to the required contributions for each year.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information
PERS provides postemployment health care coverage to age and service retirants with ten or more years of

qualifying service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is
available. ‘The health care coverage provided by PERS is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit
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(OPEB). A portion of each empioyer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of postemployment
health care. The Ohic Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions.

OPEB are financed through employer contributions and investment eamings there on. The contributions
allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

Expenditures for OPEB during 1999 were $523,599,349. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated
net assets available for future OPEB payments were $9,870,285,641. The number of benefit recipients eligible
for OPEB at December 31, 1999 was 118,062.

City of Cincinpati Retirement System

Plan Description

The City of Cincinnati Retirement System is considered part of the City of Cincinnati's financial reporting
entity and is included in the City's financial report as a pension trust fund. There are four employers that
contribute to the plan. They are the City of Cincinnati, University of Cincinnati, University Hospital and
Hamilton County. Membership of the Retirement System of the City consisted of the following at December
31, 1999, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Pension Health care
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 4,184 4,184
Terminated pian members entitied to future benefits 116 ii6
Active plan members:
Vested 3,652 2,020
Nonvested 2,026 3.658
Total 2278 2978

1,457 of the Nonvested members are part-time employees who are included in the system to comply with the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990, which mandated the inclusion of certain classifications of
employees either in state or municipal retirement systems or the Federal Insurance Contribution Act (Social
Security). The City of Cincinnati's Retirement System covers the majority of non-uniformed City employees
and a closed group of members from other employers which includes employees of the University of
Cincinnati and University Hospital who joined before control of these institutions was transferred to the State
of Ohio, and former City employees staying with various operations transferred to the control of Hamiiton
County.

The service retirement allowance vests after five years of creditable service. Medical care benefits vest after
fifteen years of creditable service or afier reaching age sixty with five years of creditable service. Any member
in service may retire upon attaining age sixty, regardless of length of membership service if he was enrolled
prior to January 1, 1969, or with at least five years of membership service if enrollment occurred at January
1, 1969 or later, or upon completing thirty or more years of membership service at any age, with a retirement
allowance commencing immediately; or any member upon completing five years of creditable service before
age sixty may retire with a retirement allowance commencing at age sixty, provided, however, at the time of
election of the deferred annuity there is no loan outstanding against his contributions.
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The annual retirement allowance consists of an annuity provided by the number equal! in value to contributions
with interest at the time of retirement and a pension which together with an annuity produces a total annual
retirement allowance equal to 2.22% of the average of the three highest years' compensation multiplied by the
number of years of membership service. Eniployees hired before July 12, 1998 elected either the 2.22% or
a 2.5% formula which does not factor in overtime pay and lump sum payments for vacation, sick leave and
compensatory balances. All new employees hired July 12, 1998 and there after are subject to the 2.5%
formula. Pensions are increased by 3% compounded annually commencing one year after retirement. The
System also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by the Cincinnati Municipal Code.

Contributions

Each member contributes at a rate of 7% of his salary until his retirement. This percent contributed by the
eraployees is fixed by the fund's Board of Trustees on the basis of authority provided by Chapter 203 Section
77 of the Cincinnati Municipal Code. The City makes annual employer contributions based on a percentage
of the salaries of all members. The contribution rate for 1999 was 7.00% for ail employers. City of
Cincinnati s contributions to the City of Cincinnati Retirement System for the years ending December 31,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $11,629,000, $22,325,000, and $29,493,000, respectively equal to the required
contributions for each year. Administrative costs are financed from the system assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting - The City of Cincinnati Retirement System financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the
contributions are due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments - The Retirement System investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national or international
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the
basis of future principal and interest payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments.

Other Postemployment Benefit Information

The System provides hospital and surgical insurance to retired members who have eamed fifteen years credited
service at the time of termination or terminate after age sixty with five years credited service. Those who are
receiving survivor benefits of eligible members are entitled to have their hospital and surgical insurance
premiums paid by the System. When benefits would be reduced by reason of the retired member's eligibility
for hospital and medical benefits under federal social security laws, the System will pay whatever additional
fees are required for the federal medical coverage.

The heaith care coverage provided by the System is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB).
1t is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis as a portion of the employer contribution requirement
to the System. The Cincinnati Municipal Code provides authority for employer contributions.

The actuarial assumptions used for the December 31, 1999 valuation of unfunded ljabilities included an
assumption recognizing medical benefits at current premium costs with projected increases of 7% per annum.
The cost of OPEBs are recognized as an expense as claims are paid.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION PLAN
Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial UAAL as a
Value Liability Accrued Percentage of
Actuarial of (AAL) Liability Funded Coverad Covered
Valuation Assets -Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll
Date (a) {b) (o-a) {afb) {c) {{b-a)/c)
123183 806,188 1,050,597 244,409 76.74 175,763 139.068
12131794 852,099 1,155,544 303,445 7374 179,587 168.97
12/31/95 947,802 1,105,297 157,495 85.75 177,240 88.86
12/31/96 1,082,980 1,141,076 58,096 B84.91 177,943 3265
12131897 1,250,997 1,214,573 (36,424) 103.00 181,547 (20.06)
12131798 1,411,847 1.385,579 {26,268) 101.80 181,691 (14.46)
12731798 1,554,854 1,548,854 {5,000) 100.38 184,477 (3.25)
HEALTHCARE PLAN
12/31/83 345 480 450,217 104,737 76.74 175,763 59.59
12/31/94 371,430 503,702 132,272 73.74 179,587 7365
1273195 424 475 495,010 70,535 85.75 177,240 39.80
12/31/96 472 556 497,910 25,351 9491 177,843 1425
12/31/97 548 239 532,277 {15,962} 103.00 181,547 (8.79)
12/31/98 624,185 585,919 (38.266) 106.53 181,691 {(21.06)
12/31/99 696,701 613,948 {82.752) 113.48 184,477 (44.85)
Schedule of Employers®’ Contributions
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION PLAN
Year Annual
Ended Reguired Percentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed
1953 22,487 89578
1954 25277 105.38
1995 26,513 92.03
1996 16,823 141.60
1997 23,335 106.80
1908 14,560 127.83
1959 (9.467) 198.86
HEALTHCARE PLAN
Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed
3883 7.496 95.78
1994 8,426 105.38
1995 5,238 92.03
1996 5,608 141,60
1597 7778 106.80
1998 4,853 127.83
1593 (3.156) 188.86
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The information presented in the required supplementary scheduies was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation foliows.

Valuation date

Actuanal cost method

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return*

Projected salary increases®

Medical benefits

*Inflation rate

12/31/99

Entry age normai, frozen initial liability method

Preliminary actuarial value of assets is calculated by
projecting the prior year's actuarial value to the current
valuation date using the valuation interest assumption and
actual contributions, benefit payments and expenses. This
preliminary value is then adjusted if it is not within a
corridor equal to 90% - 110% of the market value of assets.

8.75% prior to the deduction of expenses per annum,
compounded annuaily and adding an expense assumption
to the determination of the plan s normal cost.

4.5% per annum with select rases during the first three
years of service pius provision for an 10% increase in final
average salary due to final lump salary payment.

Current premium costs with projected increases of 7% per
annum post retirement benefit increases.

No assumption.

Cost-of-living adjustments 3% compound interest
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Deloitte &
Touche

,\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephene: (513} 784-7100
A, 250 East Fifth Strest
P.O. Box 5340

Cincinnati, Ohio 45201-56340

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Cincinnati, Ohio and

Jim Petro, Auditor of State of Ohio

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio (the
“City™) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated
June 9, 2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

COMPLIANCE

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain
immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the City of
Cincinnati in a separate letter dated June 9, 2000.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may oceur
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
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involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the
City in a separate letter dated June 9, 2000.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council Members,
management of the City of Cincinnati, Auditor of State of Ohio, federal awarding agencies, and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Dullstte, ¥ Tovebn LEF

June 9, 2000
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Deloitte &
Touche

,\ Deloitte & Touche LLP Telephone: (513) 784-7100
A 250 East Fifth Street

P.O. Box 5340

Cincinnati, Ohio 45201-6340

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD
PROGRAM

The Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council

City of Cincinnati, Ohio and

Hm Petro, Auditor of State of Ohio

COMPLIANCE

We have audited the compliance of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio (the “City™), with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Ul S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 1999. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of
its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. .

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizarions. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999,
However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those
requirements that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which
are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 99-1
through 99-3.

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu -35-



INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
contro] over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable o
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal contro! components does not reduce to
a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to 2 major federal program being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and City Council Members,
management of the City of Cincinnati, Auditor of State of Ohio, federal awarding agencies, and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Dty itte. # Tooctn LLP

June 9, 2000
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

[. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Reportable condition(s) identified not

considered to be material weaknesses? yes X N/A
MNoncompliance material to financial

statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness{es)} identified? yes X _no

Reportable condition(s) identified not
considered to be material weakness{es)? yes X N/A

Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133 (Section .510(a))? X yes no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster Number
14218 Comrmunity Development Block Grant
14.239 HOME
17.250 jtjpA
20.205 ~ Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs $3,090,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ves X no
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION - No matters are reportable

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

Reference Number

99-1

Findings

Federal Program Information:

HOME Program, CFDA #14.239

Condition:

In the City's Rental Rehabilitation Program ( the “Program™)
Manual, it states “Tenants residing in units prior to project
construction are exempt from the occupant income
requirements.”

Criteria:

The City of Cincinnati (the “City™) receives federal funds
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development to operate a HOME Investment Partnerships
Program, (the “Federal Program™) CFDA No. 14.239. One of
the objectives of this Federal Program is to expand the supply
of decent and affordable housing, particularly rental housing,
for the low and very low income Americans. Under this
Federal Program, the City operates the Rental Rehabilitation
Program. The Program is designed to encourage maximum
leverage of private equity and financing and to minimize the
public subsidy cost while addressing goals of promoting the
rehabilitation of rental units for low income tenants
throughout the City. The federal eligibility requirements state
“for rental housing, at least 90 percent of HOME funds must
benefit low and very low income families at 60 percent of
area median income, the remaining 10 percent must be
invested in families below 80 percent of the area median.”

Effect:

If all tenants residing in a unit upon completion of a project
are not considered for the occupant income requirements, the
overall objectives of the Program may not be accomplished.

Cause:
Oversight by management.

Questioned Costs and Context:

The City disbursed $1,180,000 under the HOME Program and
had loans outstanding of $13,513,000 at December 31, 1999
under the Rental Rehabilitation Program discussed above.
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90-2

Recommendation:

Delete the specific phrase indicated above from the Program
manual and require all property owners to be in compliance
with tenant low income requirements before and after the loan
is approved.

City's Response:

The Program Manual was scheduled for an update in
November 1999 through February 2000. In reviewing the
Manual and comparing it to HOME regulations, the error in
exempting residing tenants in the project prior to construction
was discovered. It is clear in the new HOME manual that all
units that are assisted must meet the income requirements.
Staff has made the necessary change in the new manual to
address this problem.

The manual is scheduled to be put into effect for the 2001
budget cycle.

Currently, because of the knowledge that some units might
not be qualified for assistance and to ensure that the Program
Rule for income is met, staff is not accepting any units that
are occupied by tenants that do no meet the 60% income
requirement for assistance.

This change in pelicy will remain in effect until the new
manual is approved.

Federal Program Information:
Job Training Partnership Act, CFDA #17.250

Condition:

The Private Industry Council has not submitted the City’s
annual performance repott to the Ohio Bureau of
Employment Services for the past three years.

Criteria:

The Ohio Bureau of Employment Services requires that an
annual performance report be submitted for the previous year
together with the current year's plan.

Effect:

Untimely submission of reports may jeopardize the City’s
participation in this program.
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99-3

Cause:
Oversight by management.

Questioned Costs and Context:
The City disbursed $3,857,000 in federal funds under this
program in 1999,

Recommendation:

The City should implement procedures to reduce the
likelihood that reporting deadlines are missed. The City
should follow up with the Private Industry Council to ensure
that this reporting deadline is not missed

City’s Response:
The City will submit annual reports for the past three years as
well as subsequent annual reports.

Federal Program Information:
Highway Planning and Construction CFDA #20.205

Condition:

There were several highway construction contracts that were
not completed within the prescribed deadline nor were
provisions made to such contracts to extend the completion
dates. Also, there were no liquidating damages assessed by
the City on these contracts (as provided in the contracts) for
not meeting required completion dates.

Criteria:

Per 23 Code of Federal Regulations Section 635.121, the
construction contracts require projects to be completed on
time or the City prepare the Change Orders/Amendments to
the contracts, or assess liquidation damages at the rate of
$5,500 per day as required in the contracts.

Effect:
Untimely completion of construction projects may jeopardize
the City’s participation in this program.

Cause:
Oversight by management.

Questioned Costs and Context:
The City disbursed $64,344,000 in federal funds under this
program in 1999. )
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Recommendation:

We recommend that the City prepare the Change
Orders/Amendments to the contracts mentioned above, or
assess liquidation damages at the rate of $5,500 per day (from
the date of completion in the agreement until the project work
is actually completed by that contractor) as required in the
contract between the City and the Contractor.

City’s Response:

The City will monitor project status on all projects, and will
prepare change orders for the contracts noted above.
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CITY OF CINCINNATI, OHIO

SUMMARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

The summary below was provided by management of the City of Cincinnati and constitutes a
summary of the current status of the findings reported in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs from the Independent Auditors’ Single Audit Reports for the year ended December 31, 1998.

Conditipn #98-1 and #97-1 (Home Program CFDA4 #14.239)
In the City's Rental Rehabilitation Program Manual is states “Tenants residing in units prior to
project construction are exempt from the occupant income requirements.”

City’s Response
The City is revising the manual to remove this language.

Condition #98-2 (Home Program CFDA #14.239)

The HOME program eligibility requirements were unable to be audited for one Rental
Rehabilitation project (the Huntington Meadows Project) due to tenant information being
unavailable.

City’s Response
The City has current tenant income information on the project and has provided this information to
the external auditor.

Condition #98-3 (Home Program CFDA #14.239)
Certain agreements that a subrecipient of this grant has with for-profit owners or developers, non-

profit organizations, contractors or such others, did not contain the provision required by 24 CFR,
Section 92.504.

City’s Response
The contracts in question expired during 1999

Condition #98-4 (Job Training Partnership Act, CFDA #17.250)
The Private Industry Council has not submitted the City’s annual performance report to the Ohio
Bureau of Employment Services for the past three years.

City’s Response
Status: The annual reports were not submitted. See finding 99-2.

Condition #98-5 and #97-3 (Regional Lead Abatement Program, CFDA #14.900)
The City did not submit quarterly reports for the Regional Lead Abatement Program on a timely
basis in 1998.

City’s Response
Status: The reports were submitted on a timely basis in 1999,
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STATE OF QHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR QF STATE

CITY OF CINCINNATI

HAMILTON COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

88 East Broad Street

P.O. Bax 1140

Columbus, Ohic 43216-1140

Telephone614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsitnile 614-466-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and

which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

By:,cfawvﬁdﬂ&m

JUL 272000

Date:
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